
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
AGENDA 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 13 December 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Rooms 1&2                              
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 4) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Jerry Miles  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Sue Anderson 
Ann Gate 
Sachin Shah 
Victoria Silver 
 

Kam Chana 
Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
Paul Osborn (VC) 
Stephen Wright 
 

  
 

  
Representatives of Voluntary Aided Sector:  Mrs J Rammelt/Reverend P Reece 
Representatives of Parent Governors:  Mrs A Khan/1 Vacancy 
 
(Note:  Where there is a matter relating to the Council’s education functions, the “church” 
and parent governor representatives have attendance, speaking and voting rights.  They are 
entitled to speak but not vote on any other matter.) 

 
Reserve Members: 

 
1. Nana Asante 
2. Varsha Parmar 
3. Krishna Suresh 
4. Sasi Suresh 
5. Krishna James 
 

1. Chris Mote 
2. Tony Ferrari 
3. Christine Bednell 
4. Susan Hall 
 

  
 

 
 
Contact:  Alison Atherton, Senior Professional - Democratic Services 
Tel:  020 8424 1266    E-mail:  alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 13 December 2011 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2011 and of the Special 

meeting held on 24 November 2011 (to follow) be taken as read and signed as 
correct records. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL/CABINET    
 
 (if any). 

 
8. WEST LONDON WASTE PLAN: PRE-SUBMISSION CONSULTATION 

DOCUMENT   (Pages 13 - 138) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Place Shaping 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 13 December 2011 

 
9. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW OF VOLUNTARY SECTOR SUPPORT AND UPDATE 

ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THIRD SECTOR STRATEGY   (Pages 139 - 198) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Community and Culture 

 
10. SENIOR MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE RESTRUCTURE PROPOSALS 

CHALLENGE PANEL REPORT   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Partnership Development and Performance 

 
11. REPORT FROM THE DEBT RECOVERY CHALLENGE PANEL   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Partnership Development and Performance 

 
12. STANDING SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE BETTER DEAL FOR RESIDENTS - 

QUARTERLY  REPORT   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Partnership Development and Performance 

 
 

13. REPORT OF THE PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE CHAIR   (To Follow) 

 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Partnership Development and Performance 

 
 

14. REPORT FROM SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBERS   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Partnership Development and Performance 

 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II   

 
 Nil   

 
 Note:  In accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, 

the following agenda items have been admitted late to the agenda by virtue of the 
special circumstances and urgency detailed below:- 
 
Agenda item 
 

Special Circumstances/Grounds for Urgency 
 

10. Senior Management 
Restructure Proposals 
Chall enge Panel Report 

 

Members are requested to consider the report, 
as a matter of urgency, so that a reference 
can, if necessary, be submitted to Cabinet on 
15 December 2011. The report was not 
available when the main agenda was printed 
and circulated due to the need to consult with 
Members and officers. 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 13 December 2011 

 
11. Report from the Debt 

Recovery Challenge Panel 
Members are requested to consider the report, 
as a matter of urgency, so that a reference 
can, if necessary, be submitted to Cabinet on 
15 December 2011. The report was not 
available when the main agenda was printed 
and circulated due to the need to consult with 
Members and officers. 
 

12. Standing Scrutiny Review 
of the Better Deal for 
Residents – Quarterly 
Report 

Members are requested to consider the report, 
as a matter of urgency, so that a reference 
can, if necessary, be submitted to Cabinet on 
15 December 2011. The report was not 
available when the main agenda was printed 
and circulated due to the need to consult with 
Members and officers. 
 

   
 

  Note:  In accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
following agenda items have been admitted late to the agenda by virtue of the 
special circumstances and urgency detailed below:- 
 
Agenda item 
 

Special Circumstances/Grounds for Urgency 
 

3. Minutes of the Special 
Meeting held on 24 
November 2011 

 

Members are requested to consider the 
minutes , as matter of urgency, as they were 
not available at the time the main agenda was 
printed and circulated due to the proximity of 
the two meetings. 
 

13. Report of the Performance 
and Finance Scrutiny Sub-
Committee Chair 

Members are requested to consider the report, 
as a matter of urgency, so that the Committee 
can be informed of the work of the Sub-
Committee. The report was not available when 
the main agenda was printed and circulated 
due to the proximity of the two meetings. 
 

12. Report from Scrutiny Lead 
Members 

Members are requested to consider the report, 
as a matter of urgency, so that they can be 
kept informed of the work being done. The 
report was not available when the main 
agenda was printed and circulated due to the 
need to consult with Members and officers. 
 

 
   
 

 



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 173 - 

 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE   
MINUTES 

 

1 NOVEMBER 2011 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Jerry Miles 
   
Councillors: * Sue Anderson 

* Kam Chana 
* Tony Ferrari (2) 
* Ann Gate  
 

* Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
* Sachin Shah 
* Victoria Silver 
* Stephen Wright 
 

Voting 
Co-opted: 

(Voluntary Aided) 
 
* Mrs J Rammelt 
  Reverend P Reece 
 

(Parent Governors) 
 
* Mrs A Khan 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(2) Denotes category of Reserve Members 
 
 

191. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly 
appointed Reserve Member:- 
 
Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Paul Osborn Councillor Tony Ferrari 
 
 

192. Declarations of Interest   
 
A Member stated that the Vice-Chair had raised the issue of dispensations for 
those Members of the Committee that were school governors in order to 

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 12 

1



 

- 174 -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 

facilitate their participation in the discussion on certain education matters with 
Legal & Governance.  Members discussed issues around interests in relation 
to item 8, School Place Planning (including Admissions Policy).  
 
An officer advised that there was currently no update on the position 
regarding dispensations but that she would follow this up.  The Chair stated 
that as the report related to primary schools it was, in his view, unnecessary 
for those Members who were governors of high schools to leave the room 
during the discussion on item 8. 
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interests were declared: 
 
Agenda Item 8 – School Place Planning (including Admissions Policy) 
Councillor Kam Chana declared a personal interest in that although he was a 
governor of a primary school, it was not one of those included in the report.  
He would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted 
upon. 
 
Councillor Tony Ferrari declared a prejudicial interest in that he was a 
governor of a primary school accepting a bulge class.  He would leave the 
room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Ann Gate declared a personal interest in that she was married to 
the Portfolio Holder for Schools and Colleges.  She would remain in the room 
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 
Mrs Khan declared a personal interest in that she was a governor of a high 
school.  She would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and 
voted upon 
 
Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane declared a personal interest in that his 
sister taught in a Harrow School.  He would remain in the room whilst the 
matter was considered and voted upon, unless the interest became prejudicial 
and he would then leave. 
 
Mrs Rammelt declared a personal interest in that she was a governor of a 
sixth form.  She would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered 
and voted upon 
 
Councillor Sachin Shah declared a personal interest in that he was a governor 
of Rooks Heath High School.  He would remain in the room whilst the matter 
was considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Stephen Wright declared a personal interest in that he was a 
governor of a high school and his wife was a teacher in a high school.  He 
would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 
Agenda Item 9 – Neighbourhood Champions 
Councillor Susan Anderson declared a personal interest in that she was a 
neighbourhood champion.  She would remain in the room whilst the matter 
was considered and voted upon. 
 

2



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 175 - 

Councillor Kam Chana declared a personal interest in that he was a 
neighbourhood champion.  He would remain in the room whilst the matter was 
considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane declared a personal interest in that he 
had been a member of the Cabinet that had approved the Neighbourhood 
Champions scheme.  He would remain in the room whilst the matter was 
considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Stephen Wright declared a personal interest in that he was a 
neighbourhood champion.  He would remain in the room whilst the matter was 
considered and voted upon. 
 

193. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2011, 
be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

194. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received at this meeting under the provisions of Committee 
Procedure Rules 17, 15 and 16 (Part 4B of the Constitution) respectively. 
 

195. References from Council/Cabinet   
 
There were none. 
 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

196. School Place Planning (including Admissions Policy)   
 
The Committee received the report which provided information on the 
Council’s primary school expansion programme and related school 
organisation issues.  These included proposals for the secondary school 
strategy, up-dates on free schools and academies, and school admissions. 
 
An officer outlined the content of the report and advised that the consultation 
on a set of proposals affecting schools across Harrow would close on 
11 November 2011.  The consultation documents were included at Annex A to 
the report. 
 
Members made comments and asked a number of questions as follows: 
 
• A Member stated that a number of primary schools had previously had 

smaller class sizes in order to accommodate equipment as they had 
children with physical disabilities and she questioned whether such 
schools, for example, Elmgrove, were going to be expanded or have 
their status changed.  She questioned how these schools could know 
that they no longer required additional equipment, and therefore space, 
for those children.  The officer advised that it was a calculated risk by 

3



 

- 176 -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 

the school but they had agreed to take on additional pupils either 
because they felt they could cope or did not foresee any issues. 

 
• A Member questioned the cost of the proposals in terms of revenue 

and capital and was advised that the revenue budget was cost neutral 
as it was funded from the government’s Direct Schools Grant (DSG).  
In terms of capital, the officer advised that London Councils were 
putting together a case to Government regarding the lack of sufficient 
funding. 

 
• Referring to page 4 of the consultation document, a Member 

questioned how the list of proposed schools for extra permanent places 
had been prepared.  The officer advised that the criteria had been 
agreed by a group of officers and a representative group of primary 
school head teachers.  Another officer advised a range of factors, 
including accommodation and site size, had been considered.  The 
group had needed to be sure that there was potential to expand a 
school, had considered the popularity of a school, demand across the 
borough and the school ranking in terms of the primary school planning 
area. 

 
• A Member stated that the report did not provide an analysis of how well 

forecasts of school roll projections had been done in the past and how 
changes in the number of pupils would affect the criteria.  The officer, 
referred to the table on page 22 of the consultation document, which 
presented the accuracy analysis. 

 
• Given the current economic climate, a Member questioned the 

additional pressures given that parents may no longer be able to afford 
to send their children to independent schools.  An officer reported that 
this issue had been more prevalent in other boroughs, such as 
Richmond and Kingston, and that to date there had not been significant 
change in Harrow. 

 
• A Member requested the details on applications to the government’s 

Priority Schools Building Programme for the 11 schools referred to on 
page 17 of the report and which schools they were.  An officer advised 
that the applications were as follows:  

 
Aylward Primary School 
Cedars Manor School 
Elmgrove Primary School and Nursery 
Kenmore Park Infant and Nursery School and Kenmore Park 
Junior School 
Longfield Primary School 
Marlborough Primary School 
Priestmead Primary School and Nursery 
Vaughan Primary School 
Weald Infant and Nursery School and Weald Junior School 
Salvatorian College 
Hatch End High School (academy) 

4



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 177 - 

 
An application for a new secondary school was also included 
anticipating the impact of the increasing number of pupils in the primary 
school sector that would transfer to the secondary school sector in 
future. 

  
• Responding to a question on the primary projections, the officer 

advised that a 5% planning margin had been included which allowed 
for peaks in demand and some flexibility and choice which would be 
managed by permanent expansion and the use of bulge classes as 
required.  Given the Member’s question on the number of bulge 
classes and number of permanent classes, he would look at the 
presentation of the data to see if it could be improved. 

 
• A Member, referring to the predicted peak in 2019, questioned how 

officers from Children’s Services were working with other departments 
to address this growth pressure.  The officer advised that there were 
discussions with planners and performance officers in terms of 
developments and expected number of young people. 

 
• A Member stated that the environmental impact paragraph of the report 

required more detail and the officer took her comments on board. 
 
• A Member questioned the likely impact of primary school academies.  

The officer responded that currently no primary school had formally 
applied for academy status but if every primary school did apply, a 
nationwide programme would need to be devised.  This matter was 
now included on the corporate risk register. 

 
• Responding to a Member’s question as to the cost of the primary 

expansion programme and whether the assumption was £7 million, an 
officer confirmed this figure was an assumed estimate of the future 
funding from the Department for Education and that the programme 
would be phased over several years.  The Member was advised that, in 
terms of deprivation, the local authority received funding.  As part of a 
feasibility study, consideration would be given to the impact of 
additional pupils on school sites in terms of a range of issues including 
dining. 

 
• A Member stated that Harrow had changing needs due to its 

demographics and questioned whether the Council was receiving 
adequate grant per pupil.  The officer advised that the government 
allocated funding to local authorities for schools and that the Schools 
Forum decided on the formula to allocate this funding to schools.  The 
argument in terms of Harrow’s transient population and deprivation 
may now be redundant as the Government’s proposed new national 
funding formula reduced the impact of these considerations. 

 
• The officer confirmed that the bulge classes would be for one year 

only. 
 

5



 

- 178 -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 

The Chair thanked the officers for their attendance and responses. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 

197. Neighbourhood Champions   
 
The Committee received a report which set out the progress on the 
Neighbourhood Champions initiative, summarised the points raised at the 
Neighbourhood Champions Conference and described changes in principle to 
the scheme agreed by Cabinet.  The report advised that officers would be 
developing plans to implement the changes and seek the views of the 
Committee on the scheme. 
 
The Corporate Director of Community and Environment outlined the content 
of the report and stated that the view emerging from the conference was that 
the anonymity of the neighbourhood champions could be a barrier.  There had 
been mixed views on this but it was clear that the champions were willing to 
take on more responsibility. 
 
Members made comments and asked questions as follows: 
 
• A Member questioned, in terms of anonymity, how much information 

was published.  The Corporate Director advised that there was a 
centrally held database within public realm that had limited access.  
With permission, it was appropriate to share neighbourhood champion 
information with other champions within a ward or the ward councillor.  
There was also a neighbourhood champion facebook page.  The issue 
would be discussed further at the next conference. 

 
• In response to a Member’s question as to the target number of 

neighbourhood champions, the Corporate Director advised that the aim 
was to have one on each postcode section of a street, 2000 in total. 

 
• A Member requested transcripts of what was said at the conference 

and the Corporate Director undertook to see if this information could be 
provided.  Whilst being supportive of the role, the Member expressed 
concern at the possible overloading of the champions and she 
indicated that she would like to see the scheme being shared with 
other departments to enable them to identify suitable champions.  She 
also suggested that other schemes, such as Sutton’s book lending 
service, be considered and that the Communications team needed to 
report what had been achieved.  The Corporate Director advised that 
the scheme was approached in a ‘one Council’ way and agreed that it 
could be developed for use in Children’s Services.  It was about 
reporting anything that did not seem right for professional assessment. 

 
• A Member questioned the number of champions trained this year and 

was advised that, due to the re-structure in public realm, there had 
been a period of 4 months when no training had taken place.  There 
was no issue in terms of funding this work area and training material 
was currently being revised. 

6



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 179 - 

 
• Referring to paragraph 9 of the report, a Member stated that burglary 

and security activities should also be included.  The Corporate Director 
acknowledged that the Safer Neighbourhood Teams provided regular 
newsletters and thanked the Police for their active involvement with the 
scheme. 

 
• Members questioned whether there was any cost associated with 

inactive champions and what was being done to capture information on 
those individuals ceasing to be champions.  The Corporate Director 
undertook to look into this, although if there was clearly inactivity it 
would be investigated. 

 
• Responding to a Member’s question, the Corporate Director advised 

that approximately 60-70 reports were received from neighbourhood 
champions each month.  The Member stated that there had been input 
from the Primary Care Trust and public health at the training for 
champions and the Corporate Director indicated that he would be 
happy to consider well being issues too.  Another Member stated that it 
was necessary to engage with colleagues in public health.  The 
Corporate Director undertook to discuss these issues further with the 
Director of Public Health. 

 
• A Member stated that, despite the report stating that there were no 

financial implications, there clearly were as there was a budget in 
public realm.  The benefits of the scheme did, however, justify the 
funding.  The Corporate Director responded that there was no increase 
in costs. 

 
The Chair thanked the Corporate Director for his attendance and responses. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

198. Corporate Complaints - Annual Report   
 
The Committee received a report which provided information on complaints 
received by Harrow Council and how they were handled. The officer reported 
that the number of complaints recorded on CRM had risen to over 1,500 and 
this could be viewed as positive.  If complaints were understood, they could 
be rectified and responded to and common themes could be addressed. 85% 
of complaints had been responded to within timescales set. 
 
The officer reported that it was necessary to do more promotion to advise 
residents of the complaints procedure.  Currently, only 4% of complaints were 
received through the web and officers would like to increase the usage of this 
channel.  In terms of the next steps, officers would be looking at the possibility 
of sharing complaints data with neighbouring authorities. 
 
Having considered the report and the figures contained therein, Members 
made comments and asked questions as follows: 
 

7



 

- 180 -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 

• A Member stated that it would have been helpful if the officer had 
spoken to the officer that had attended the last meeting of the 
Committee to present the reports on Adults and Children’s Services’ 
complaints in order to address the issues raised at that meeting in the 
report currently before Members. 

 
• In terms of communications, a Member advised that Aberdeen Council 

were doing well in this area and she questioned how Harrow was 
performing.  The officer responded that a considerable amount of data 
was collected via Access Harrow and that the complaints database 
was operated through a CRM system.  Work would continue with the 
Communications team in order to convey the message in terms of 
complaints reporting. 

 
• A Member challenged the officer, questioning the aim of the report and 

what it sought to report.  The Member stated that the report contained 
2 sets of unrelated data and that there was no basis for comparison.  It 
appeared that the complaints process was isolated from the operation 
of the Council and he questioned what residents actually complained 
about as the report did not provide that information.  The officer 
advised that the report detailed the 2011/12 figures compared with 
previous year’s, highlighted issues and provided information on Local 
Government Ombudsman complaints.  The officer reported that there 
was a mismatch of data as in previous years as not all departments 
had used CRM.  This would be improved in future years as the quality 
of data improved.  There were regular meetings of the complaints 
co-ordinators and information was shared at the quarterly improvement 
boards.  In order to try to address some of the Member’s concerns, the 
officer undertook to try to make the report clearer in the future. 

 
• Responding to a Member’s question, the officer advised that the 

increase in the number of complaints recorded was due to the CRM 
system and that previously there had not been a holistic approach.  He 
advised that the complaint’s co-ordinators were authorised to respond 
to stage one complaints in their service area.  The Member reiterated 
the view that he had expressed at the Committee’s previous meeting in 
that the Chief Executive should see all stage 3 complaints prior to 
submission to the Local Government Ombudsman.  In terms of the 
number of complaints seen by the Ombudsman, the officer advised 
that of the 147 considered, approximately 1/3 had bypassed Harrow’s 
complaints process.  Once the Ombudsman’s annual report was 
received, it would be possible to identify which complaints had 
progressed to stage 3.  

 
• A Member questioned the reasons for late responses from Housing 

and was advised that sometimes the Council let itself down by not 
keeping the customer informed of any on going investigation.  There 
was a need to manage customer expectations. 

 
• A Member stated that he could not tell from the report whether 

complaints was properly resourced.  The officer advised that, in terms 

8



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 181 - 

of benchmarking, information had been requested from other 
boroughs. 

 
• Following questions from a Member as to the accuracy of recording 

complaints, the officer advised that the issue was determining whether 
a matter was a complaint or service request and that a stage 1 
complaint was an issue that could not be resolved on the spot.  In 
terms of a complaint that had not been resolved within the specified 
service standard, he advised that he would expect the matter to be 
escalated.  In terms of the procedure in place, he advised that he 
chaired the customer service group and that a regular report was 
submitted to the Corporate Strategy Board, which was also shared with 
the service lead.  The Councillor enquiry email address was monitored 
by Access Harrow and he was looking to see if councillor requests 
could be captured through CRM on their dedicated enquiry line. 

 
• A Member commented that it would be beneficial for the Chief 

Executive to see the whole process and added that, in the re-structure, 
complaints did not appear to be cross cutting.  The officer advised that 
a regular report was considered by the Improvement Boards, that all 
directorates were represented at the quarterly complaints meetings and 
that a number of complaints were initially directed to the Chief 
Executive’s office and he was therefore aware of the process. 

 
• In terms of equalities, the officer would be discussing this issue with the 

Council’s Equalities officer in 3-4 weeks.  He would like to see an 
increase in the use of the web form to capture equalities information. 

 
• A Member questioned the use of mystery shoppers and was advised 

that whilst such exercises had been carried out annually, from January 
2012 they would be monthly. 

 
The officer advised that both his Director and the Assistant Chief Executive 
participated in a back to the floor exercise on a monthly basis in order to 
better understand customer demand. Corporate and Divisional Directors were 
also encouraged to take part.  He invited any Member that was interested to 
contact him if they wished to work in Access Harrow to see how it operated. 
 
The Chair thanked the officer for his report and responses. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

199. Project Report - Measuring up: Harrow Council's Use of Performance 
Information (Phase 2)   
 
The Committee received the report which outlined the findings and 
recommendations from the recent scrutiny review which had examined the 
Council’s use of performance information.  The purpose of the review had 
been to consider the principles that should underpin Harrow’s local 
performance management framework going forward.  
 

9



 

- 182 -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 

The Chair stated it was an extremely useful and well researched report and 
thanked all those involved in the review and with the production of the report.  
He advised there had been three work streams to the report (Best practice, 
Customer engagement, and Technology and Data presentation) which had 
contributed to the recommendations arising and that he and the Vice-Chair 
(the Chair of the Review) had discussed the report with the Chief Executive 
and a meeting with the relevant Portfolio Holder would be arranged. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report of the review group be agreed and be referred to Cabinet for 
consideration. 
 

200. Scrutiny Lead Member Report   
 
The Committee received a number of reports of Scrutiny Lead Members.  An 
officer apologised for the delay in the Safer and Stronger Communities report. 
 
In terms of the carbon reduction commitment, following a comment that there 
should be caution, the scrutiny lead advised that there was clear evidence 
that climate change existed. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the reports be noted and the actions proposed be agreed. 
 

201. Any Other Business   
 
RESOLVED:  In accordance with the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the following items, which were not available at the 
time the agenda was printed and circulated, were admitted to the agenda in 
order to enable the work to be progressed as soon as possible: 
 
14.  Standing Scrutiny Better Deal for Residents – Phase Two Scope 
15.  Standing Scrutiny Review of the Budget Scope 
 

202. Standing Scrutiny Better Deal for Residents - Phase Two Scope   
 
The Committee considered the scope for the second phase of the Standing 
Scrutiny Review of the Better Deal for Residents. 
RESOLVED: That the scope for the project be approved. 
 

203. Standing Scrutiny Review of the Budget Scope   
 
The Committee considered the scope for the Standing Scrutiny Review of the 
Budget. The Chair of the Review reported that Place Shaping had suggested 
that spending on capital be considered but that, in his view, a challenge panel 
may be required for this topic given the Area Action Plan. 
RESOLVED: That the scope for the project be approved. 
 

204. Termination of Meeting   
 
In accordance with the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4B 
of the Constitution) it was 

10



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 1 November 2011 - 183 - 

 
RESOLVED:  At 9.59pm to continue until 10.15pm. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.35 pm, closed at 10.10 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR JERRY MILES 
Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Date of Meeting: 13 December 2011 
Subject: 
 

West London Waste Plan: Pre-
Submission Consultation document 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Andrew Trehern – Corporate Director 
of Place Shaping 
 

Scrutiny Lead 
Member area: 
 

Councillor Stephen Wright – Policy 
Lead – Sustainable Development and 
Enterprise 
Councillor Chris Mote – Policy Lead – 
Safer and Stronger Communities 
Councillor Nana Asante – 
Performance Lead – Safer and 
Stronger Communities 
Councillor Sue Anderson – 
Performance Lead - Sustainable 
Development and Enterprise 
 

Exempt: No 
 
Enclosures: 
 

 
Appendix 1 -  Summary Report of 
Consultations - West London Waste Plan: 
Proposed Sites and Policies Consultation 
Document 
Appendix 2 - Proposed West London Waste 
Plan: Pre-Submission Consultation document 
 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report presents the results of the consultation held in February and 
March 2011 on the West London Waste Plan Proposed Sites and Policies 
Consultation Document and introduces the next version of the Plan – the Pre-
Submission document – proposed for publication for public consultation in 
January 2012. 
 
Recommendations:  
That the report be noted and the comments of the Committee be forwarded to 
Cabinet. 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 13 to 138 

13



Section 2 – Report 
A. Background  
 
1. The West London Waste Plan (WLWP) forms part of Harrow’s Local 
Development Framework (LDF) and those LDFs of the other five West 
London Waste Authority partner boroughs.   
 
2. The purpose of the WLWP is to set out a planning strategy to 2026 for 
sustainable waste management, the delivery of national and regional targets 
for waste recycling, composting and recovery, and to provide sufficient waste 
management capacity to manage waste arisings across the six west London 
boroughs.   
 
3. The drafting of the WLWP has taken into account relevant planning 
legislation; national planning policy statements; on-going advice from the 
Greater London Authority and the Planning Inspectorate; and also from 
lessons learnt from professional planning bodies and agencies. The previous 
key consultation stages in the drafting of the WLWP comprised: 
 
� Issues and Options (February 2009) 
� Proposed Sites and Policies (February 2011) 
 
4. Once adopted, planning applications for any new waste management 
facilities will be considered in the light of the WLWP policies, and they will also 
be assessed by the relevant council against the individual borough’s Local 
Development Framework, including its local development management 
policies and any other material considerations. 
 
B. 2011 Consultation on the West London Waste Plan: 
Proposed Sites and Policies Consultation Document  
 
5. The WLWP Proposed Sites and Policies Consultation Document was 
reported to this Committee at its meeting of 2 November 2010 and 
subsequently approved by Cabinet on 18 November 2010 for publication for 
public consultation.   
 
6. The detailed arrangements made in Harrow to involve the public and 
key stakeholders in consultations on the Proposed Sites and Policies stage of 
the WLWP followed the approach set out in the Council’s adopted Statement 
of Community Involvement (SCI).  The SCI sets out a minimum of six weeks 
for public consultations for each of the stages in the plan-making process. 
Consultations on the WLWP were carried out over a six-week period between 
9 February and 25 March 2011. 
 
7. During this period: 
 
� A press notices was placed in the Harrow Observer on 10 February. 
� The consultation documents were made available for viewing and 

comment at all borough public libraries and at the Civic Centre 
Planning Desk.   

� Public information displays were exhibited at the Civic Centre, Central 
Reference Library, and Wealdstone Library. 

14



� An information drop in session was held at the Civic Centre on 18 
February that was attended by both planning and waste officers to 
raise awareness and encourage discussion about the draft WLWP. 

� The consultation was also advertised on the Council’s website as well 
as the WLWP website from 9 February. 

 
8. In addition to the above, a direct letter drop was also undertaken of 
residents and businesses in the immediate area surround the Council’s Depot 
site, notifying them of the site’s inclusion as a proposed waste site in the 
WLWP.  The letter informed them of the proposal, where they could obtain 
further information including attending the drop in session being held at the 
Council as well as the other events being held across West London, and how 
they could make representation to document.  
 
9. In Harrow alone, approximately 1,200 letters and emails were sent to 
various groups and individuals, inviting comments on the consultation 
documents.  The letters included a brief summary about the draft WLWP, 
where to view it and how to provide comments. Relevant groups were also 
provided with a copy of the draft Plan on a CD Rom.  Responses were invited 
on-line, by email, by completing a Consultation Response Form, by letter or 
fax. 
 
10. All elected members and local MPs were posted a letter explaining the 
consultation process and an invitation to a drop-in session, with a hard copy 
of the draft Plan delivered to the Group offices, with additional hard copies 
delivered upon request.  A letter, copy of the draft WLWP and CD-Rom was 
sent to all statutory consultees.   
 
C. The West London Waste Plan: Proposed Sites and Policies 
Consultation Document – Consultation Results 
 
11. A total of 374 responses were received from organisations and 
individuals on the various chapters, policies and proposals. A summary report 
on the responses received is attached at Appendix 1. The main areas of 
concern which arose are summarised below. 
 
12. The overwhelming focus of the consultation responses was on the 24 
sites proposed for potential waste management use. The main objections 
were to the Tavistock Road former Coal Depot at West Drayton in Hillingdon 
and to a set of proposed sites at Park Royal in Brent and Ealing.  
 
13. To summarise the main concerns raised: 
 
� Former Coal Depot, Tavistock Road, West Drayton - this proposed 

new site received the most objections (67) of any single proposal. In 
addition, a petition with 2,201 signatures was submitted against 
including the site in the WLWP.  The main concerns raised by the 
petitioners were the location of the site close to three residential 
estates and its likely environmental impact on local residents; and the 
likely impact of traffic congestion which would result from a major 
waste facility being sited there.  There were also specific criticisms of 
the site assessment scoring system used by the consultants, 

15



particularly, that the weighting given to proximity to residential areas 
had not been consistently applied. 

 
� Park Royal Sites (existing site numbers 352 and 328 and proposed 

new sites numbers 386,129,186, 187,183,182,191) - one third of total 
responses to the draft WLWP opposed the sites proposed at Park 
Royal. Many of these expressed local residents’ concerns at the 
designation of several sites for waste use in such close proximity. A 
193-signature petition was received on this issue. The main concerns 
raised by the petitioners were the unfairness of locating so many sites 
in the area; the cumulative impact of new sites when added to existing 
waste and industrial facilities; proximity to housing; increased traffic; air 
pollution and the health impacts of pollution.  A number of submissions 
addressed the site assessment procedure, suggesting that the 
weighting on transport accessibility resulted in the impacts on local 
residents not being properly considered. It was also suggested that 
existing air quality and the cumulative impacts of more than one site 
should be included in the site assessment. 

 
14. A total of four objections were received to the proposed Council Depot 
site, three from residents in Cullington Close and one from Harrow Local 
Agenda 21. The representation all raised concerns with proximity and 
potential for impact on the neighbouring residential area and access issues. 
Two of the representations made by residents suggested the Kodak site 
would be a much better site for a waste treatment facility in Harrow. However, 
as set out in the O&S Committee and Cabinet reports on the Proposed Sites 
and Policies stage document, the Kodak site did not score above the 
threshold for inclusion in that document for further public consideration, 
following a robust site suitability assessment. 
 
15. The Consultation Document included four proposed policies which 
would be used to determine future planning applications for proposed new 
sites. To summarise the response to these: 
 
� Policy 1: Location of Waste Development – a key concern with this 

policy was that sites should not be located close to residential 
communities. Other concerns were the fact that the Plan is technology 
neutral and there were requests from the waste sector for greater 
flexibility in the Plan to make clear that other sites, not allocated in the 
Plan, could still be considered in the future.  The draft Plan seeks to 
safeguard residents’ amenity through its policies - together with 
detailed development management policies in boroughs’ individual 
Local Development Frameworks. 

 
� Policy 2: Ensuring High Quality Development - key suggestions here 

were that the sustainable transport requirements should be 
strengthened; there should be greater protection for local residents 
taking account of their views on proposals, particularly regarding the 
cumulative impacts of a number of sites; and ensuring effective 
monitoring. Officers consider that the draft policies in the Plan 
sufficiently cover the transport implications of individual waste 
proposals. Residents’ views on individual proposals will be taken into 
account by individual boroughs, in accordance with their own 

16



Statements of Community Involvement. Monitoring will continue 
through boroughs’ Annual Monitoring Reports. 

 
� Policy 3: Decentralised Energy - while there was considerable support 

for this policy a number of concerns were expressed about the impacts 
of particular technologies on local communities, and the potential 
negative impact on recycling rates if more waste went to energy 
generation. The environmental aspects of proposed developments will 
be taken into account through the planning application process in each 
borough.  

 
� Policy 4: Sustainable Site Waste Management - a third of those 

commenting on this policy considered that the proposal that at least 
10% of materials / products used in the construction of new waste 
developments should come from reused or recycled materials was too 
low. There is no defined level of materials’ use in new developments. It 
will be for boroughs to determine the viability of requesting this level of 
recycled materials’ use when planning applications are submitted. 

 
D. The Proposed Submission Draft of the WLWP 
 
16. The WLWP Pre-Submission documents has been amended to take 
into account the consultation responses, the findings of a detailed Site 
Delivery Assessment carried out by the consultants, a Sustainability Appraisal 
and an Equalities Impact Assessment which have also been prepared in 
support of the draft Plan. Two detailed schedules, comprising all comments 
received on the sites included in the draft Plan and all comments received on 
other matters (the proposed approach to waste management in the draft Plan, 
the individual proposed policies, monitoring and other aspects and the 
Sustainability Appraisal) are included as background papers to this report and 
will form part of the background evidence base. The main changes to the draft 
Plan are set out below. 
 
a) Land take requirement for the WLWP 
 
17. The WLWP Proposed Sites and Policies document stated that West 
London needed to identify a maximum of 56 ha of land for waste management 
facilities to ensure that the 2008 London Plan apportionment is met.  The 
replacement London Plan, which is now adopted, revised the total waste 
arising forecasts and borough appointments (provided at Table 3.4), which 
have reduced West London’s required land requirement a maximum of 22.4ha 
to ensure that the 2011 London Plan apportionment is met. The reduction in 
the land take requirement is largely because the 2008 London Plan included 
very high and unrealistic projections for municipal solid waste and commercial 
and industrial waste arisings. 
 
b) Existing sites 
 
18. The WLWP Proposed Sites and Policies document included 10 existing 
sites totalling 16.19 hectares. The revised plan now includes 8 sites totalling 
19.39 hectares, namely: 
 
� Twyford Waste Transfer Station in Brent 

17



� Veolia Transfer Station, Marsh Road in Brent 
� Greenford Reuse and recycling site, Greenford in Ealing 
� Greenford Depot, Greenford Road in Ealing 
� Quattro, Victoria Road, Park Royal in Ealing 
� Victoria Road Transfer Station in Hillingdon 
� Transport Avenue Waste Transfer Station in Hounslow 
� Twickenham depot in Richmond 
 
19. The two sites that have come off the initial list are Rigby Lane Waste 
Transfer Station in Hillingdon and the Townmead Reuse and Recycling Site in 
Richmond.  Following a further review of existing uses it was determined that 
the Rigby Lane site was actually a waste treatment facility and was therefore 
transfer to the existing waste treatment sites list.  The Townmead Reuse and 
Recycling Site had ceased waste transfer activities and had been sold for 
redevelopment.  The increase in the total from 16.19 ha to 19.39ha is largely 
due to a recalculation of the site area at the Twickenham Depot. 

 
c) Proposed sites 
 
20. The WLWP Proposed Sites and Policies document included 14 new 
sites totalling 50.42 hectares. It was prepared with the intention of including a 
sufficient number of sites in order to allow a meaningful consultation to take 
place.  The revised plan now includes 3 sites totalling 9.15 hectares, namely: 
 
� Council Depot at Forward Drive in Harrow 
� Yeading Brook, Bulls Bridge in Hillingdon 
� Western International Market in Hounslow 
 
21. It should be noted that the following sites have been removed from 
further consideration through the WLWP Pre-Submission document: 
 
� Tavistock Road Coal Depot, West Drayton, Hillingdon 
� Silverdale Road Industrial area, Hayes, Hillingdon 
� Abbey Road, Park Royal, Brent 
� Rail sidings, Premier Park Road, Park Royal, Brent 
� Alperton Lane Industrial area, Marsh Road, Alperton, Brent 
� Hannah Close/Great Central Way, Wembley, Brent 
� Three Park Royal sites (2, 8 and 9).  
� Park Royal site 1 in Ealing 
� Atlas Road site at Park Royal in Ealing 
 
22. As stated in paragraph 17 above, the land take requirement is now a 
maximum of 22.4 ha to ensure that the 2011 London Plan apportionment is 
met.  An additional amount of land is required in the WLWP to ensure some 
flexibility in the event that sites do not come forward.  From the details given 
above, it is apparent that the WLWP Pre-Submission document includes 8 
existing sites totalling 19.39 hectares and 3 new sites totalling 9.15 hectares, 
which amount to a total of 28.54 hectares.  It can therefore be included that 
the Plan being put forward includes sufficient land for waste management 
facilities to ensure that the 2011 London Plan apportionment is met. 
 
 
 

18



d) The WLWP policies 
 
23. In order to be in conformity with the London Plan adopted in July 2011, 
a further policy has been introduced. This makes clear that existing and 
proposed waste management and transfer sites in west London will be 
safeguarded for waste use.  Development for non-waste uses will not be 
considered unless compensatory and equal provision of sites for waste, in 
scale and quality, is made elsewhere within the west London boroughs. 
 
24. The wording of policy on the location of waste development has been 
amended in order to strengthen the requirement to ensure that there is no 
loss in existing capacity at existing or allocated waste sites. 
 
25. The wording of the policy on ensuring high quality development has 
been amended with several new additions to protect the amenities of the 
area; to incorporate sustainable urban drainage systems; to ensure no 
increased flood risk in the area; to protect heritage assets such as 
conservation areas and listed buildings; and to ensure that adjacent 
development proposals do not prejudice the use of sites allocated for waste 
purposes.  
 
26. The policy on decentralised energy remains unchanged and the policy 
on sustainable site waste management has been strengthened to ensure that 
construction plans are comprehensive and capable of being delivered. 
 
e) Volumes of different types of waste 
 
27. A substantial amount of information has been added at Section 3.2 in 
order to explain the volumes of different waste flows, in order to meet the 
requirements of central Government planning guidance.  
 
28. The Sustainability Appraisal is being updated and an Equalities Impact 
Assessment has also been undertaken for the proposed policies and both will 
be published as part of the Pre-Submission consultation.  
 
E. Next Steps 
 
29. The remaining timetable for the preparation of the WLWP will involve: 
 
a) A six-week public consultation on the Pre-Submission version of the 

WLWP to be held across the six boroughs during February and March 
2012.  
 

b) The consultation responses will then be assessed and any further 
evidence base research undertaken before officers report back to LDF 
Panel, this Committee, Cabinet and full Council on the outcomes of 
consultation and seek Members’ approval to submit the final WLWP, 
with any further proposed changes, to the Secretary of State for formal 
examination. 

 
30. Officers then anticipate the Examination in Public to be held during the 
autumn of 2012 and the Plan to be adopted by the six boroughs, as part of 
their respective LDFs, in early 2013. 

19



 
F. Why a Change is Needed 
31. At the moment, the London Plan and national policy provide the only 
direct policy guidance to councils. The absence of local policies does not 
prevent private companies making applications for waste treatment 
developments within the borough, completely separate from the development 
of the Waste Plan. This highlights the importance of developing an effective 
local policy framework against which to consider such applications.  
 
32. As stated in the introduction to the report, there are also a number of 
other influences driving the requirement to bring forward the WLWP.  These 
include the EU Landfill Directive, which seeks to direct waste way from landfill 
and  includes landfill allowances that reduce over time, which if not achieved 
result in a landfill tax being imposed. In addition to this financial implication, 
there is also a need to acknowledge changing best practice and the 
achievement of wider sustainability objectives. In particular, the acceptance of 
the proximity principal in national and regional policy, which requires the 
treatment of waste take place close to where the waste is generated.  In 
summary, London should treat London’s own waste within London.   
 
Financial Implications 
 
33. The costs of preparing, publishing, and consulting on the WLWP are 
shared equally between the six partner boroughs, and Harrow’s share of the 
cost of undertaking the next public consultation stage on the WLWP are 
contained within the existing LDF budget. The cost of subsequent work 
required to progress the document to adoption is incorporated in the LDF 
team budget for 2011/12 and the MTFS. 
 
Performance Issues 
 
34. The WLWP will deal with municipal waste and commercial and 
industrial waste in accordance with the London Plan.  
 
35. It will help WLWA and the six councils reduce the amount of waste sent 
to landfill and improve the amount of waste reused, recycled and composted 
by ensuring provision is made for a range of new waste management facilities 
that are required to treat waste generated within west London higher up the 
waste hierarchy (reduce-reuse-recycle-recovery and as a final option, landfill) 
 
36. Since 2004/05 the amount of household waste generated in Harrow 
has decreased year upon year from 105,331 tonnes to 95,610 tonnes in 
2008/09. Harrow has increased the amount it recycles and composts 
significantly in recent years, achieving 50% in 2010/11 (the highest rate in 
London).  The remaining 50% continues to go to landfill. 
 
37. Without the WLWP, and allocating sites for waste management 
provision, it is difficult to see how Harrow and the other five boroughs will be 
able to substantially improve their performance against any the above targets.  
 

20



Environmental Impact 
 

38. The draft WLWP has been the subject of a comprehensive 
Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating the requirements of Strategic 
Environmental Assessment, in compliance with the regulatory requirements 
for preparing development plan documents.  The Sustainability Appraisal has 
been used generally to identify constraints and assess the suitability of sites. 
New sites proposed to be taken forward in the Plan for allocation as a waste 
treatment site have undergone a site specific sustainability appraisal. This 
highlighted a number of issues regarding the Council’s Depot site that will 
need to be mitigated through any future waste proposal on the site, including 
potential impacts on neighbouring residential and commercial properties, the 
requirements for relocation or consolidation of the existing depot functions, 
and the transport implications.  Much depends on the type of waste treatment 
facility to be proposed for the site. Mitigations measures envisaged include 
putting all new and existing waste facilities undercover, to address existing a 
potential visual, odour and noise impacts.   
 
39. The Sustainability Appraisal will be published for public consultation 
alongside the WLWP Pre-Submission Consultation document.  The 
Committee are advised to refer to that document to gain a full understanding 
of the environmental and other sustainability implications of the proposed 
WLWP. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 

40. Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
  

• Separate risk register in place?  Yes  
  
Potential 
Risks 

Commentary Mitigation Measures 
Compliance 
with 
legislation 

To meet the test of 
‘soundness’ of DPDs are 
required to comply with the 
legal requirements for 
preparing and consulting on 
DPDs under the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase 
Act. 

Officers will seek to ensure 
compliance with the relevant 
legislative requirements, including 
the undertaking of Sustainability 
Appraisal, Equalities Impact 
Assessment and requirements for 
consultation.  A log is to be 
maintained that chronicles legal 
compliance as the DPD 
progresses towards examination 
and adoption.  

Changes to 
the plan-
making 
system 

The Localism Act 2011 
amends both the Planning 
Act 2008 and the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004.  A new National 
Planning Policy Framework 
is also currently the subject 
of consultation. The process 
for preparing, and content 
of, Development Plan 
Documents will need to be 
consistent with these 

Officers will continue to keep 
abreast of proposals and 
consultation on changes to the 
planning legislation and national 
planning policy.  Where potential 
issues arise, these will be reported 
to the Member Steering Group for 
the WLWP and to Harrow’s LDF 
Panel to consider and advise on a 
way forward.  

21



changes. 
Robust 
evidence  

In preparing the WLWP, the 
boroughs have sought to 
apply a robust methodology 
to the assessment of 
existing and potential waste 
sites.  However, there is a 
degree of professional 
judgment required, both in 
the assessment and in the 
interpretation of the 
outcomes that may give rise 
to potential ‘soundness’ 
concerns.  It addition, the 
assessments represent a 
snapshot in time, and 
therefore the conclusions 
drawn now may not stand 
for the full life of the Plan.  

The DPD includes a contingency 
that would allow for one or even 
two allocated sites not to come 
forward.  It also includes 
monitoring requirements that 
would necessarily trigger an 
analysis and potential review of 
the Plan should the monitoring 
indicate an undersupply of sites or 
capacity.  

Politically 
sensitivity 

Waste management is 
typically a sensitive topic, 
given its has a high profile 
with residents as being a 
key function of Council’s, 
and one that can result in 
adverse environmental and 
amenity issues.  Waste 
management facilities are 
perceived by most to be a 
‘bad neighbour’ and 
therefore proposals, or even 
the allocation of sites for 
waste management, can 
draw significant resistance. 

Officers will need to work with 
Members to educate residents 
and other key stakeholders about 
the need for the Council to take a 
pro-active and positive approach 
to the management of Harrow’s 
waste arisings.  In particular, the 
implications of the EU Landfill 
Directive which requires waste to 
be diverted from landfill.  Failure to 
do so will result in significant 
financial penalties for the Council.  
There is also a social and 
environmental requirement that 
waste be managed in the area in 
which it is generated (ie self-
sufficiency), which is driving the 
change in London that we treat 
London’s waste in London rather 
than transfer it out of London for 
disposal.  

 
41. The WLWP is being prepared jointly. A memorandum of understanding 
has therefore been signed by six West London boroughs, which details the 
working arrangements. However, careful planning will be necessary to ensure 
that individual borough issues and concerns, political sensitivities, community 
involvement and decisions making processes are consistent to ensure the 
Plan is developed in accordance with the revised LDS timeframe. 
 
Equalities implications 
 
42. Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes  
 
43. Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA) for DPDs is an iterative process.  
An equalities impact assessment will be undertaken of the Site Allocations 
DPD.  This will build on the previous EQIA prepared for the WLWP Proposed 

22



Sites and Policies Consultation document, and will be published along side 
publication of the Plan.  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
44. The completion of key LDF documents, including the WLWP, is a 
corporate priority for Place Shaping that will enable the Council to better 
manage waste in the Borough and avoid costs associated with the current 
practice of exporting the majority of our waste for disposal to landfill.  It will 
assist in the delivery of other corporate priorities relevant to building stronger 
communities and delivering cleaner and safer streets. 
Please identify which corporate priority the report incorporates and how: 
 

• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe. 
• United and involved communities:  A Council that listens and leads. 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
• Supporting our town centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Kanta Hirani X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 29 November 2011 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 22 November 2011 

   
 

 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:   Matthew Paterson, Senior Professional Policy 

Planning, Development and Enterprise, phone 
02087366082 

 
Background Papers:   WLWP Issues and Options Consultation 

Document (January 2009); 
Sustainability Appraisal of the WLWP Proposed 
Sites and Policies Consultation Document 
(February 2011); 
Equalities Impact Assessment; 
O&S Committee Report of 2 November 2010 
LDF Panel Report of 9th November 2010 
Cabinet Report of 18th November 2010  

23



West London Waste Plan Proposed Sites and 
Policies Consultation document, February 2011 
West London Waste Plan Proposed Sites and 
Policies Consultation: Consultation Responses - 
CAG Consultants, July 2011Site Deliverability 
Assessment (September 2011) 

 

24



�

��������	����
������
��
�
�
�
�����	�������
�	�����������������
������
����������	
���

�

�

���������

25



�

�
��������������
�	����
	�����
�����
������	�����
������������������������
�
�����
�
��
���
���
��������������������
�
����������
�
�
����������������
��
	��� �����
!�������	����

	����
���	�����"���#�
���$�
%�����&'(��(((��
)*+�
,�������-��-�.�
///-�
,�������
���-��-�.�

��
�	�
������*��
����
0�����)���
���
�����
�������
��1�
��


	������
�
������2!'�!"2��2���0��&(!!�2!�����
,�+�
,�������-��-�.

26



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� �

�

�

����
����

4%�����5������

3� ��

�-�6��
�	������� 2�

 ! ��"����
����� #�
 !$����������%�������������� #�
 !#��
&
���%��
�����
� '�

�-�7�3�������� !�

2������� 8�

#! ��������� (�
#!$�	��)����������
��  *�
#!#���&�����)�����������+
����  ,�
#!,�
�"
��
-�����.����
��������
��%����
�
&
����
���  /�
#!'�
�"
��������
���
0����
��  (�
#!/���������������
����..
��
�� $ �

'���)�
��������
�����*��������� ���

,! ��"
���
%
��
���������"� $$�
,!$�	�����
�� $#�
,!#����������.� #'�

�����	�%���9��������
�
��� 2!�

�"����1�
���������
� #/�
�
�"������1�
���������
� #2�

�����	�%�:1��
		�����
������
�
����������0;�������� '!�

	��)����������
�� ,/�

27



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$�

�

�

�-
����&
���������

�)���
���
�����
�����

3�����)��
���������
����5�	�����)���������
������


��	��������
�)����������	����
������
��<����=��
�����	�������
�	����������
���
�-��)��
�������
�����/
�����	����	�	�
��,�>�0
�

3�
�	�?

�)�����-�

�����
�����2&'�
���������/�
��
����5�	@�����,��)���������*��������
�
��@�
�	�03�	�
����
��
���
�	�/
����������
��-�6��
		�������'2�����������,��	�2����������@�
�	����������
/�
��
���
	�	��
���2���0����������,�-�

����)���������
�������������@�&"A����
�����	������0;����	���������
���
������)��
�
�����	�������-��

�����)�
	������0����������/�
��
,
������)���������
�����	���
��

.�B�3
�-�?
�3����
�)����/�
�����
������	����
���
������
��
���	�����/��)���,�����
�����

��
0�����)��
���
��������)�������-�6��
		������
��82C���,�
��
�����������
,
������)��������/
��

����5�	-��)�������/)��)�
����5�	������������������


����0;��������/
���8��<���
��
B�
	=@�������3������/�	�03��(!@�(&@�(�@�
�	��(2-��)���
������������������	�/�
�1�
�)�����
�
�����������
���,�����
�3�����������)��

�
D��)�������
��5�����
��������/�������
/)���
		�	�����%�����,�/
����
�	���	���
�
���
��������D��
�%����3����)�����,D����
�
��	�
�

����D�
�
�����������
�	��)��)�
��)����
����������������-�

�)���
�����	���/������
���
5�����.�B	���
��E�������������E

3����<������'�=�
����5�	�
�)��������0;��������<!&=����
�3����,�������-����/��)��

.�B�3
�@��
�3�����)����/�
��
�
������
��
���	�����/��)���,�����
�����

��
0�����)�����
��������)������-��/������������
/�
����0�����	�
,
������)�������/��)�
����
�������2&���,�
��
��-���)���
����������
��������	�/�
�1��)�����
���������)�����������������)
���
���	����
�����
���D�������.��3�
���
�������)�����
��
���	����D��)�����
��������

�����
�	����,�������
�	�
��
��	����
����
���
�
�����������
�	�)�
��)-�

���������/�
��
����
����5�	�����)�����
�����������
�����	���
��)����
�-�7�3������
���
/�
���)
������������)���	�����
���)
��������

���������
��	����������)�����,�
�	��)
��
�
�����������
����
��
���	������)���	�0����
��,�)���	-�

�����)��������
�	���������������	�	�����)����
��/������/�0��
�5��/�	@��
.��,�
����������
�)���������
��������������
�	��)��
����������
�	���5�

0����3�
���������2-�6�����
�����	�	�����
�	����
���/���
��/��)�
�
�5���	���������������
�	���	
��	���������@�/)��)�
/����0��
5
��
0�����
���������03��)����	��������-�

�������������������������������������������
��B�������������)�����)���
��*��������
�
��

�����������	�	�����)���
�
�3���@�
���)�
��/�
���/��
���


��������*�������������)
��*��������
�
�-�
��2'A����
���������<�%���	��,��)�����)���
��*��������
�
�=�/�
��
,
����������
���
���

.�B�3
��
�����-�
2����	��
���	��
��������������
�)�����F������
0����3�
�	�
5
��
0����3���
�/
�������-�

28



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#�

�

�

 !�3������������

 ! ��"����
�����
�)���
���
�����
�����

3�����)��
���������
����5�	�����)���������
������


��	��������
�)����������	����
������
��<����=��
�����	�������
�	����������
���
�-��)��
�������
�����/
�����	����	�	�
��,�>�0
�

3�
�	�?

�)�����-��)���5�
���������)��
���
��
/
����0���)�	��������������3����)�����-�6������
�������������
�
���	��������
�

���

�3�����)���

���
�5�
�������0���)�	��������������3�2
	-�

�)����
���������������������)���������
�����/)��)�)
��0�����


��	�����
�	��)����5������

��������
����5�	-���������������

������)��.�3��������

����,��
����)���������
����@�

�	��)��
�������������
�)�����)���������
�����*��������-�6��
���������	��������
�������

�������������)��.�3�������-��)�������������/����0�������	�
�	�	�
��,��)���
��


�����
����)����%����
,������)����
��/)��)�/����0���
�	���	��
��
��)���3�

-�6��/���������	��
�

�5���	��������������-�

 !$����������%��������������
�)����������	����
������
��/���@������
	����	@��
�5�	��
��

��/�
.�����	�������	�������
����
0�����
�/
�����
���������
�	���
�������,���������	��F������
�����	����
��)��
�
�
,���������
���/
������
�
���
�	��3���-��)����������	����
������
��/����0������
�

������)�����
��E�5���������>

��/�
.�����
�)�����)�����
��
��)�
��������5��5�	-�

��%�/�������	���:�
��,)��<:
���@�4
���,@� 


�/@� �����,	��@� ������/�
�	�B��)���	�
������)
���=�)
5��;����	���,��)�
�����
��

���)����������	����
������
�-��)�3�

��
�����3��,�?���)���
�	������������
�������)�����)���	�5������)����
�@�
�	�����
.��
��
���)
�����
���������)
5���)��
��
3-��

�)���
�,

��������������
���������)���
�����	�������
�	����������
���
�������	�	��)��
�����/��,���������1�

�- �������
�
�������
�����<�
����
�	�0
�.��
,���)�/�=@��
�5�	��,�����
�
�����
0����
�)��
���
��
�	��)���������
����@�/)��)�/
��	���
�0���	�03��)����%�0�
��,)�-�

29



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,�

�

�

�

4�.��
� ���������������
�%�
��

�- �
�����������)���������
������
�,

����/�
����0���)�	�����
�)�����)��0�
��,)F��
��/������
�-�

2- ��%�	
��C�����������@���������
�)�����)��0�
��,)�-��)����/�
����
���	�03�
��
����,�������
���
����)��
���5
���0�
��,)��
���,�/��)��������
�����
�������

�	�?���)��-�B���	�����
�	��
,
���
����������)���������
�����	
�
0
��������)��
��%�0�
��,)�F���
����,�	��

�������/�
����5���	�����)����������-��)�����������
/�
��
����
	5�
����	�������
����/��
��
��
�	�
��
����
���
���
������	����

		�����
���
������5�

,�-�

'- �����������)���
�����	�������
�	����������
���
��
�	�
�����
��	����)���
��
���
���
/�
���
	��
5
��
0�������)�������/�0�����<///-/�/�-���=�
�	������������
��������
�	���0


����
�
�����)����%�0�
��,)�-�

"- �/��*��������
�
���/�
�����	����.��,�
�������������)���
�����	�������
�	�
���������<���������	�%��=-��
��
��������/�
���
�5�	�	�
���,��	���)��
���
�@�
��
����

���5�������
�����5�
���������)��*��������
�
��/
��
�����
�5�	�	���
�
�����������������@�
�	��)��*��������
�
���/�
��
�����
	��
5
��
0�����
�
	�/���
	��
����)��/�0����-��

!- �)���
�;������
��
����
����	�	�������,����������E

3���@���
�)�������
�	�
�/��.��)
�-����
��
���	�����,
�������

�����
�����	�������/�
��
��������
���	�
	�
����3�03������������
�����������
��)������
�����3���
�
��
		�����
��������,�
/��)��)���
�;������
�-���

30



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��'�

�

�

&- �
������
�	���
������	0
�.�/
����5���	�5�
��)������
�
�������
�����
�	������
@�
�
�;����/�0�����
�	�	�
��,��)��	
��C�����������-�

 !#��
&
���%��
�����
�
6������

31�

• �5�
������������
����	�	��)��!�	
��C�����������D�

• (���������
����	�	��)��2�
		�����
��������,�D�

• �'(��������*��������
�
���/�
����������	D�

• ��!�
		�����
��/
������
�	���
�����0���������/�
���
	�D�
�	�

• 2�����������/�
����0�����	-�

E��
����

���)�/������)���
0���0���/-�

��5�
� ����������������5���������

�)�
��*��������
�
�����������	� �(��

���)���
��*��������
�
�����������	� !(�

4�
���
�	�/
��������0��������� ��!�

���������
,
������
�����	��

.�B�3
��������
<��,�
��
��=�

�82�

������������
,
������
�����	��
5�����.�
B�
	������<��,�
��
��=�

�����

2!�

������ $2*,�

31



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��/�

�

�

$!�6
������
���

�)�������/��,��
0����
�5�	���
���5�
5��/�����)��.�3��������

����,��
����)���������
�����
��0��������@�
�	�,�5���
�������
��
�������-�4
�)�����)�������	���
�0�	������
��	��
������
�)����0��*������������������)���
���
�-�

��5�
�$�6
������
���

3���
� +
������ 3����������	��
�����
�

��������������� ����)���������
�������������@�&"A����

�����	������0;����	���������
���
�����
�)���
�����	������'-���)��4�5�
�������
�,���3�
������������	�
����0�
����
��������)
�����	����0�������	�
�	�/)���

�������,������-�

�����)���������
��������������/����
0��
�5��/�	�
�	��
.��������
�����	�

�����/)���
�������,��)��
������
�	�	���	��,�/)��)�
�����
.��
�)�����
/

	�������)�����
����
�-�
6���������0��
		
����	�/���������	��
	���5�

0����3�</)��)�
���������.��3����
0��
5
��
0�����
�	�5��������=@�����	�

��.@�,
���	/
��
�
�	��
������������
�)��
�5�
���

�	�
-������

������)���
�
�����@��)�
��/����0��
�
�	��
���	��

��������������
�)�����F������
0����3�

�	�
5
��
0����3���
�/
�������-���)��

����������/���������	�1�
��

��������������)������F���������
�����

������	
���
�/
�����
�����3D�
�)���	�������
���������)���
��)��	@�
��
��)��	�
�	��������
�����
��������
����D������5�����D�
�	�����
����,��
�	�
�/��
����������
���)��������

��
	���5�

0��-�

�

6�������������

.�
B�3
��������
<�%�����,�������
2"�@�2�(@�
�
�����	���/�
������
2(!@��8@�(!@�
�(&@�(2@�(�@�8
�=�

�����)�
	������0��������"�/�
��
,
�����
�)���������
�����	���
��

.�B�3
�-�
?
�3�����)����/�
�����
������	����
��
�
������
��
���	����@�/��)���,�����
���
��

��
0�����)�����
��������)�������-�6��

		������
��82C���,�
��
�����������

,
������)��������/
��
����5�	-��)��
�
������������������	�����)��
�0;��������/�
�1��)�����
�
��������
���
���,�����
�3�����������)��

�
D��)��
�����
��5�����
��������/�������/)���

		�	�����%�����,�/
����
�	���	���
�
��
�
��������D��
�%����3����)�����,D�
���
�
��	��

����D�
�
�����������
�	��)��
)�
��)����
����������������-�

�����)���

.�B�3
��������/����0��
�����	�	�����)��
��������������)��
���������0���
.�����
/

	�����)��
��
�-��)���/�����
.��
����������
	���5�

0����3�
�	�
����)��
�������
�������������@�
�	�/����
�����	�
����
�������
��������	��,�
�%�����,�
�
�*�
���3�
�	��)��
�����
��5�����
�������%�����,�
�	�
�
�����	������@����
		����������)��
���������������	�
0�5�-��

����)���%�����,������@��)�����	���
��
��
�*��
����)�������0��
�
��,�

	�	���
�/
�����
�
,������
���@�0����)��	���5�

0����3�

�������������������������������������������
'�B�������������)�����)���
��*��������
�
��

�����������	�	�����)���
�
�3���@�
���)�
��/�
����
���


��������*�������������)
��*��������
�
�-�
"�2'A����
���������<�%���	��,��)�����)���
��*��������
�
�=�/�
��
,
����������
���
���

.�B�3
��
�����-�

32



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��7�

�

�

�����0�
������0���������
		
����	�
�)�������
�����������
���	�
�@�
��,,�����,��)
���)��/��,)���,����
�

����
��
������0����3�
������	�����)��
���
����������
��
���	���������0���,�
�
���
�3������	�
�	-�6��/
��
����
��,,����	��)
���%�����,�
�
�*�
���3�
�	�
�)�������
��5�����
���������
���)
��
����������)���	�0�������	�	���������

����������-�


����������/���������	�
�/)��)�
�
�)�3�/����0��)�,)��,)��	�����)�����
��
��
��
��)
5��,��������
����
�
�C
	�5��������-�

�

6������������
�
5�����.�B	�
��
��E�����<�����
�'�=�

�)����
�����	���/������<������'�=�

����5�	��)��������0;��������<!&=����

�3����,�������-�6��
		������������������
/�
����0�����	�
,
������)������D�����
/��)��������,�
��
���
�	��)����)�
�
/��)�2!���,�
��
��-�����/��)��

.�
B�3
�@��
�3�����)����/�
���
������
��

���	�����/��)���,�����
�����

��
0����
�)�����
��������)������-��)���
���
���������������	�����)���0;��������
�	�
�)������������/�
�1��)�����
���������)��
���������������)
���
���	����
�����
���D�
������.��3����
�������)�����
��
���	����D�
�)�����
��������

�����
�	����,�������

�	�
��
��	����
�������
�
�����������
�	�
)�
��)-�

�)�
��/�
������������
�������������)��
��������
��,��3����@��

�����

�3@��)
��
�)��/��,)���,�,�5�������
�%����3����

���	����
��

�
��)
������0����
�����������3�
�����	-�

�)�������/����0��
�5��/�	�����)��

����������������������0���
.���
��
/

	�����)����
�-��)���/�����
.��

����������	���5�

0����3�
�	��)��
���	0
�.�
����5�	�����)�������
	�
��,��������
����������	��,����
��
�����
���
�,

	��,��)���������������

���	����
�����
����
�	��

����
��
���
���-�

E���������3���
���	����0��
�)
�,�	����

������������
���
�%�
����	G�

?�
���������	��
,
��	�/��)������3���
�)
��
,
��	-���.�3������
��/
���)
��
�)���������)���	�����0�����
��	����������

���	����
�������������-���)�
�
�����
���/�
���)���
����)
���)����
�����
���)����,3�����

��
�	�
����
�<�
���
�)��/
���������
=���
�,
�
��
����%�0����3�
����)
����/�����������	�0�������	�
�	�
����)������
�-�

���
�����
��
�%����3����
���	����
��


�
��/����0��
�5��/�	�/)�
��

�*��
�	��������
�����
��,����

�
�������
�	�
�0���-���

�
�������3���0��
��
��,�)���	����
0����
��
������
���
��
���	�����

�	�����
��
����
��
0���
�

����
�G�

�����0�
�����
���������/�
���
	��

0�����)��������3-�7�3���,,��������/�
��
��
��,�)����,��)������
��
0����

����
��

�*��
������@���
��,�)����,��)��
�
���������������
��
���	����@��
.��,�

�����������)��5��/��������
��
���	����@�
�
.��,�
���������������
��5�����
����
���
����0�
����������
�	�����
��,�
�������5��������
��,-��

�)��������3�/����0��
�5��/�	������,)��
����)�����������
����5�	-�

�
�������3�2�0��
��
��,�)���	����

�)�����)�
��/
�������	�

0��������
��
��
��)��������3@�
����0�
���������
���

�)��������3�/����0��
�5��/�	������,)��

33



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��2�

�

�

�
���������
��
������������
�	�

5��	�
�������,�

��3����,G�

/�
���%�
����	@��

�����

�3�
0�����)��
���
��������

�����

����)����,�������
���
�������������@�
�	��)���������
��
��,
��5�����
������
��3����,�

���-��

����)�����������
����5�	-�

E�����)��

�*��
���������
�����3�'���
���A�
����
��
�
������
0��

����	$
��3���	�
���	����0�G�
���
�
��	G�

�����)�
	�����)����/)���%�
����	�
��
����������������3�'������	�
�	��)
���)��
��A���,�
��/
��������/-�

�)��������3�/����0��
�5��/�	������,)��
����)�����������
����5�	-�

�

34



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��(�

�

�

#����
��

#! ���������
�)���5�
/)�����,�����������)���������
�����
���������/
������)���'��������
�����	���
�
�������
��/
�����
�
,���������-��)���
����0;��������/�
�����������'��<�
5�����.�
B�
	���
��E����������E

3���=�
�	�����)���
�����	�������
���

.�B�3
�-�6��
		���������
��	�5�	�
��
��������@��)���
����
���
,
������
5�����.�B�
	�
�	��

.�B�3
��������/�
��
�)����0;����������������-���)���)

��0���/�����

������)����
����
,��������0���������
���������,���������-�����.��,�
���)�����0��
���������������
�������������)���)�
��
*��������
�
��
�	��)����)�
���0��������@�&"A�/�
��
,
��������������)�������!-�

�

�

4�.��
�$�8�
�)��0���%���5��������������
��

�

�

�

�

�

�������������������������������������������
!�B�������������)�����)���
��*��������
�
��

�����������	�	�����)�������

3@�
���)�
��/�
����
���


��������*�������������)
��*��������
�
�-�

35



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� *�

�

�

�

�)�����0�
�����
������������
,
������
�����	�������

���)�/������)���)

��0���/�
<���3�������/��)���
���)
������0;���������)�/�=&-�

�

4�.��
�#����������%�����
�����.����������������
�����
��

#!$�	��)����������
��
�)���������
�����	�������������	�	����%�����,�������
�	�!��
�����	���/�����������

.�
B�3
�-��)����

���)�/������)�������/��,��
0��-�

�

�

�������������������������������������������
&�6����	������)���
��*��������
�
�����������
�	����������
,
�������
���)
���������������)��
�
�����0��������

36



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��  �

�

�

��5�
�#�	��)����������
� 

( 
�-�����.�0���
����
��������
�
�����"�&
��"
����
������%����
�
&
����
���

���
� 8����."� +
����������

2"�� :
���� �/3��
	��
�����

����
���
�����

2�(� 4
���,� 9�
��
�@�H����
�
�B�
	@��

.�B�3
��

	�����
���
0����
��0��"�������������%����
&
�����.�0���
�����.
�
���
%�������
��

2(!� :
���� �00�3�B�
	@��

.�B�3
��

��8� :
���� :
����B
�����	��,�@��
����
��

.�B�
	@��

.�B�3
��

�(!� 4
���,� �

.�B�3
��(�<��
��
�����B�
	=�

�(&� 4
���,� �

.�B�3
��8�<��
��
�����B�
	=�

�(2� 4
���,� �

.�B�3
����<�)
���B�
	=�

�(�� 4
���,� �

.�B�3
����<H����
�
�B�
	=�

�8�� 4
���,� ���
��B�
	��

.�B�3
��

 
Borough Description Site Type 
�������	��

���
@������)�
	������0��������(�/�
��
,
������)���������
�����	���
��

.�
B�3
�-�6��
		������
��82���,�
��
�����������
,
������)��������/
��
����5�	-���)�
��/
��

����
���0����������,�
,
������)�������@�
����	�	�03��5�
�"��������-�

?
�3�����)����0����������%�
����	��0;��������������)�
��)����
���������<��
��%
������)��
��������=@����I�)���
�����	���/�/
��������������

.�B�3
�F�</�
	��,����
���
�������
�
��0�����	�03�22�
���	����=��
����,
�������������-��)�������/)��)�
����5�	���������������
���


����0;��������/
���8��<���
��B�
	=@�������3������/�	�03��(!@�(&@�(�@�
�	��(2-�
����)���
�����	���/�������2(!�
�	���8�
����5�	���/�
��0;�������-�����)���%�����,������@�
�)�
��/
��
���,�����
�����5�������0;�������
,
����������2�(�<9�
��
������=�0������)������

,
�����2"��<�/3��
	��
�����

����
���
����=-��)�������/��,��)

���)�/���)���
���

�
�����,�5�����
��0;�����,�����)�������-�

�������������������������������������������
(�2'A����
���������<�%���	��,��)�����)���
��*��������
�
�=�/�
��
,
����������
���
���

.�B�3
��
������

37



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� $�

�

�

�

4�.��
�,��
������.�&
��%����59
����.����	��)����������
��

?
�3�����)��
���������
����5�	�/�
�����
������	����
���
������
��
���	����-���
�
�*�����

,������/
���)
���)��

�
�
�
�
	3�0�

�������
�
��)

�����/
����
�	���	���
�
��
�����-��6���

�����

��
�3�
�����	�����
���

�	�����)��
��%��
�����������5��,�����������)��
��/�
	
3�?B>@�
�	�����)�������@��������
�	�)�
53��

�������������	�����)����
�����3-��)��

���	������)
��
�����	�	�)
5����
��,���

���)
��
�3�����
��/
������
����/���	�)
5��
�
�����

�

�,��������
���-��)�����
��������)���%�����,�9�
��
�������/�
��
������������	-�
�)���/
��
�������	�03��)��/�
	��,�����)����������@��)�/������)��0�%�0���/-�

�����������	
������
�
��������������
��
�	���������������	���
�����
�����������
�������������
�����
�������
������	��	������������������	
��������������
�������	����		��
��	���������	����
���	���
���
������	��	��������������������
�	������
������	�����
�������������
��	����	��	��
��	�������
������	����		��
������
�����������	���
�
����
�������	����		��
�	����
����
��������������������
�

����
�	��
���������	�	�����
��	�������	�����
���
�����
�����
�����
�� 	�������������	���	������
���	���
�
������	����	������������
�������	���
��������������

�

�)�������
��
0�����)�����
��������

��������
�������	��)
��,)�����)��
��������-�������

�	�
�
����������@�
�	��)��)�
��)����
��������)������������/
��
��
;�
������
��
�
�*�����3���������	-��)�������/��,����������
����)�������3�4��
���B���	����F�
������
�����
���������)�������
������
�
�*�
���3-�

!������	�
����"��������	�����
����	��	������	���	�#�������
����������������	�����
�����!$%�����
&'(����������	��
����	��
��	���
����������
��	���������
�����������
����	������	�������	����

38



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� #�

�

�

��		���	
�
�������)������
�)����������

�
�����
�����*+%��*+%,���������*+%(%��

 ��
��	�����
��
����)�	���������
���	���	����	������
����	��	���	��������*+%,��-��)����		��
����
������
��������		�
�	���.�
��/���������
�
��������)�	������������
������

"��������	������
����*�	�0�������!����������*	����������� ���������
���	�������������
������	����
������
�������
���	������������������������	���
���
���
������	/�1������"������-����	�
�����2�	���	���"��������
��	��*)������*���������"������-�	��������*��������������
�����������	�
�!$%�����&'(������
��	�����	���������������������	�#��������������)�
�����"3���	���
�������������
����������	����
������
��"������-�	����������
�	���	����
����������������
���!$%�������������)��
�
�������34���*�	�����������������
��	���
�
�	������������
��������������	��������	����������

�

�

�����

���
��,������������/
���%�
����	�
��
���0����������,8��
,
����	�03��)�������3�
4��
���B���	����F�������
����-��)��������,�/
��
����	�	�03�"2�
���	����@�
�	��)�
��
/
����
����������������������)���
����
��-������	�����0;����	�����)�����0�
����������
�����	�	�����

.�B�3
�@��)��
��
�%����3�������
��
���	�����
�	��)�����
��������

�����
�	�
���������-��

��)�
��������
�����
�����������������	�����)���
���
�
����������������)�������-�7�3�
�������/�
�1�

• �)���
���
�
�	�	����������	��
�
�*�
���3����
���@��
��
.��
������������

����
�
�
*�
���3@������	��,���
�9�
���3�?
�
,�������
�
�D�

• �)�����������������	�	�����
	�*�
���3������	�
��)�������
��5�����
��������%�����,�
/
�����
��������D�

• �)��/��,)���,�,�5�������

����
��
������
�	��)�������������
��
0����

����
��
��������<

���
�	��
�
�=����
�
�3��
5��
�	��

����
��0���������5�
����
����������
��

���	����D�
�	�

• 6��
		�����@����/
����,,����	��)
���)������
��
0����

����
��/
������.��3����0��
	���5�
�	-��)���/
��0
��	�����)����

�����%��
����������)����/�
	
3���
��@�/)��)����
/
����
���	������������,��)���
�
��	��������%����
�������)
�����/���	-�

�����0�
�������
��
���	����F�
�	���������3�,
������
	����0���������
,
������)��
�����-��)���������	�	������3�4��
���B���	����F�������
����@������������B���	����F�
������
����@����

�<�)��6��
�	��
�
�,���B���	�����������
����=@������ �����B���	����F�
������
����@�B�%0�
��,)�B�
	�B���	����F�������
�����
�	�4
���,���5���������3-��

�����0�
�������
��0����������
�����0;����	@������,���,
��5�����
�������0��������
�	�
�����3����-��)��������	�	1�H
���4�
����/)��)��0;����	����������(2D��

�
��/)��)�
�0;����	����������(!D��4�B������/)��)��0;����	����������2"�@�2�(@���8@��(!@��(&@��(�@�

�	��(2D�
�	���)�
������
���	�
�	������
3����3�/)��)��0;����	���������2(!-�

�������������������������������������������
8� ��	������
�)������������	�?

�)������

39



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� ,�

�

�

6��
		�����@��)���

.�B�3
���

���
�)��@�/)��)������
����)�����
��

�
��
���
�0��������
,
�/�)�
�	������3�������
������5��
�����
	��
���0�������-�6���
	��������������
�)�������@��0;�����,�������������)��0
��������������������3������
�	�
�	�0��������
�
�������
�	��������
��5�)�������5�������<�(�@��(2@��(!�
�	��(&=-� �/�5�
����
�����
��	��)����������������)���%�����,�������<2"��
�	�2�(=�
�	��)���
�����	���/�������
�8�@�2(!�
�	���8-�

��

�,�������)�
��0;��������/�
���
	��������������������
�	��)����

�������	���������	�%�
:-��

#!#���&�����)�����������+
����
�)����
�����	���/������<������'�=�
����5�	��)��������0;��������<!&=����
�3����,�������-�
6��
		������������������/�
����0�����	�
,
������)������D�����/��)��������,�
��
��@�
�	�
�)�������	�/��)�2!���,�
��
���
�	����/
���)�����������
�������,�����)��J��/���3�K������
E

3������/������
����������
���@�
����	�	�03��5�
������������-�

�)���)

��0���/��)�/���)���
���
�
�����,�5�����
��0;�����,�����)���
����
�-���

�

4�.��
�'��
������.�&
��%����59
����.������&�����)���������
�

���/��)��)���

.�B�3
��
��������@��
�3�����)���0;��������/�
����
��,����
���
������
��

���	����-���)�3�/�
�������
��	�03����
��
���	����F�
�����
�����@��

�����

�
3��)��
�

	������3�4��
���B���	����F�������
�����<��4B�=@�/)��)��
,
����	�0��)�����������
�	�

�������������������������������������������
��� ��	�
��7�3� ����@���!� �,)���
���@������E

3���������	���	
3���	�?

�)������

40



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� '�

�

�

�
	��
�����
�)����5����0��������
,
������)������-��0;��������/�
��
����
����5�	��
���
 �����,	�������
�������B���	����F�������
�����@� 
3���
�	� 

���,������������3�
E�5���������>�
��@� 
3��������
5
������
�
��	5���
3��
���@������E

3�����
��
�
���,)0��
)��	���
�@����	���:�
��,)���� �����,	����
0��
��
���@�����)�
:��.��,)
��)�
��E���
�����������@�
�	���)��B
�	
���?�-��

����)�/������)���
0��@��)���/��.�3�

�
����������
��/�
���

�����
�	�
������������@�
�	�
�)������F�����
��������

03�)�����,-��)���������
���/�
��
�����)������������)��������,�
����)��J��/���3�K������E

3������/������
����������
���-�

�

�����
�	�
�������������/�
����������	����
������
�����0��������-�6��/
����,,����	�
�)
���)�����������
�
0������,���

���,�����)���
	�
�������@����)�
53�,��	��5�)�����
��5���������
�
����-�6��,���

���)�
��/�
�������
���
0�����)�����
��������)���

����������

�����������
��������@��

�����

�3������
���������
�
��	��

��������,������@�
�����@����������@�
�	�
�
	��
���3-���4B����,,����	��)
�@�/�
��
��

����
��6��
���
�����������	�������/���	�I�	�)����������� ����5�	��
����
��������������
�����	���
���
�	���

���������
������������)���������	������	��
�����)��������	���������������	���
��
��)���������	���
�6��������
�
���.�������	����	�����������
�������������	������
������
����
�����
���������	�����
�	����
�
����	���

������	��	���

�������
�
��
��������������
)������
�
�	)����������,���	����
�7�

�����0�
��������������

�����
�	�
���������������
��)�������/�
���	�������	-��)����

��
�)�/������)���
0���0���/-�

��5�
�,����%%����������
�������
���
�����
�������5���������

• �)�����
��
�
	��

��
�
�
	3�)�,)�3����,����	@�
�	��)���/����0�����
�
��	�03��)��������,����
�
��/����������
�@�
�	�03���/�
���	����
��	�5��������-�

• �)�������)
��
�	���������
�	�
���
����	�
�������
���
�
���	����
��
�
	������)���
���)�,)�
�
	-�
>�
���
�)0���	��

������)��
���	����
��
�
	����
��)

���������
������	�
���3�
���
�,���,���	�
�
�)��

��/
3�0
�	,��/)�
���)���
���
�
	����
�������


�/����
�	������0;�����������	��,-��

• �)�
��������3�����/
3������
�	���������)�������03�
��


�/�

���	�
������/
3-���)�
��/����
�)�
���
��0��*�����,�����

�����/)��)������.��3����)
5����,�����
������
��������)�����
��

�
�

�	�
���	����-�����

• ����)�
53�,��	���

�����/���	�)
5�����������)
��,)��)����/������
�-�6��/
����,,����	��)
��
���
��
���	�����)
5��
�
�
	3��
�	�<����������������)�����
���

����
����
�=��)
���)�3�/
���
���3��

�@�5
���
�	�0��������)
5��
�����-��)
��,)�J��/���3$�����E

3������/������
�-��

• �)���
���
�
	��������)��
�����������5�

�����
����)����-������

• �)��
���������)�
53�,��	��5�)������

�����/����/�
����
�
�*�
���3�����)����
�9�
���3�
?
�
,�������
�
-�

• �)������
�����3��������

���
�����@�/)��)����/)3��)����������
�	�)�,)�3@����������	�����)��
�

����
�
���������
��
�
����
����)������-��
����/����������


�5��
���)�������03��
��.-�

• �������
��
���	����)
��
�
�
	3�0����.����	����
������3�

��03�
�)�
53�,��	��5�)������
����)���
�����	
�5��,��)
��,)��)����/������
�-�

• �

,������C��
���,�5�)������
�������,��)��������
����)������)��
�������
��������
5�����.�B�
	�
���������5�����-�������

,��5�)������
�������,��)��
�
	�
���
��������
��������)��0���
��
���,�

�
�
���)�������E

3�����

�����
���������
	�
������
��
�	�
�������)��
�
	�/��)�
�

�,)����
�-���

41



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� /�

�

�

��

�)�����
���������)�����������������)
���
���	����
�����
����
�	�������.��3����
�������)��
���
��
���	�����/
����������	�03�
������
����0;����
�-�6��
		����������)�����
�������
�

�����
�	����,������@��)�
��/�
���
�3������
����%�
����	�
0�����)�����
�������
�3�
�
�����3�������
��
���	����-�7�3������
���/�
�������@�������@����������@�
�	�	���-���)�
�
��

�	����
����/�
��
�����
�
������
�	����@�������
�	���,)�����������-��)�����5
��	�
�
��
������)�������/
���
�*�����3���������	�
�����/
����

�	��)
�����/���	��%
���
0
���
���
����������
��
���	��������)�
��������
�	�5���
��
�����3-�

6��
		������������
�������
���	����@��������������,,����	����/���	�
���������
����)�����

�	�0���������@�
�	�)
5��
���,
��5������������
�,���

���������)��

�
-���)�
������
���
��������	�/�
���)�����
��������)����

03��
��
��
���
5�@��)���
����:����
�	��)��
������H
���3�B�,���
���

.-�6��/
��
������,,����	��)
���)�������/���	�0��
������	�03��)��
�
���

���	�5��������-�

����0���������
����)���

	������3�4��
���B���	����F�������
������
����������)��

�����
���������)�����
��,��3������)
����	�����)�������0���,��)�
������	-�6����,,������)
��
�)��/��,)���,�,�5�������
�%����3����
���	����
��

�
��)
������0���������������3�
�����	@�

�	��)
��/)�
��	��0���/��,)���,�)
��0�������	�<��
�5�)�����
�����,=��)����,
��5��
���
����)
5������0�����
�
�3�
��
������	-�

����0����������������
������)���
����
��/
��
����5�	��
�����/�
	
3@�/)��)����
��	�
����	����0���
��

��,�
��
�����
�������
�
�?
��
�
���B���5�
3�
�	�B��3����,�
>
�����3�
�	��������
����5���������3��
�5����������)�������-��)�3�)
5������	��)
������������
�����

���	�03�
�3��
����
���
����
����5�
������
��	���,�
������
�	��)
��
�	��
���	�
��5�
������
��
����������)
��
�
�
	3�0������	�
�
.��-����/�
	
3�
��������	��)
��
�)��
��
����
����5��5����)�������������
��
0����

����
��03��
.��,��������
��
�%�����,���	��,�/��)�	�
����
�������������)���
���

������/�
.-��)�3���,,�����)
���)��

�	�5�������������)��������
����)���%�����,���������

,��
�	�3

	�����
�8��	��
���������
�
�	����	�7�<�
����
0�3�
�����
���	�0���	��,=�8���������	�)������
�����	���������
��������
��������
��������
�		���������	��7��

#!,�
�"
��
-�����.����
��������
��%����
�
&
����
���
�)�����0�
��������������
,
�������	�5�	�
���%�����,��������
�����	���
�
�	�5���������


���)�/������)�������/��,��)

�-�

42



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� 7�

�

�

�

4�.��
�/����������5
����%�����
�����.������
-�����.����
��������
��%���
�
�
&
����
���

��

���
����)���

.�B�3
��������
�
�
	3�	�������	@��)���/��������/)��)�
����5�	��)��
������0;��������/�
���)���/��.��)
��E�����<�����2'�=�
�	���/���
	�B�����
�	�
B��3����,������<�����2'2=-�)���/��.��)
��E�����
����5�	�8��0;��������
�	���/���
	�

����5�	�&��0;�������-��

��)���0;����������
����5�	���
�
����)���%�����,������������	���

.�B�3
��

������

���	�
����)���
0���0���/-�

��5�
�'�
59
��������.������
-�����.����
��:
-������.�	��)������;����

���
�� 8����."� +
���������� 
59
�������
�
�
�&
��

������
������%����59
����.�

��!�� :
���� H����
��

����
�
��
����@�?

�)�
B�
	�����
����

4
���,���5���
������3�

B�5�
�:
���������
�������������
���
�%�����,�����@�
�	�
���������������	�03�
���,������-�

2�8� 4
���,� �
�����
	�B�����

�	�B��3����,�
�����

���@�4
���,�
��5���������3�

�	�����
��)�
�

B�����
�	�
��3����,��
�5�������)���	�
0��
��
���	�<����
�	�������)�
�
��0�������=�

������
0�����
��%�
������������@�
0��
�������5���
��3�	����
�����)��:
����

�������������������������������������������
���6����	���
���������/)�
���������

��

���	�/��)����
����

��0;�������0���,���
��	�

43



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� 2�

�

�

B�5�
��

.����
��


�/���������
�	����
5�
3����������)�����,�
�	�
������	

3�
��)���-�:
����B�5�
��

.����?������
��
������
�	�<?��=�/)��)�����
������	�03�
�)��4
���,��E>-�

�

2��� 4
���,� �
�����
	�E����� 4
���,���5���
������3�

����������)��B�5�
�:
���-��E>�
�*��
���
	�5���������
	;
��������?������

��������)��
���
����@����������
����������
���5�
������
���)


���
-�

22��  �����,	��� B�,03��
���
�
�����

����
�
��
�����

������ �����
B���	�����

�����
��
0���� �H��

����-�

2�2�  �����,	��� H����
�
�B�
	�
�
�����

����
�
��
�����

B�������
B���	�����
������
�����

�	�4
���,�
��5���������3�

�����
��
0�������������%�����,��
�����3�

�	��������
�����
������ ���

���
	�5��������-�

�
�%����3����)�����,�
�	��
����:����
�
�	-�

2"2�  ������/� �

����
��
�5������
����
�

����
���
�����

���@��4�B��
����
�	�
��
%�����)�
7�����<��7=�

�����0����
�0�����/��)�
������
�	�
�

.��,�<���=-�
��,
��5�����
�������)�����,���
��
5�
0����3�����)��
	;
�����������
����
6�	���
�
���

.-�

�����
���
0�����

��������,������@�
�
�
*�
���3�
�	�
�
	��
���3�
�	������@�	����

�	��������������
���������

03�
�������
�������	��,���7-��

2'�� B��)���	� �/��.��)
��
E�����

����
�	�(�
�0;��������
�
������
��

���	�����
<�����	��,�
>�B�4�
<B�5�
��

���
>
���	�=�

:
�.���������)
�����
��������@�����)�
��
�
3�0���
�0�������������
���,�
�
�
�����3@��
�����
���,��

�������5�����@�

�	��
�5�	��,��)��������

3�0����
��,�
��
���

���	��,��
�	������<���=�

6��
�������)��*�
���3���������������
��

���	�����
�	����)������
����-��)�
��
/
�������
��
0���������@�������
�	�
�

����-�

��,
��5�����
������ 

��*�����B�,03�
���0�/)��)����
	;
���������)������-�

��,
��5�����
�������)��B�5�
��

���
�	�
�����
5
�����

�
-�

2'2�� B��)���	� ��/���
	�B�����

�	�B��3����,�
�����

����
�	�!�
�0;��������
�
������
��

���	�����

B�����
�	�
��3����,��
�5�������)���	�
0��
��
���	�<����
�	���)�
�=-�

6��
�������)��*�
���3���������������
��

���	����-�

�

�

44



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
�� (�

�

�

#!'�
�"
��������
���
0����
��
�)�����0�
��������������
,
�������	�5�	�
���������
�����	���
�
�	�5���������

��
�)�/������)���)

��0���/-�

�

�

4�.��
�7����������5
����%�����
�����.������������
���
0����
��

�
�
�)�
��/�
��5�
3���/��0;��������
����5�	���
��
�����	���/���������)�
��)
���

.�B�3
��
�
��
5�����.�B�
	�<������'�=-��)�������
����5�	���
�
�3���)�
����,��������/
��"�
,
�����
�)��5
�
��������
�������
��6���
�
����
��?

.���<������(!�=-�

�)���0;����������
����5�	���
�
����)���
�����	���/��������%���	��,��

.�B�3
��
�	�
�
5�����.�B�
	�

������

���	�����)���
0���0���/-�

�������������������������������������������
���6����	���
���������/)�
���������

��

���	�/��)����
����

��0;�������0���,���
��	�

45



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$*�

�

�

��5�
�/�
59
��������
�
�&
��%���������
���
0����
��:
-������.�	��)�����������
���
�$, ;�

���
�
���5
��

8����."� +
���������� 
59
������<�
����
����
�
�
�&
��

�
������%����59
����.�

��!�� :
���� ����
�����
���
6�	���
�
���
�
@�
?

�)��
��@�
����
����

�

.�B�3
��
�

���
�)���

�������������3������
�	�
�	�
�%�����,�0���������
������-�

�''� :
����  
��
)������@�
�
�
������

��
�
3@����0��3�

����� �

����  


�/� ��������E����@�
>�
/

	�E
�5��

 


�/����
��
�,��	
����

�	�2�

���	�����

6��
������
���	����
��

�
�@�

�	�
������������-�

�"2�  �����,	��� ���5�
	
���B�
	�
6�	���
�
���
�
�

���0;�������1�

�

�
��
�	�
 �����,	���
����
�������
B���	�����
������
������
< �B�=���

���������)���

,���������/��)���
�)������)C�
������4�,�
�	���
�
�)���
�	����������
��)
���
�
��
�
�����
�)�,)/
3�
��
�
���,-��

�
�������	�
�����
���0���

���
��
0��-�

�)��
�	�5�������������)��
/����
���

������)��������
���
6�	���
�
��4��
���/)��)�
	;�����
���5�
	
���B�
	�/���	�����0��
����
��0���/��)�
�3�/
����
�
�
,����������-�����

���	������������
��
0���
�

����
����������< �B�=-�

�''�  �����,	��� J�
	��,�:
��.� 2���������1�

4�,���)�
 �
��
,�@�
 �B��
�	�
>�B�4�<B�5�
�
�

���
>
���	�=�

���	�����
�������)���
�
��
�	�
0
��.�
�	������
�)����.�-��

�(!��  ������/� H
�
�������@�
�����
��
6�	���
�
��?

.���

2��0;��������
�
������
��

���	�����
�	�
�����������
�
����4�B��

�	�4�,���)�
 �
��
,��

�����
���
0�����

�����
�	�

�������������<���
��
���	����=-�

�	;
���������4�B�F�� ������
����
��
�	���
���.��	����@�
/���	���.�����0����������	-�

���)����)��������,����
��

	��66�
�����	�	
��.��,������
���
<4�,���)� �
��
,�=-�

�

46



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$ �

�

�

#!/���������������
����..
��
��
�������	�
����������
�	�
����������		�����������������������	��������������	��������������	������������
�������	��������������������������������	�����	����
�����������������������	���
��������������	��� �
������
���	���!����������������
���
������"�����������#�
�
• $�������%���������	��������������&��������'���������(�
�
��	��)�
���������*���*���+���	���������

�������	�����,��	��-	��	�.�	���/�����
�	�����������������������������������01���2������	�3$�
4������������	��)�������	���������������	��������	�����%3%&����� ��������������	�����
����������������	�����	������������������������������
�	�����	
���������������������������	��
�������"�

• �����������5����������������������
���������	��#�����6�����������	�4�����7��	������%����3�	��	�
.�������	����������4��������"�

�
)�������������	�����������������	���	�����������	�����
���
������"���������������	��	�����������
�����"�

��5�
�7����
��������
��5�������0�
���

���
� 8����."� �����0�
�� ����
���

����.��3�>

��B�
	@�
 �����,	���

 �����,	��� 7�
5�����
������
����

6���
����:����0���)
��0�������
��	���
�
�������������8�)������
3-�

 ����/
3��
����������  �����,	��� �6����7� ������2&���
�	�2&��@�
�5��/�	�
0������������	�	�/��)�����������
�%�����,�����������
0�����
�

�	�5��������-�4%�����������
��������	�03��6��-�

 ����/
3��������������  �����,	��� �6����7� �����'��@�
�5��/�	�0�������
�����	�	�/��)������������%�����,�
����������
0�����
�
�	�5��������-�
4%�������������������	�03��6��-�

�		�����
����/������� � �6����7� �6�����
����)
���)�3��
3�)
5��
��,,�����������
		�����
��������
�5�
��)�������,�����)�@�
�	�
/���	���.�����0
��,��)������
/

	�
	�
��,��)����
���
.��,��
�����-�

�)�
��3�?����B�
	@������
E

3����

 �����,	��� �
�)
5��� �������

,��3����
�	�,
����
������
�
�������)�:��.��E���
����
��������
	������

��5��

�
-�
����
�����
�

�����	�
,,
�,
����
	�����
�	�0���������
���
��/����

��
���
���)�
��3

	-�

:�	������

	��,�4��
���  ������/� �
�)
5��� 4%�����,����

����
�������
��
��
/
����
�	���	���
�
������-�
�

B����
3�>

��?���

���
�	�
�
���������

 ������/� B����
3�
>

��
�
�	�/��
��

��������0���
�����	�����:�
 ������/���
�����

����%�

���
/��)����
���
�	����-�:����5���)����C
���
�����������
���
�	����$
��3����,�
�
�����������
��E4�/
��������	�0��
�����	�	-�

47



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$$�

�

�

,�
�"
���������������=�
��������

,! ��"
���
%
��
���������"�
�)���*��������
���

�	�����)����
�F���
���

�	�
��
�
�)���1�

8�����������������������7
�
�
����	��������
����
��	�)����������)���������������������
�����)����
����
���
��	������������������
�������7�

����)����/)���%�
����	�
�5��/@����,)��3���
��
,
��	�/��)��)��������,���3�
��
�
�)�
<"�A=��)
��	��
,
��	�<'(A�2=-��

�

4�.��
�2�>�
0������"
���
%
��
���������"�

6��,���

�@��������/)��	��
,
��	�/��)��)��
��
�
�)�	�	��������)��0
���������������������
�

�����

������@��
�,
�������������@�������
��3��

.�B�3
��<2(��0;���������
���0��)�
*��������
�
��=�
�	��
5�����.�B�
	�<����0;�������=-����3����0;��������
���
��3�
	��
,
��	�/��)��)��������,���3�
��
�
�)�������-��

�)����,�
��0���/��)�/���)��
�
�������
�	��
,
�������
�������������
������������0��)�
*��������
�
��-�

�

�������������������������������������������
�2��
.��,�
���
��������@�28A�
,
��	@�2"A�	��
,
��	�
�	��!A�	�	�F���������-�

48



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$#�

�

�

�

4�.��
�(���
������%����59
����.�����"
���
%
��
���������"�

�����
���5
�����������������	�	1�

• ?���%��������C������
���)
������
���������/��
��
�	��������
��)
	�0��������
���	-��

• �������������5������
��������������C�)����
���
��������)
���%�����,�/
����
�
�
�������
���������

��
�����	�������

���
��&"A�����)��
��������	��
�
���3�
<���)�	����	���
�
���
���������/��)����)�����	�����
�=�
�	� ����)��	��
����
�	�
B��3����,�����
���< �B��=�
��"�A-�6��/
����,,����	��)
������
�
��������.��/��
��
,���)���	�0�����	������
	-�6��/
���
���
���	��)
���������	��
�
���3�������0�

��
�������
����0�
����������

����
���
�
���3�
�	��)
�@���
��%
����@� �B������:
���@�
B��)���	�
�	�4
���,�
�����

����3�
��3������
���)
��"�A-�

• 6����
�������)��������.
���@�����
�����	������,,����	��)
���)����5������
������,���3��
�5�	�	���
�����%�����5�-���

,!$�	�����
��

,!$! �
&
�&�
0�

�)���������
�����	�������������	�	�'����������/)��)�/���	�0�����	����	���
�����
��
����,�
�����
��������
��
�����	������-�:��)��)���)�
��
�	����)���
��*��������
�
���

�.�	�*���������
0�����)������������-��5�

��1�

• �8A�
,
��	�/��)�
���'���������D�

• '!A�	�	�F��
��/�
$	�	�F��.��/���
�
���'���������D�
�	�

49



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$,�

�

�

• 2"A����)�
�	��
,
��	�/��)�����@��
�	�	�F���%�
����
�5��/��������-�

>�
��)���)�
��*��������
�
�1�

• ��A�
,
��	�/��)�
���'����������<��������(��
��������=D�

• '&A�
��/�
�	�I	��F��.��/F��
�	�	�F��
��/�
��)��*�������D�

• 2�A�	��
,
��	�/��)������
���
������)��'����������L�
��)��,)�(A�	�	�F��,�5��
�

�
���-�

>�
��)�����)���
��*��������
�
��<!��
��������=1�

• �2A�
,
��	�/��)�
���'����������
�	�'�A�	�	�F��
��/�
$	�	�F��.��/���
�
���'���������-�
�)��
��
����,�'"A�
,
��	�/��)������
�	�	��
,
��	�/��)���)�
�D�

• �'A�
,
��	�/��)������3�������
�	��&A�	��
,
��	�<
����
��/�
�	�	��F��.��/��
�
	�	�F��
��/�
=D�

• 2�A�
,
��	�/��)������3������@��2A�	��
,
��	D�

• '"A�
,
��	�/��)������3�����2@����3�"A�	��
,
��	D�
�	�

• 22A�
,
��	�/��)������3�����'@��(A�	��
,
��	-�

�)����������

���	�����)���)

��0���/-�

�

50



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$'�

�

�

4�.��
� *�	��������������:�
�"������=�
���������
;�

,!$!$�6
������
��

	������ �

• �����3���)
	�)�,)�
���5������	��
,
������-��)���/
���

��3�	�������)���I,���

��

��
�
�)F������3�0�

��,��)��0
�������������F�������
���
�,

	��,�/
�������
�

�����

���������������5

����������D�

• �)���
��

3������
��/
���)
��/
�����������)���	�����0�����
��	����������
���	����
��
�����������@���
�
�5

���3����
�
�����<�

����@�
�
����������@������@����������=-�
������F���%��
������������

�����
�%����3����/
�����
�5�	�
��
���

�	�
��
;�
�
�
���
D�

• �)���
����)
���)����
��/
�����)����,3�����

��/
���0;����	����03�
����0�
����
�������
����������
��,�
�3���
�
���3����/)
���
���������/���	�0��	�5�����	����
��3D�

• �)�
��/
��
����
����
�<�
����)��/
���������
=���
�,
�
��
����%�0����3�����)
����/�
����������	�0�������	�
�	�����)������
�D�

	������$�

• 6��
��
�������������3��@�����
�����������)��.�3�L��
�3�������F���%��
��������,,�����
�)
�����)��
���
�
�

���,��
�	��5���/)����

������)��/
�����������-�?�����
��,�
�)���	�0��
�����)�
0��������
���,��)���
�5�������������
������
���	�����
�	��)��
��5�
������@�
��������
0��������
,��D�

• ?
�3����������
��
��	�����)���

����
���
���
�
@�/��)������
����
����
��,�������/��)�
����
��
0�����	�����
��)�,)�3�
�	������
����
��������������/
�����

����
��
���������D�

• �)�������
��5�����
������������������
�	�����

�����

�

�
���)���	�0��
������	D�

	������#�

• �����3�2������
���,�	�����

���
�����
�	�I���
,3��
���/
���F�
����5�	���
��,�
�����
��L�0���0��)��)��������
5��
�
�	��)�����������,��)��������3�
,
��	��)
�����
�)���	�F��0�����	�����
�
���
��
���
�������
�������

����D�

• �����
���/�
���%�
����	�
0�����)����,
��5�����
����)
��I���
,3��
���/
���F�
�
�������������	�)
5�����
��3����,�

���@������	��,���
�����D�

• �)�������������)
���
������,�
������	�
�5�	���������0�����	�������0���	�)�
��
�	�
��/�
��
���������������	����
�
��
�	�
����
���
���������
��������������������	����
3�
0��
�����

����
����,,�����������)���)�
�C��
�@�
�	���	��	@������0�3���
��)����
�����5��
�������3�

������)������D�

51



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$/�

�

�

	������,�

• �����)�
	�����)����/)���%�
����	�
������������������3�'������	�
�	��)
���)����A�
��,�
��/
��������/�L��)��������	�	��)�����)
��
,
��	�����
��������/��)��)�������3�
��
/����
���)����/)��	��
,
��	�<��	��	��)���
���

�	�����
�3��
�������0���)��
�
����
��
������	��
,
������=D�

,!$!#�+
����
������
�����

�)�
��/
��������5�	����������������������	��,�����)���
���
,
��	�
�������-�������
�����
��	��)�����������/��)��
�5������)
��
����
���
��

�������	�
�	�<I��5�
������@�
������@����	��
����������F=�
�	��)
��	����
0
�����

��.�������
��������-���)�
��
�����
��	��)����������@�0���)
	��0;���������
������
������
��
���������

�����

������-�

��������
	��03������������/)��
,
��	�/��)�
���'����������

���)�/��0���/-�

��5�
�2�	���������
�5���������

��0"���.�

��0��"�����%����������
��

• ���	�
	�*�
�����
����������
�����,������@�	���@������
@��	��
��
�	���)�
����������D�

• ���	��
�5��������
�
��4�5�
������
��6��
��������������
�	�
��
��

��
������)��
0��	�5�
���3����
��D�

• 	�5������������0��
���
����	����
��
��
��
�
�����
��@���
��
�	��)


���
D�

• 
���5�������	�

����������������)���

�	��������
�
��<�)�������

�����

�3�
���5
�������/�����
�)�� 
3�����/��������
�	������
��,�3�/������	�03��)�� 
3�����/���

���
�)��=D�

• 
	�*�
���
�������������)�����
�������)��
�
	����/�
.D�

• �
�5��������
�
� �
��)�6��
�������������D�

• ��������������
�����

5�����
���<�

�����

�3�����
�
�����
���/������
�����
�����=D�

• ���	����	�5������)������������������
��	��
���	���
��@������	��,���5��5����������
�5
���
����
����D�

• )�/��)��
�,��
���,�
��)�
����������
�
����)

������.��M
	�*�
�����
����������
��M�
�	�M���
��,�����
���
	5�
���������MD�

• ,��	���������
�	�5�����
�����	����0������
��	�
�	��)
���)���
�
���
�	�

��/
3���
��0�����	�
��
�0��.��


3��,�����
.���
��.�������)��
�
	�D�

• ����
�
��������)���

����
�����
���
���������D�

• 
�������,��)�����
�������	��
�1�

������������	����
��������	����0���,��


��	����@������@�
)�/�
�	�03�/)��G��

�

�

	���������	 ������������%�0���
��
&
����
���

�)���
�����	�	

��������3�����������3�������������)����

��,���
��
�
�)��)
���%�����,�

�	���/��������	�������	�
���������
��/
����	�5���������/����,���

��3�0�������
��	@�
�
�5�	�	��)
���)���
����
��������3�/��)���)�
��������������)�������
�	��)��0�
��,)F��
���
��E�5���������>

��/�
.-��)��	

��������3�/�
	��,�����)�/������)��0�%�0���/-�

52



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$7�

�

�

��5�
�(����	�	������ �

�
����	�5����������
����
�����������������	�����
0����'C��
�	�'C��/����,���

��3�0�������
��	@�
�
�5�	�	��)
���)���
����
��������3�/��)��)����)�
���������������
�	��)��0�
��,)F�����
��
E�5���������>

��/�
.-�

�
����	�5��������������)�
������@����������	�����
0����'C��
�	�'C�@��
3�0����
�����	�����)��
�
����
��������3�/��)��)����)�
���������������
�	��)��0�
��,)F�����
��E�5���������
>

��/�
.@�
�	1�

N�����
��0��	������

��	��)
���)��	�5��������������������
0�����
�
�3������������	�����
0����'C��

�	�'C�D�
�	�

N���
������
�
���@��	�������	�������)
5�������������
/

	�
�	�����
��0��	������

��	��)
���)�
��
������
,��,��)�
��
�������
�
���3-�

�������
��������������%�����,��
�
���3@�
�C	�5������������
�3��%�����,�/
�������������������
��
�)
���)��*�
����3����/
�������0���
�
,�	�����*�
������
�,
�
��
��)
���)��*�
����3����/
����/)��)�
�)������������

����3���
�����	���
-�

�

��������������������.������3��������
	���)�������/��,�������1�

• �����
���%�
����	��)
�������)
��
����,���
��������

���������

���/��)��
��	���

������0
��.@���
���5�	�
��	�5�
���,��
���
��3����,����������

����1�I��������������
��

�����������	���������������������	��������	��������������	���

��������	������
������	������
���������	�����������
�������������������������������������
���������
��������������	����
�����FD�

• ������
3����	���
���
�
���3����	�
��/��)������
��
��
�	���	���
�
��/
����
�	�
/
����/)��)����������,�
�0���,�������

��	�����)������
����������
���)��
		���������
�%�

�����
0��������@��
�5�	�	��)����

���
.��,�/
�����
���3��
�����������	�������
�
0
�
	�
�,��,

�)��
��

�
-�

�)���
����59
�����������)��������3�

��������������)���)

��0���/-�

�

53



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$2�

�

�

�
�

4�.��
�  ��
������%����59
����.����	���������	 �:���5
����%��59
������;�

�)���
��

3������
��/
���)
��/
�����������)���	�����0�����
��	����������
���	����
��
�����������@���
�
�5

���3����
�
�����<�

����@�
�
����������@������@����������=-�������F��
�%��
������������

�����
�%����3����/
�����
�5�	�
��
���

�	�
��
;�
��
���
@�/��)�
�����	�

0����
�������������/�
	
3F�����������

.�B�3
�-�?
�3��������
����
�C���)
����	�
�)��
��0;�������������	�5�	�
���������
�,
��������������)�
������<����

�����

��

.�B�3
��

�	��)��I�����E

3����L� 
3�����

�	�
F=-������������)
�����������������3�<���	��C/�	��
�
���0�
�,���
��3������������	��=�/
�D�/
��,@���
/�	��
���	���5�

0��-��)���
����)
��
�)����
��/
�����)����,3�����

��/
���0;����	����03�
����0�
�����������
����������
��,�

�3���
�
���3����/)
���
���������/���	�0��	�5�����	����
��3-��)�
��/
��
����
����
�<�
���
�)��/
���������
=���
�,
�
��
����%�0����3�����)
����/�����������	�0�������	�
�	�����)��
����
�-�

��)�
���������������
���

���	�03���	�5�	�
�������������

���)�/������)��0�%�0���/-�

��5�
� *���
��%�������
�����5����������� �

• ������)
	������
���
0�����)���
����������������3������@���,,�����,��)
���)��������0��
	�����	-��)��������
�*��
����)
�O�������
��������������%�����,��
�
���3@�
�	�5������������

�3��%�����,�/
������������������
���)
���)��*�
����3����/
�������0���
�
,�	�����*�
�����
�
�,
�
��
��)
���)��*�
����3����/
����/)��)��)������������

����3���
���	���
-P��)��
���)�
��3���,,����	��)
���)������
����
�
��������%����
�����������O���������	�����
�����
������	���������
���������
������
���������	�������
�	���������
��	�
��/
�����
�

����
�)�	��������������������������	����9����������	�����������������
���������	��������

�
����	��
��	�
��������		��������:���

�3������3����������)��,)���)
���)�������/���	�
0��0����
�0
��	�����)��E

���B���
����������	�����
��<������
��3�����)��/
����

���
���������)
��
�	���	=1@���������������������)
���)��������/�
����	���5�

0���
�	�
�)�����
����)
���)�������/
��������	D�

• ���������
��
��/
�������

��
�/
��
/

��������	�������	��
�	��)
�����/
������
����	����
	�5������,���
�/
�������@�0���/
�������
��	��)
���	�����3��,��������)��������
3��
.��
/
�������������
��
��3���5�
0��-�6��
����������)
�����	�������������
��	���
��)��
	�5��������������)�
�����������
����
��	�/��)����)�������

������
���
����5�-���)�
�
�����
����
���,,�������������	�1�����0�,��
�����3�/���	�0���
���

0��D��)����
���)���	�

54



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��$(�

�

�


		
����/
����/
��
�
�	���/�

,��������D��)����5�������������
�����/
��������������D�
�	�
�
������������)��������������������)�	���,3-�

�

	���������	$���������.�A�."�1�������+
&
����
���

����������3���
�����������
��)�,)�*�
���3�	�5���������	�
��,�0��)����������
�������

�	����

����
���)
���-��)��	

��������3�/�
	��,�����)�/������)��0�%�0���/-��

��5�
�  ����	�	������$�

����/
����	�5����������
����
���/����0��
�*��
�	����	������

��@���
��)�������
�������
�	�
���

����
���)
��������)��	�5��������@��)
�1�

N�
	�*�
�����
����������
�����,������@�	���@������
@��	��
��
�	���)�
�����������

������
��

��	�
������)����)���D�

N��)�
����������,�����
���
	5�
��������������)�����
0���)�	@���
�����	��
�
����
��	��
�	��������.��3�
���0��
������	�03��)��	�5��������D�/)�
��������

3��)���������0��	������

��	�03�
�
4�5�
������
��6��
��������������

N��)��	�5���������������
���
��@���
��
�	��)


���
�
��
��
�
�������������
�����
�	�����
��

����
�
)�,)�*�
���3����	���,�D����0��	������

��	��)
��,)��)����0�����������
�	���,��
�	�
������
��
������-����
��
��
�
���:B44�?��
��449����

���,��
3�0��
�*��
�	D�

N�
���5�������	�

�����)
��0����,�5�������)���

����
�
��������/
����03���	�����)�
��)
��
�
	@�
�
�����
��3�03�/
��
�
�	�

��D�

N��

����
��	�
����3�
�	���	�
����3�
�����
��	�/��)��)��	�5���������/���������%���	��)���
�
���3�
����)�����
��
�
	����/�
.D�/)�
��������

3��)���������0��	������

��	�03�
��

����
��6��
���
����������D�

N��)��	�5����������
.���
�������5������
�0�������������
����)
�,��
	
��
�����
�	�����,
��������
0��	������

��	��)
��,)��)����0�����������
�����
��
0���	���,��
�	������
���������
������D�

N��)��	�5���������)
�������,�����
���
	5�
�����������������
��0��	�5�
���3�
�	��)
���)�
��

�����
��.��3���,�����
������
�����
�
	5�
���������������)������,
��3����
��

�
�	���,�
��	���	�
��)��
 
0��
���E�
����5�D�

N��)�
��/����0�������,�����
������
�������)��*�
���3������
�
���
�	�,
���	/
��
-��������
��
0���
�
0
��E

��
,���3������
3�0��
�*��
�	D�

N��)�
��/����0��������
�
��	�����	�
��.���������/��)�����"D�/)�
��������

3��)���������0��
	������

��	�03�
�>���	�B��.�����������D�

N��)�
����������
����
0���
	5�
������
������)�
��)D�/)�
��������

3��)���������0��	������

��	�
03�
� �
��)�6��
�������������D�
�	�

N��
�����

5�����
���)
5��0���������	�
�	@�/)�
��
��
��
�
��-�

�

�)�������������.��)��������3��
	���)�������/��,�������1�

• ����
�����	���������	�
�	��)
���)���
�,�
,������
���	�/��)�����������3������,)��
���
		
��������������
�	

	�����3@�I
����������������	�)�
������������	����
��
���)���������
F-�>�
��%
����@��)�3���,,����	�I
���5�������	�

����F���
�
�

����
�
������������5
,��@�
�	�������)
���)����
���)���	�,����
�)�
��)
���)���
�	�
��
����)
����
������
��
0�����	���<�-�-�

���
�	�/
��
=�

�����
�	�)�,)�
-��)�3�

�����	��)���
����
�����
������)��������
0����I������5������
�0�������������
���
�)
�,��
	
��
�����
�	�����,
����F@������	�
��,��)
���)�����
����������
�5�	��,�
�
������5������
�0�������)���	�0�����
�	�)�,)�
-�6��/
��
������,,����	��)
���)��

55



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#*�

�

�

���%�0����3�<
�.�3��5�
C

�)��,��
���������)
��,)�����)����
�=����/
����	�5���������
�
����
����)���	�
����0�������	�
�	�������5��3@����)��)
���)���/�����
�5�	���
%�����
����
�����3����
	
�������)
�,�������)���

.���/)��)�

����)�
����3�	������������
�
�	����0�3��	��)���)�
�C��
�D�

• :
����)��
��
/
3�������
��	��)��
�*��
��������
������	�

��������/
��
�����/)�����
�������,������)
���)���	��������
�*��
��
�����

��
�������������)������)�	@��5���������
���5�
0��1�I#�����������
���	��	����	�������
�������������)���������������������
��������
��	���������������	������
�)������������
�����
�����	����������	�����	��
��	������
�
����	���	��������/�����	
�	����-�
�)�	�������

���������������
������	�
����
	���������		������
�����	���9	���������������
��������
��������
������
�����
���	�
��������
�����������	���	�����)���������	����7D�

• ���
��
�
������	��,���
�)�,)�*�
���3�	�5��������������0���
	��
5
��
0������

0�������3�������������
������
���	�����
������	D�
�	�

• �)����������3�������
�5�
3�����
�
����������1�����
�C�
�����,��)���	�0�������	�	�
�	�
��5��������
5���������-�

�)�������/��,����������
�	�
���	������/�
����,,����	�03��)��������.�

��.�/��)�
�)��������31�

• ?
.���)�������3���
��
�0���������
������/)��

0��

�����)�����
���
�
�L��
.��������

�
I���/)��F�
�	���
�I)�/����,FD�

• �����	�

�������
�
���	������)���	�0���


����������)������������D�

• 4���
�����������)��.�3�L��
�3�������F���%��
��������,,������)
�����)��
���
�
�

��
�,��
�	��5���/)����

������)��/
�����������-�?�����
��,��)���	�0��
�����)�
0����
����
���,��)���
�5�������������
������
���	�����
�	��)����5�
������@�
��������
0����
����
,��D�

• 4��
,3�
�	�������������������

����
���,�/
�����)���	�0�������	�	D�

�)�
��/
��
�	�,
�����������������
0����/)��)�
�
���	�����5��/��/���	�0��
�������	����
�	��
.������0�

	-�6��/
����,,����	��)
���
�5������������
���������
/
����������)
	��,��
�	�
���	�����5��/�@�
�	��)
���)��������
��,�����%�����,�������
	���������������5��3��
���������
��
���	����D��

• �����������)
���)���

����
��������
������/�
�������


�/�3�	�����	������
���������
��

�
	����/�
.��
�
���3-�6��/
����,,����	��)
���)�3��)���	�
����0��
0�������
����,�
����)����
����
��
���
���C��

�����

�3�����
�
�����
���0�
0
����
������3���
��3�
�

,��3�
���	����
���
�I �,)���
����F�<�)��������/��)�
���	����
��
0�5�=-��)�3�������)
��
I
���5�������	�

���������

����
�
��������/
����03���
�����)�
��)
��
�
	M��������
���)
��������,)�
�	��)���	�0����
��,�)���	-���)���������$�
�	��������/
����
�
�
,������/)��)��
3�������,�
�0����
��	�/
�����)���	�0�������	�	�����)
��

56



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��# �

�

�


��3���	��
��
�
����
�
��
�������,�����/)�
����������

,�	����0���

����
��	���)�
�
�)
��03�
�
	D�

• 6��/
�������03�������)
��I
	�*�
��F���
����������
�����,������@��	��
������
�	�
I��,�����
���
	5�
����������F�	�	���������	���
��,�����,)1������
	��)�������/��,�/�
��
��,,����	�C��I��
��,���F���
���
�	�	������

���,�I���
	5�
����������FD�

• �����
��5�����
�������	����0�������	�
�	-�6��/
����,,����	��)
��,
�
��
��5�	�����
�
���������
��,��%�����,�������
�	�5��/����
���	���������������%�����,����������	�����
���	�������)���
��������������
���������-��

	���������	#��+
�
�������
����
�.��

����������3�2������

,���
���/
�����
����������
�
0�������
�	����,����
,3@�/)�
��
�

����
0���
�	�������
��@��������
�0��������)���
�5���������	�����

����	����
,3�<�-�-�
,���

���,����
����������������/��

0������
,3=�����)����
�����)�
��
�	$�
���/�
�
�
��������-��)��	

��������3�/�
	��,�����)�/������)��0�%�0���/-�

��5�
� $�	���������	�#�

����/
�����
����������)
��

���
�
0������	�
����3��
�	����,����
,3��
�
���������������
�@�/)�
��

�
���
0�3��

����
0��1�

N��)�����
���������
�3��%�����)�
��������)�
�
���%�����,�)�
�����/�
.��
��)
��,)��)���
�
��������
�
��/����/�
.D�

N��)��������
��������0��,
�$�3�,
��������0���	� �
��
�	���/�
��
��������@����)�
�	�
����3��)
��,)�
����	������3��
���	�
����3��)
��,)��
����
��
�����
�	��

����
�D�

N��)��������
��������
�3�����	�
���5�
�	������������0���	� �
��
�	���/�
��
����������
�
��
�	�
����

���
���������
��������������������	��D��
�

N�
�3���)�
�����
�0���������	�����

����	����
,3�������	��D�

N��)�
��������	������

��	��)
���)���
�5���������	�����

����	����
,3����������������
��3���
��0���
�
����)���
��3��

����
0��@��)��	�5����������)
��������
����	���)������
�����������
�����������)�
�3�����-�

4��
,3��
���/
�����
���������/�������3�0�������	�
�	�/)�
������
��0��	������

��	��)
���)�3�

��
�

���5�
3��
�����3�
��	�����	�����)���
����>

��/�
.�E�
����5�-�

�

�)�
��/
�������	�

0�������������
������3�����2�
�	�	�����

����	����
,3�/��)�'"A�
���
�����	���������)�����)���
��*��������
�
����������
��
�	����3�"A�
,
����-� �/�5�
@�
�
�3������
��
������)���
��������
����)
	�������
5�
���
�	������
��@�
����������
0���/-��

• �)�
��/�
�������
���
0�����)�����
��������������

���,�/
����
�	����
,3��
���������
���
��

�����

�

�
�
�	�
�3���,
��5�����
�����������������-�������

�����

�������
/�
��
������������0��������
0�����
��)���
��
�
�)D�

• ���)����,3����)�
��
�
�
�0���	�,�������
�	�������

������)���	�0�����
��	����������
�����
��
��

�
��
�	�
/
3��
���
���	����
��������������<'������
	���
��,,����	=D�

57



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#$�

�

�

• �
����	�5����������)
��/���	�0��
0������,���

�����,�����
������
,3�/���	�
�*��
��
���������������)


���
������������
��������������������)


���
@���
���
�	����)����,3-��
���
�������������)�/��)���������	�������	�����)����
��/���	���
��
������)������
���
)
��0�����
������	-�����
�
�����@��)�
����������

��3����
�����������)������������)���
�����3��
��������������
����D�

• ��
�*�
���3���������
3������

�����������)����,�����-,-�0���
��@�������

����D�

• �		�
�
���
���������)���
�	����������0��,
�$�3�,
����
��������5�)������<�-�-�/
����
����������������=D�

• ������/��)��)��
0����3������C���
����
����������)���	�0��5��/�	�������5��3�����)
���)�3�
�
���
%���Q���������������������
,3�
�	���������D�

• >��
������
��
�����	�����

����	����
,3�����
��������	�	�F��/
����)���
��
�
�)����
�
�
���
��
���
�������
�������

����D�

• ���	���
����
�����������������0���	��
��	������������3�
0�����)�����
�5������-�
6���
�
����������0���
�5�	�	������
���4�,���)�
�	����
�/
3��)
�����	�
����3�
���5
���
����)��������������

���	��)�����
��������-��)��0�����������	����0���
	�����

�<�-,-�
�)�
��
����
,3G=D�

• 4%�����,�/
��������������)���	�0��	���,��)�����/�
�	���5���������
�����	���
���/�
����������������)���

�
D�
�	�

• ��3�/
����������
,3��
�����3��)���	�0��� ��
�
	3�/)�
��
��
��
�
��-�:��,
��
�
������������)�
���E��)���	�
����0�������	�
�	�
�	��)��0������5�
������
���������
���	@�/)��)�
��)�������
�5�	��,����
,3���
��)��,
�	��
����5�
���������)����������
�
0��,
����
��

����
�-�

B�����	�����/)������.�

��/��)��)��������3�)�,)��,)��	��)�������/��,�������1�

• �����
���
0�������
,3��
���/
����
��
��	�����)�����)����,���@����������$����������

�	�����
����)
�,�����
��D�

• �)����������	����
�������)�
��3@�/)����������
���,��)�������3F���
���
�������
�����
���
�3�
������	�
�5�	���������0�����	�������0���	�)�
��
�	���/�
��
������������
���	����
�
��
�	�
����
���
���������
��������������������	�������
�������@���,,����	�
�)
���)������
�����

����
����,,�����������)���)�
�C��
�@�
�	���	��	@������0�3���
��)��
��
�����5���������3�

������)������-��)�����)�
��3�����	��)
���)���
�*��
���������
�
5�
��	�03��)���)

���I/)�
��
�
���
0�3��

����
0��F@�0���
��
�
���
0�3�
�

����
0����
��0��	������������	���������/
����,,����	��)
���)����������)���������3���
������	��������
��	�
���
���
�����

�)�
��)
��
�
�*��
�����D�

• 4��
,3��
����
����/
�������03���������
���5��3�	�����

,��,
�
��
�
��3����,�

���@�

���)��*�����0���/�������

���1��

58



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��##�

�

�

8;�����	��������
�
�������<$%%9������������	�#��	������9��	������	���
������
�����
�	�����
���������������	����
�	��������
�
���#��������
�����	�����	�
���	�)����	���������
�����	��������������	�����)������������������	���	������

���������;���
����������������	������������������	������	/������������	���
��
��
9
�����������	���	
������;���
�����������������	���9�	���

�
�
���
�����������9�����
����	�����
����	��������	�����
������
�
��;���
���
�����������������	����������	����
������
�
�	����	�����
����������	���	�����������
��������������)�	�	�#��	��
���������������������������
��������������1;=4������������	���	
��	��	�������
�������������������������������������������������������	��

�����������

����

����������
���������������
�������	������������������	�����7��

• �����������)
���)����
��,
5��)�
53����)
�������/
����0���,����	�
��
����
������
���
,3�0�������������)
���������������
��
�
����
���<�-,-��


�2-�-��
�	��
0��@�/��)�
�)����/�*�
����3�
����
��	����?B>��
�	��)��)�,)�*�
����3�
����
��	����5

��������
,3�
�
�	����,��������=-��)���/
�������
��0���,�����


3�����)���
���� ��


�)3-�����
�%
�����,�5��������
��	���
�����1��)����������0����0����������������/
�����������
��
�������������L��)����
���)���	�
���,������)
���)��)�
��������0����������
0����
�
����)�����)�����
,3��)
��)
��0�������	�����
�	�����)����
���������@�
�	��)
���)�
�����

���0��
���
��
����
����
5��,����
��3����,���
�������5�
��
�	����,���/��
�	�����
���
5�
,���

/��
��
�
��-����)��*������
����


���,���
�����/
����������)�����


���
���3��
��

�����
�5��,���0��
���
��3@�
�	�/����������������	�����03����!�C��)����
��
�)���	�
���,������)���%�������������
�����B���
�
�����>
���������<�B>�=�
�	��B��M��
/�
.�
�	��)���	��
;�
����/
����
��
�
����
��@�
�	�	�/���
3���������
��
����
������
���
,3-���)����
������	������	���)��	������������
������B���
�
�����>
�����3�<�B>=����
�)��,����

31�I����
����
�
0���������


���,�
���%�	���
�
�������
����������������
������)��
����


������3��
�F-�

• E�����

����	����
,3��������
�I,�5��F�
�	��
�	C���������
���

0������������

����@��
�
I���
,3��
���/
���F-��
�	C����������0��
�	���	�3�

����3�

@�0���03�
�	���,���,�
�
���
���
��,@�
�����
�	�
��3����,@�����03�
����)��C��%����������

����D�

	���������	,����������5�
����
�����
�����.
�
���

����������3�'������

,�������
��
0���/
�����
�
,�����-��)��	

��������3�/�
	��,����
�)�/������)��0�%�0���/-�

��5�
� #����	�	������,�

��������

,������
��
0���/
�����
�
,�����@�/
�����
�
,������	�5����������/����0��
��
�����	�/)�
������
��0��	������

��	��)
�1�

N������
�����A�����)���
��
�
����
��
�	��������	�����)�������
�������
�	$�
����

���������)��
	�5���������

��
�C���	��
�
��3���	�
�	����
��	����
��3D�

N������
������@�	����������
�	��%�
5
�����/
�����

��
����	��
�
��3���	��������@�/)�
��
�

����
0��-�

N�����/
�����
�
,������	�5����������������
�	���������
��������)
���������
����
?
�
,��������
��-�

�

59



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#,�

�

�

�����)�
	�����)����/)���%�
����	�
���������������	�
�	��)
���)����A���,�
��/
������
��/�L��)��������	�	��)�����)
��
,
��	�����
��������/��)��)�������3�
��/����
���)����/)��
	��
,
��	�<��	��	��)���
���

�	�����
�3��
�������0���)��
�
������
������
	��
,
������=-�

����������%�
����	�03��)�������������������)�������3������	�	1�

• �)�����������

,��������A�
����	$
��3���	��
��
�
������	�
��,�
�����
������$���

������������
�0�����������,)-������������

,�������"A����
�
	��3�

�)��5
0��D�

• E����������/
�����)���	������

5���	���
������������

��/
���������-��E�����
��
�)���	�0��
���%�����,�������/)�
�������0��D�

• ������������)
�����/����)
�����,�5����)
���
�����	�������	��M��)
5��
�/
�����
�����3�

��
�)�	�����)��-�

B�����	�����/)������.�

��/��)��)��������3�����	��)�������/��,�������1�

• �)�������

,����������)��
��3����,���������
�������
�	�	����������/
�����)���	�0��
��������)���
���
�
�
,
�����/)��)��)��
�����
0����3����
��

�����

��
����
�����;�	,�	@�


�)�
��)
���)��
�)��5���������
��3����,������

��,�/)
��
���

�����0��
������3�
�
��������������
5��
������D�

• ��A����
�5�
3���/���,�
����
�
����-�?
;�
������
��������
�;��������)�
���)����3������
)
5��
�)��5�	����)�)�,)�
���,�
����)
���)��-����	�������
�
����)����
����
,�D�

• ������/��)�
��

����4�5�
������
����
����	���������	�
�������
����?
�
,������
��
��<�)��
�*��
�������

��������������5�
�	�03��)����
�������	������=D�

• �)����
���5�
����)
���������������,�<�������
,������,��������)��
���������
�	�
)��������0�
���������=-��
�����
�����$��3
��3����
����������
���/
0���)�
��
�	�
�����
����3�
��/����
����*����

���������

0�������������:���)

�<���	�03����)���
B���/
0�������)���
���
���
�	�������
3�
�
0�5��
���/���
��
0����3��
�����)����
���
�
�	�����=-��)���
���� ��


�)3����	����
�)�
��)��,)�D�

• �)�������3�	������������
�)�,)�����,)�����
��
0����3�0���)�

.�
������

,��3���������
����)��	�5�������������)�������
�	���������/)�����������
�/
�����
�
,�����-���)��
���

���������
������,���

��3�)
5�����)�,
�
��
���,�����
������
�
����
��
0����3$����
����)
�,���)
���)����
��
���,���������	�5��������$�����
������-�

60



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#'�

�

�

,!#����������.�
�(A����
�����	�����
,
��	�/��)��)����
��
�
������	��
��
��
�	��!A�	��
,
��	-��)��
�
;�
��3�L�!!A�C����)�
�	�	�F��
��/�
��
��
�	��)�3�	�	�F��.��/-��)�����������������
��,�
/
�����

�3����������
�
����
�
���5
��������������)
���)���������
���������-�

�)���
������������
��)����	��
,
����,�/��)��)��7�6��/�
�1�

• �)���������������
��������������<�����@������@����������@�5�
�������=��)���	�0��
�.�3�
��	��
��
�<'�
��������=D�

• �)��*�
����3�
�	����������������/
����0���,����������)������0
��.�������

��
�
�)���	�0�������	�	�
��
����	��
��
�<��
��������=D�

• 6�	��
��
���)���	�0�������	�	���1�����
����)
�,������,
������-,-����.�	����
���/
0���
���
,3��
�	�������<����,,������=D�
�	�/
�����

����
�
�����03�
�
	�
�	�

���<��
��,,������=-�

��)�
�.�3���������
����)��������
5��
�����)��7�6�������	�	1�

• ����
�����	������,,����	���)
���)������	��
��
���)���	����.�0�3��	����
������
,��
�
�
���3�,�5�����
����,���
�������@�
�	������	�
�
���
������
,���
�
��	�
��
���
��

���

�����	��
��
�����������-��)�����������
�	�����)

������
�
�������
��)
������
�)���
�����	���
��
�
������	��
��
�D��)��*�
����3�����������
��/
����,���

��	�03�
)����)��	D�
����@�
��3����,�
�	����������,���,�
�������������
��/
���D��)��*�
����3�
����������
��/
�����
�	�����	@�������	��������������	�
��
�	�)�/��)������
��
�
����
��	��
��
����
��
��
���

���3��)��*�
����3����/
�����)
������
�
,�	�/��)����)��
���)�
��3�

�
-�

• �����
��
������)��7�6��
������,,����	������0�����/���	��
��
����1��)����,
,������
/��)��/��
$�������
������
�����	���/�������
�	��)��
�/�����,��������0������
��5��5�	�����)��	���5�
3�����)��
��������)������D�
�	�I/)��)�
��
�5���������
������

3F-��

61



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#/�

�

�

���
���-���1�
���������
��

�"����1�
���������
�
�

 !�+�������.�

�0��"��"
���
%
��
���������"��%��

���.��"
��������
	�����0���
���
�����������������&����.����
&
���%�%�
-�5����������"
�

&
������
����
����
�����%��������5
������5�
B�

5�
>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �

�

$!�	�
��
����&��
������&�
0������"
�
-�����.������
0����
����
���%�
��
0��"����"
������
��B�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �

#!�+�������.�

�0��"��"
�,�������
��������
������"
������
��B�

5�
>�

62



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#7�

�

�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �

,!�+������"�&
�������"
�����������������
��������)
��������
��
.�����.�
�"
������
��B�

5�
>�

&�>�

;��
�������
���	�)����	��
���
������
����
����
���	����	�)�����?�� �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �

63



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#2�

�

�

�

�
�"������1�
���������
�
�

 !��
�
�����������"��%��"
��
��������������
�	����:���	;�

�)��,���

��
��
�
�)�����)��������������	�����3�������/��)��)���������
����
�
	�5������,�/
�����
�
,�������
�������������
	�
�����������������	��F���)

��
���/
����
�*��
�������<
���
��������=�
�	��
�5�	��,�
���5���������%�0����3�<�-�-�
������5�
C�
�5�������)���	������������������
/

	=-�

�

@��������	���
�������
�����	������	����A�

5�
>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � �

�

;
����	�������������
������������������������	������	����A� � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �

$!�	�
%
��
���������"��%��"
����	�

�)�
��

���)
����������������)���
���

�	�
��
�
�)�����)������@�
�������/�1�

�= ����	�����3��)��,���

���
�	�0���	

��������������
��/
���������@�

�)�
�
�)
��
��������	�����3��)��������������)����,3<�=�
�	$�
��
�����3<�=�

64



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��#(�

�

�


�����
��	�/��)��)������D�

�= ����	�����3��������
��/
�������������	����
������Q������
���/���
�0��)�
�

,��
�	���
�����
���/
�����
�
,�������
��������D�
�	�

2= ��������
����C�����
��3����,�
�	�
�������������
�������$�	����������$�
�%�
5
�����/
�����
.�����
������/
���������@�
�	��������
���)
���)��
*�
�����������/
����

����,��/����0��
���
	�	-��

�

@��������	���
���������	���		������	����A�

5�
��;���	���
����������	����������
���������	���		������	����>�

&���;���
��	���
���������	���	����������
����������	���		������	����>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �

�

*	�����	����������	��������
������
������������������
����������������
�
��	����������	���		������	����A� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� �

�

#!����	�	������ �

����������3�������������)����

��,���
��
�
�)��)
���%�����,�
�	���/�������
�	�������	�
���������
��/
����	�5���������/����,���

��3�0�������
��	@�
�
�5�	�	��)
���)���
����
��������3�/��)���)�
��������������)�������
�	��)��
0�
��,)F�����
��E�5���������>

��/�
.-��)�������3�
�������)
�������)
��
��)�
������@������	�������	�/��)����)������@��
3�������0����
�����	@�/)�
�����
)
��0����	������

��	��)�
��

�����
,��,��)�
��
�������/
�����
�
,������
�
�
���3-��

65



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,*�

�

�

�

@��������	���
����������������$A�

5�
>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �

�

@��������)��������	���	��������
�����
����
����
������/�������������
�������$A� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� �� �� �� � � �� �� �� � � �� �� ��
� � � �

�

,!����	�	������$�

����������3���
�����������
��)�,)�*�
���3�	�5���������	�
��,�0��)�����
�����
�������
�	����

����
���)
���-��)��������3����������	�5����������
���
�
�
��
���/�/
�����
�
,�������
���������������������
	5�
������
��������)��
��5�
�������
�	����
��
���	����-�

�

@��������	���
����������������(A�

5�
>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �

66



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��, �

�

�

�

@��������)��������	���	��������
�����
����
����
������/�������������
�������(A� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �

�

'!����	�	������#�

����������3�2������

,���
���/
�����
����������
�
0�������
�	����,����
,3@�
/)�
���

����
0���
�	�������
��@��������
�0��������)���
�5���������
	�����

����	����
,3�<�-�-�,���

���,����
����������������/��

0������
,3=����
�)����
�����)�
��
�	$�
���/�
��
��������-�

�

@��������	���
����������������BA�

5�
>�

&��>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �

�

@��������)��������	���	��������
�����
����
����
������/�������������
�������BA� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �

�

/!����	�	������,�

����������3�'������

,�������
��
0���/
�����
�
,�����@���
������,�/
����

67



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,$�

�

�

�
�
,�������
���������/)�
������
��0��	������

��	��)
�1�
����
�����A�����)��
�
��
�
����
��
�	��������	�	�
��,������
�������
�	����

������)
����

��

����	��
����
��	����
��3�
�	�
��3���	D������
�������$�	����������$��%�
5
�����
/
�����

��
����	�
�	�
��3���	D�
�	������
��������)
���������
����
?
�
,��������
���

���
�5�	�	-�

�

�

@��������	���
����������������+A�

5�
>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �

�

@��������)��������	���	��������
�����
����
����
������/�������������
�������+A� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �

�

�

7!������5�������%�
-�����.�0���
����
��%����
C�
&
����
���%����������
��
0���
�����.
�
���

4��5����%�����,�/
����������)
5��0�����	�������	�/��)����)���	���
���=���
�����
�������
��������
�����	��������
��0���,�����
0�����
�
�C	�5��������������	����
�
0���'C��<�,��!=-�

�

68



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,#�

�

�

�

���@��������	����������������������
�����
�
���
���
�������������	��
����������	�
	�9��)��������A�

�

5�
�������������
���
��	��
�������>�

&��������	���	���������
���
��
���
�������>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

�

���@��������	���
����������
����������
��

��������
�������������
�������
���
�����
�
���
���
�������	������
�������������
�����

�

������	���	���

��	�A�

�

5�
���������������
����������
��	������������>�

&��������	���	�����������
����������
��	��������������>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � �� ��

�

2!������5�������%��
0����
��%����
&
�����.����0���
�����.
�
���
%�������
��

�)�
�������/�������)
5��0�����	�������	�����
0�����
�0���,�	�5�����	�
��/
����
�
�
,�������
��������������	�����
0���'C��<�
,����=-���

�

���@��������	���������������������
�
�
���
���
�������������	��
����������	�

69



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,,�

�

�


�
�����������������������
A�

5�
���������������
�
���
��	��
�������>>��

&��������	���	���������
���
��
���
�������>>��

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �

���@��������	���
����������
����������
��

��������
�������������
�������
������������
�
���
�������	�����)��������������
�����

�

������	���	���

��	�A�

5�
���������������
����������
��	������������>�

&��������	���	�����������
����������
��	��������������>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �

���*	�����	����������	�
���
�������	�����������������������������/�
��������

����������	�
�
�����������������������
A��

5�
�����	���	�������	���	������	�
���
�
�������������
���	�)������
��������
���C�	����	�

������

�����>�

&�>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
��
�����������/�����	������	�
�����
�
�������?� �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � �

70



�
������
�����	�������
�	��������������

3��������
�����
���
��,'�

�

�

(!����������.��"
�	����

���	���
�����/)��)�
��)��
����
����������������������������
�	�/)��)�
��)��
������
3����	����0����	����	�����)������
�@�.�3���
��
�
������	��
��
��

��
���0��
���
��	��
�)�3�

����
������
��?�����
��,�B���
��<�
,��22=-��

�

@��������	���
��������/�����	��	��������������	
A�

5�
�>�

&��������	���	���������/�����	��	��������������	
��	����
�������>�

����
���	�)����	��
���
�?� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��
� � � ��

�

 *!�+������"�&
�����%���"
������
���B� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �

71



�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
��


�
	
��
�
���
��
��
��
�
�



3
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�,
/
�

�

�
�
�


�
�
�-
�8
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
%�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
5
9

��
��
�
�
�

	
�
�)
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�

6�
�

	
	
��
��
�
��
)
�
��


��
��
0
;�
��
��
�
��
	
��
��
��
�
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�2
-�
@�
�)
�
��
�
���
/
��
,
��
�
�
��
��
��

�


��
�
��
/
�

�
�,
�5
�
�
��
�

�
�
0
;�
��
��
,
��
�
��



�
��
�
�


�

�



.
�B
�
3


��
��
��
�-
�

�
�
5
�

� 
,
�

�"


��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�%
�
��
�
5
9

�
��
�
.
��
�
��
�


�
�%
��
�	
�
�)
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�



5
9

��
�
��

�


�
��
�
�%
�
��
�
5
9

��
��
�
�

�


��
��
�
.
��
�
��
��


�
�

�
�

4
%
��
��
�
,
�

�

�
�
�
��
	
��
�
/
�

�
�

2
"
�
�

2
�
(
�

2
(
!
�

�
�
8
�

�
(
!
�

�
(
&
�

�
(
2
�

�
(
�
�

�
8
�
�

�
�)
�

��
�
�
��

�

��
	
�

�
	
�

�
�
�
��

3
��
��
3�

�
�
,


��
5�
��
�
�


��
��
�
�
��
�
�,
)
0
�
�

�
�
,
�


�
,
�
�
�



��
�
�
�	
�
5�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

R
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

:
�
��
/


3
��


�)
�



�
	
��





3
�

�
	
5
�

�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�:
�
��
/


3
��
��
�
��

R
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

:
�
��
/


3
��


�)
�



�
	
��





3
�

6�
�


��
��
�
�:
�
��
/


3
��
�

��
�

�
	
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
R
�

�
�

�
�

�

:
�
��
/


3
��


�)
�



�
	
��





3
�

�
	
5
�

�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�:
�
��
/


3
��
��
�
@�



�
	
�

	
5
�

�
�
�5
��
�


��
��
�


��
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

�
�

�
�

:
�
��
/


3
��


�)
�



�
	
��





3
�

�
�
�
��

�
�

0
�
�
��


	
5
�

�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�


��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
R
�

�

�
��
�

?


3
�0
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
	
��



.
��
,
��
��
�
�
��

�
�

�
R
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

6�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��


3
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
,
��
�

�
�



�
0
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
5
�	
�
�0
�
��
�
�
�



��
�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

��
�

��

��
��
��
��
0
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��


�
	
��
�
�
��
3
�
�
�
�@
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

�
�

�
�

72



�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
��


�
	
��
�
���
��
��
��
�
�



3
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�,
7
�

�



5
9

��
�
��

�


�
��
�
�%
�
��
�
5
9

��
��
�
�

�


��
��
�
.
��
�
��
��


�
�

�
�

4
%
��
��
�
,
�

�

�
�
�
��
	
��
�
/
�

�
�

2
"
�
�

2
�
(
�

2
(
!
�

�
�
8
�

�
(
!
�

�
(
&
�

�
(
2
�

�
(
�
�

�
8
�
�

0
�
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
E
�
�

��
�

��

�
��
	
�
�
��

6�
�


��
��
�
��
�
/
��
��
	
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�
	


��
�
�
�0
�
��
,
�

0
�
���
�0
3
��
�

�
)
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
@�


�
	
��
�
�)
�
��
��
�

�
�



�
��


��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

R
�

�

��
�

��

�
��
	
�
�
��

6�
�


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�)
�
��


�


��

�
�

�
R
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

��
�

��

�
��
	
�
�
��

�
�
�
�	
��

�
5
�
�
��
	
�
5
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


��


	
;

��
�
��
�


�)
�

 
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

��
�

��

�
��
	
�
�
��

6�
�


��
��
�
�/


��

�
�
�
5
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

R
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��

�
��
	
�
�
��



�
	
�4
�
,
���
)
�

 
�

�
�

,
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�


��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

5


��
�
�
�


�


�-
��
��
�
�



�
�
�



�
��
�
�0
�
�

	
;

��
�
��
<



�)
�

�
�)


�
�"
�
�
�
=�

�

�
�
��
)
�
��


�


��
�	
�
��
�
�
��

5


��
�
�
��

�


�

�
	
��
�	
�

�


.
��


�
�
��
�
�
��

5


��
�
�
��

�


�<
4
�
,
���
)
�

 
�

�
�

,
�
=�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

��
�

��


�
��
	
�
�
��
�

6�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�



��
?
�	
	
��
��
%
�)
�
��
��


��

�
�

�
�

R
�

R
�

R
�

R
�

�

��
�

��


�
��
	
�
�
��
�

�
�
/
�	
�
5
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��



�
�

�

�


	
3
��
�

�
�
�
	
�

/
)
��
)
�/
���
��
�
�

�


��
��



��
��
��

�
�

�
�

R
�

R
�

�
�

�

��
�

��


�
��
	
�
�
��
�

6�
�


��
��
�
��
�)
�
�
��


�
	
��

�
�
�
��
	
��

S
�)
�
�

�
�

�
�

R
�

R
�

�
�

�

�


��
�
�


��
�

�
	
�

�

�
%
��
��
3
��
�
��


��
�
�


��
,

�
	
��



�
��

��
��
�
�
��


0
��
��

�
R
�

�
�

R
�

�
R
�

�
R
�

�
4
�
B
�
��
��
�

6�
�


��
��
�
��
%�
��
��
,
��
�
	
�
��

�


��
�
��


��
��

R
�

�
�

�
R
�

R
�

R
�

R
�

�

�



�


��

6�
�


��
��
�
��
%�
��
��
,
��



�


��
��
�
�

�
��
�0


��
)
��
,
�

�
�

�
��
/
)
��
)
��
�

�
��


��
�


���
�



�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
	
�

�
�
/
��
��
�
��

�
�

�
�

R
�

�
�

�
�

H


��
�4
�

�
�
�
�

��
	
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
	
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�,
)
0
�
�

�
�
,
�

�
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

West London Waste Plan 

 
DRAFT Proposed Submission Version 
 
 
11th November 2011 
 
Produced for 
London Borough of Hillingdon  
 
Prepared by 
Mouchel 
 
Export House 
Cawsey Way 
Woking 
GU21 6QX 
UK 
 
T  01483 731 368 
F  01483 731 005 
 
 
 
 
 

75



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

i 

Document Control Sheet 
Project Title West London Waste Plan 

 
Report Title DRAFT Proposed Submission Version 

 

Revision 2.0 
 

Status Draft 
 

Control Date 11th November 2011 
 

Record of Issue 
 

Issue Status Author Date Check Date Authorised Date 
1.0 Draft M. Dale 07/10/11 B. Rounsefell 12/10/11 R. Prescott 14/10/11 

2.0 Draft M. Dale 09/11/11 B. Rounsefell 10/11/11 R. Prescott 11/11/11 
 

Distribution 
 

Organisation Contact Copies 
London Borough of Hillingdon Shaun Jarmai electronic 

London Borough of Hillingdon Brian Whitely electronic 

 

76



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

ii 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report is presented to the London Borough of Hillingdon in respect of the West 
London Waste Plan and may not be used or relied on by any other person or by the 
client in relation to any other matters not covered specifically by the scope of this 
document. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the report, Mouchel Limited is 
obliged to exercise reasonable skill, care and diligence in the performance of the 
services required by the client and shall not be liable except to the extent that it has 
failed to exercise reasonable skill, care and diligence, and this report shall be read and 
construed accordingly. 

This assessment has been prepared by Mouchel Limited. No individual is personally 
liable in connection with the preparation of this document. By receiving this report and 
acting on it, the client or any other person accepts that no individual is personally liable 
whether in contract, tort, for breach of statutory duty or otherwise. 

77



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

iii

Executive Summary 
1. For some time, both the European and UK Governments have been concerned 

that we are sending too much of our waste for incineration or to landfill – not 
enough is being recycled and re-used.  

2. Consequently, the Government now requires every local authority to produce a 
plan which details how it will deal with waste generated in its area over the next 15 
years. These plans make up a part of the authority’s Local Development 
Framework and show which factors they will take into account when deciding on 
whether to grant planning permissions for new waste facilities. 

3. In London, the Mayor has set out in the London Plan (2011) projections of how 
much municipal waste and commercial and industrial waste is likely to be 
generated in the capital over the next 20 years. Each borough is then allocated an 
apportionment of that waste that it is required to actively plan for managing and 
has to ensure that sufficient sites are identified to meet the apportionment targets. 
By meeting the apportionment London will dramatically improve its reliance on 
landfill and move towards being self-sufficient. 

4. In west London, six London boroughs have agreed to co-operate to produce a 
single waste plan for their combined area. When finalised, this plan will form part of 
each of their respective Local Development Frameworks. The West London Waste 
Plan details the amount for the different types of waste expected to be produced in 
west London up to 2026; identifies the current sites available to help deal with that 
waste; identifies the current shortfall of facilities needed, and proposes a set of 
further sites which might be used for waste facilities in the future. 

5. The West London Waste Plan has been prepared with the objective of ensuring 
compliance with the waste apportioned to the six boroughs as detailed in the 
London Plan (2011). 

6. The report comprises six sections, covering: 

i. An introduction to the West London Waste Plan; 
ii. The Vision and Objectives of the Plan; 
iii. An explanation of what will be needed in the future to manage waste; 
iv. Details of the Proposed Sites for future waste management use; 
v. Policies to guide the determination of planning applications for new waste 

facilities, and 
vi. A short explanation of how the Plan will be monitored in future. 

78



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

iv 

7. The existing sites and proposed sites are: 

Table i: The proposed sites allocated for redevelopment 
Site 

Number 
Site Area 

(ha) 
Borough Description Site Type 

352 1.46 Brent Twyford Waste Transfer Station Existing 

1261 2.71 Brent Veolia Transfer Station, Marsh Road Existing 

309 1.15 Ealing Greenford Reuse & Recycling Site, Existing 

310 0.94 Ealing Greenford Depot, Greenford Road, Existing 

328 2.10 Ealing Quattro, Victoria Road, Park Royal Existing 

303 4.25 Hillingdon Victoria Road Transfer Station Existing 

353 3.11 Hounslow Transport Avenue Waste Transfer Station Existing 

342 3.67 Richmond Twickenham Depot Existing 

222 2.83 Harrow Council depot, Forward Drive Proposed 

244 3.12 Hillingdon Yeading Brook, Bulls Bridge Proposed 

2861 3.20 Hounslow Western International Market Proposed 

 

 

 

79



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

v 

Contents 
Document Control Sheet............................................................................................. i 
Executive Summary................................................................................................... iii 
Contents...................................................................................................................... v 
Figures & Tables....................................................................................................... vii 
1 The West London Waste Plan ........................................................................... 1 
1.1 Preparation of the Plan ........................................................................................ 1 
1.2 Why Is The West London Waste Plan Needed?................................................... 1 
1.3 Relationship with Other Planning Strategies and the Plan’s Status ...................... 2 
1.4 Sustainability Appraisal ........................................................................................ 5 
1.5 Community and Stakeholder Consultation ........................................................... 6 
1.6 Commenting on the Plan...................................................................................... 6 
1.7 Planning applications for waste management facilities......................................... 8 
1.8 West London Waste Authority.............................................................................. 9 
1.9 Cross boundary movement of waste .................................................................... 9 
1.10 Waste Minimisation ............................................................................................ 10 
2 Vision and Objectives of the Plan................................................................... 12 
2.1 Vision ................................................................................................................. 12 
2.2 Strategic Objectives ........................................................................................... 12 
3 Existing waste management and future waste management needs ............ 13 
3.1 Existing waste management .............................................................................. 13 
3.2 Municipal solid waste ......................................................................................... 13 
3.3 Commercial and Industrial Waste....................................................................... 14 
3.4 Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste ................................................ 15 
3.5 Hazardous Wastes............................................................................................. 16 
3.6 Wastewater and Sewage sludge........................................................................ 16 
3.7 Healthcare Waste .............................................................................................. 17 
3.8 Agricultural Waste.............................................................................................. 17 
3.9 Radioactive Waste ............................................................................................. 17 
3.10 Role of Landfill in the Disposal of Waste ............................................................ 17 
4 Future waste management .............................................................................. 19 
4.1 How much waste will need to be managed in west London?.............................. 19 
4.2 How much land is needed? ................................................................................ 19 
4.3 What kind of facilities will be needed?................................................................ 21 
4.4 Construction, demolition and excavation wastes ................................................ 21 
4.5 Hazardous wastes.............................................................................................. 22 
5 The Proposed Sites.......................................................................................... 23 
6 West London Waste Plan Policies .................................................................. 25 
6.1 Policy WLWP 1 – Safeguarding and protection of Existing sites......................... 25 
6.2 Policy WLWP 2 – Location of Waste Development ............................................ 25 
6.3 Policy WLWP 3 – Ensuring High Quality Development ...................................... 26 

80



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

vi 

6.4 Policy WLWP 4 – Decentralised Energy............................................................. 29 
6.5 Policy WLWP 5 – Sustainable Site Waste Management .................................... 29 
7 Monitoring of the West London Waste Plan................................................... 31 
8 Glossary ........................................................................................................... 34 
9 Appendices....................................................................................................... 43 
Appendix 1 - Sustainability Appraisal ..................................................................... 44 
Appendix 2: General Waste Treatment Facility Description .................................. 48 
Appendix 3: Borough waste arisings and apportionments ................................... 49 
Appendix 4: Details of Existing Waste Management Sites considered to have 

potential for re-development as waste management facilities ..................... 50 
Appendix 5: Details of Proposed New Sites with opportunity for developing waste 

management facilities...................................................................................... 55 
  

81



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

 
© Mouchel 2011 

vii 

Figures & Tables 
Figure 1-1: West London boroughs.................................................................................1 
Figure 1-2: The Waste Hierarchy ..................................................................................10 
Figure 3-1 - West London Waste Authority MSW management (2009/10) ....................14 
Figure 3-2 - C&I waste generation in west London by sector ........................................15 
Figure 3-3 - Fate of hazardous waste arisings from west London (2009) ......................16 
Figure 3-4 - Destinations where west London sends residual waste for landfill disposal 

(2009)....................................................................................................................18 
 
Table 1-1: Self-Sufficiency targets for London ................................................................2 
Table 1-2: Timetable for the development of the West London Waste Plan ....................2 
Table 3-1: WLWA management of MSW (2006-2010) ..................................................13 
Table 4-1: Quantity of waste forecast to be produced in west London and the 

apportionment figures from the London Plan (2011) for target years .....................19 
Table 4-2: West London Capacity Requirements for Target Years based on the 2011 

London Plan ..........................................................................................................20 
Table 5-1: Existing waste sites considered to have potential for redevelopment ...........23 
Table 7-1 - Monitoring programme for the West London Waste Plan............................32 
 
 

82



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 1 
 
 

1 The West London Waste Plan 
1.1 Preparation of the Plan 
1.1.1 The West London Waste Plan is being prepared jointly by the six west London 

boroughs of Brent, Ealing, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow and Richmond upon 
Thames. The area covered by the plan, and how it is split into its constituent 
boroughs is shown in Figure 1-1. 

 
Figure 1-1: West London boroughs 
 

1.2 Why Is The West London Waste Plan Needed? 
1.2.1 The West London Waste Plan (the Plan) will provide a planning framework for the 

management of all waste produced in the six boroughs over the next 15 years.  It is 
needed to comply with the Mayor’s London Plan (2011), which sets out targets for 
recycling and composting for waste from households, businesses and industry.  The 
London Plan (2011) also requires that the majority of waste generated in London is 
managed in London, so that the Capital moves towards waste self-sufficiency by 
2031. 

1.2.2 Currently, a significant amount of waste is transferred outside of London for 
treatment or disposal in landfill.  Table 1-1 shows the London Plan (2011) targets for 
the proportion of waste to be managed within London for various target years.  
Overall, the target states that the aim is to manage the equivalent of 100 per cent of 
London’s waste within London by 2031.  

83



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 2 
 
 

Table 1-1: Self-Sufficiency targets for London 
Waste stream 2015 2020 2031  
Municipal Solid Waste 45% 50% 60% 
Commercial & Industrial Waste  70%  
Construction, Demolition & Excavation  95%  
All wastes   100% 
 

1.2.3 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, London boroughs are 
required to replace their existing Land Use Plans (called Unitary Development Plans) 
with Local Development Frameworks.  Local Development Frameworks comprise a 
number of planning documents and must contain both specific policies for waste and 
sites identified for waste use.  These planning documents must be in general 
conformity with the London Plan; the Mayor of London’s planning strategy for the 
capital, in addition to national planning policy.  Before the Plan can be adopted it will 
be independently tested through a public examination to ensure it meets all of the 
key tests for a sound plan.  

1.2.4 The Plan will outline the proposed sites for waste management development in the 
plan area and provide a set of policies with which waste developments must 
conform.  The Plan will cover the London Plan (2011) apportionment targets outlining 
the amount of waste from households, business and industry required to be 
managed in the west London area up to 2026. The timetable for the production of the 
Plan and for its final adoption is shown in Table 1-2. 

Table 1-2: Timetable for the development of the West London Waste Plan 
Period Stage of development 
January - March 2009 Issues and Options Consultation 
February - March 2011 Draft Plan Consultation 
January - February 2012 Representations on Proposed Submission Version  
January 2013 Examination of the Plan  
May 2013 Adoption of the Plan by the west London boroughs 
 

1.3 Relationship with Other Planning Strategies and the Plan’s Status 

84



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 3 
 
 

1.3.1 The Plan is influenced by, and has to give consideration to, relevant national, 
regional and local policy in relation to waste development (both adopted and 
emerging).  

1.3.2 This Plan will be adopted, after Examination in Public and consideration of the 
appointed Inspector’s report, by each of the constituent boroughs.  It will take on the 
status of a statutory Development Plan Document, and its policies will be accorded 
considerable weight by each local planning authority and the Secretary of State in 
determining planning applications for waste management facilities within the plan 
area. 

85



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 4 
 
 

European Legislation  

1.3.3 The Waste Framework Directive [2008/98/EC, which has been implemented by the 
Waste England and Wales Regulation 2011,] 1 is the principal EU legislation for 
waste, and requires that measures be put in place to ensure that waste is recovered 
or disposed of without endangering human health or causing harm to the 
environment.  A key principle of the directive is the waste hierarchy, with the 
objective to manage waste as near to the top of the hierarchy as possible. 

National Policy 

1.3.4 National policy relevant to waste development is outlined in the UK Sustainable 
Development Strategy 2 which sets out the national policy approach to ensuring 
sustainable development. The Waste Strategy for England 20073 was published 
following a comprehensive review of Waste Strategy 2000. The key objectives of 
these documents are to: 

• Decouple waste growth from economic growth and put more emphasis on 
waste prevention and re-use;  

• Increase diversion of municipal and non-municipal waste from landfill; 

• Secure investment in waste infrastructure; and 

• Get the most environmental benefit from the investment through increased 
recycling of resources and recovery of energy from residual waste.  

The Waste Strategy for England (2007) also sets national targets for recycling and 
composting of household waste and the recovery of municipal waste. 

1.3.5 Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for Waste Development4 outlines the key 
objectives and considerations when producing planning policies for waste 
development and the consideration of relevant applications for development.  

                                                
1 Waste Framework Directive (Directive 2008/98/EC - http://eur-
lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=CELEX:32008L0098:EN:NOT 
2 The UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy - 
http://www.defra.gov.uk/publications/files/pb10589-securing-the-future-050307.pdf  
3 Waste Strategy for England 2007 - 
http://archive.defra.gov.uk/environment/waste/strategy/strategy07/documents/waste07-
strategy.pdf 
4 Planning Policy Statement 10 - 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/1876202.pdf 

86



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 5 
 
 

Regional Policy  

1.3.6 The London Plan (2011) provides the regional planning framework for the six west 
London boroughs jointly preparing the Plan and outlines the principal guidelines for 
waste development.  The Government has agreed that, although regional strategies 
for other parts of England will be abolished, the London Plan will continue to provide 
strategic guidance within the capital and thus be accorded significant weight in 
guiding the evolution of development plans and in determining planning applications. 

1.3.7 Boroughs must be in general conformity with the relevant waste management 
policies in the London Plan (2011).  This includes an apportionment of the tonnages 
of municipal and commercial and industrial waste to be managed by each London 
borough; revised targets for recycling of municipal waste; and new targets for 
recycling of commercial and industrial waste and recycling or reuse of construction 
and demolition waste. 

1.3.8 Each of the six west London boroughs is preparing a number of other strategies and 
plans which, along with the Plan, will form its Local Development Framework (LDF). 

1.3.9 Each borough must produce Development Plan Documents (DPDs) which make up 
their LDF.  The main DPD is the Core Strategy which sets out the general spatial 
vision and objectives for delivery of the LDF. It also helps the borough to deliver its 
Community Strategy and must reflect the regional strategy, which is set out in the 
London Plan.  

1.3.10 The Plan is a DPD (see 1.3.2) and, although being prepared jointly by the six west 
London boroughs, must be aligned with their individual Core Strategies and adopted 
development plans. 

1.4 Sustainability Appraisal 
1.4.1 The Plan has been subjected to a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) during the course of 

its development.  An SA ensures that planning documents accord with the principles 
defined in the Government’s UK Sustainable Development agenda5. The timing of 
the SA aims to ensure that sustainability considerations are taken into account early 
in the process of policy development.  A Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA); 
an Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA;) and a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
(SFRA) have also been undertaken in conjunction with the development of this Plan. 
Appendix 1 provides details on the process for each of these assessments. 

 

                                                
5 Defra Sustainable Development Unit - http://www.sustainable- 
development.gov.uk/publications/uk-strategy/framework-for-sd.htm 

87



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 6 
 
 

1.5 Community and Stakeholder Consultation 
1.5.1 The West London Waste Plan has been informed by consultation with statutory 

bodies, local organisations, key stakeholders and the wider community throughout its 
preparation.  This has been carried out in accordance with each borough’s 
“Statement of Community Involvement”. 

1.5.2 Initial consultation took place in January and February 2009 on the key issues which 
the West London Waste Plan needs to address, as set out in the West London 
Waste Plan Issues and Options report6. A wide range of responses was received via 
the various public workshops and meetings held across the six boroughs, via the 
project website and in writing. The boroughs’ preferred approach to deal with the 
issues raised, as well as a list of the proposed sites, was published for comment in 
February 2011 in the Proposed Sites and Policies report.  Staffed drop-in sessions in 
each of the six boroughs were attended by over 120 people along with 64 people 
attending further meetings.  In addition to responses received at these events, 248 
questionnaires were completed, and a further 133 additional written and email 
submissions were made alongside two petitions containing 2,399 signatures.  A full 
report on this consultation is available on the West London Waste Plan website 
(www.wlwp.net).   

1.6 Commenting on the Plan 
1.6.1 You can make representations on this proposed submission draft of the West 

London Waste Plan, including the Sustainability Appraisal and Equalities Impact 
Assessment during a six week period commencing from the 19 January 2012.  

1.6.2 All representations made will be considered by a Planning Inspector at a formal 
process called an examination in public. The purpose of the examination is to 
consider whether the Waste Plan complies with the legal requirements and is 
‘sound’.  

1.6.3 Since the Planning Inspector’s role is to answer these questions, any comments on 
the Plan will need to be related to legal compliance and “soundness”.  

                                                
6 West London Waste Plan Issues and Options Report (February 2009) available to download 
from http://www.wlwp.net/documents.html 

88



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 7 
 
 

1.6.4 In summary, comments on the “soundness” of the Plan need to  address the 
following issues: 

• Is it ‘justified’?  This means that the document must be:  

o founded on a robust and credible evidence base  

o the most appropriate strategy when considered against the 
reasonable alternatives  

• Is it ‘effective’?  This means that the document must be:  

o deliverable  

o Flexible, so that the local authorities can adapt the plan to respond to 
unexpected changes in circumstances  

o able to be monitored against clear, and measurable criteria 

• Is it consistent with national policy?  

1.6.5 More guidance on the meaning of these terms will be included with the comments 
form. Other guidance is available from the Planning Inspectorate7 and in Planning 
Policy Statement 12 which outlines the requirements for Core Strategies 8. 

1.6.6 All responses must be received by 1 March 2012.  All representations and other 
material in support of any comments made should be sent to: 

CAG Consultants 
West London Waste Plan Consultation 
Gordon House, 6 Lissenden Gardens, London, NW5 1LX  
Email: consultation@wlwp.net 

1.6.7 Comments can also be given via the website:  

www.wlwp.net 

                                                
7See:  http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/pins/dpd_brief_guide_examining.pdf 
8 The Waste Plan is a joint Core Strategy for waste. PPS12 outlines the requirements for 
Core Strategies in section 4: 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/pps12lsp 

89



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 8 
 
 

1.6.8 The West London Waste Plan Proposed Submission document and an 
accompanying Technical Report, Sustainability Appraisal and Equalities Impact 
Assessment are available for download via the West London Waste Plan website at: 
www.wlwp.net.  Hard copies are also available to view at: 

1. All Libraries across the six boroughs; and 

2. Local Council Offices across the six boroughs. 

1.6.9 The west London authorities will seek to ensure that all reports are accessible to 
everyone and will offer assistance to those who are blind or partially sighted or do 
not speak English fluently. This may include spoken or written translation in different 
languages, Braille, audio or large print format. 

1.6.10 The representations made on the West London Waste Plan will be forwarded to the 
Planning Inspector. 

1.6.11 There will be an independent Examination in Public of the West London Waste Plan 
which will start upon its submission to the Secretary of State in September 2012 and 
culminate in a hearing before an independent Planning Inspector in January 2013.  
Following the Examination, the Inspector will issue a binding report.  Following 
ratification of the Inspector’s report by each borough, the West London Waste Plan 
will be formally adopted by each borough in May 2013.  

1.7 Planning applications for waste management facilities 
1.7.1 The Plan and its policies will be the primary material consideration when assessing 

planning applications for new waste management facilities in the west London 
boroughs.  After this Plan has been adopted, developers should first use the West 
London Waste Plan to identify a suitable site when considering the development of a 
potential new waste management facility.  If the developer cannot find a suitable site 
in the Plan, any alternative site proposed will have to conform to the policies within 
the Plan.  Developers should also consider requirements and policies within the 
following documents before submitting a planning application for a waste 
management facility in west London:  

• Any national statutory guidance, e.g. Planning Policy Statement 10; 

• Borough Development Plan Documents; 

• London Plan; 

• Mayor of London Order (2008); and 

• Supplementary Planning Guidance from the Mayor or Supplementary 
Planning Documents from the relevant borough. 

90



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 9 
 
 

1.8 West London Waste Authority 
1.8.1 The West London Waste Authority (WLWA) is the statutory Waste Disposal Authority 

for the six west London boroughs and as such is solely responsible for the transport, 
treatment and disposal of municipal waste collected by the boroughs. 

1.8.2 The WLWA and its constituent boroughs consulted on and subsequently adopted a 
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy9 in 2005.  It sets out the future waste 
and recycling plans and targets for the Authority and each of the six boroughs.  An 
Addendum followed in 2009, providing an update on the Authority’s Partnership 
waste management performance. 

1.8.3 The WLWA has a vision of achieving a 70% reuse/recycling/recovery rate and zero 
waste to landfill although there is no timescale for these targets. 

1.8.4 In 2008/09 the WLWA and its constituent boroughs dealt with a total of 767,000 
tonnes of municipal waste, including abandoned vehicles. Of this total some 176,000 
tonnes was recycled, 84,000 tonnes was composted, and the remaining 507,000 
tonnes was sent for disposal, nearly all by rail from the WLWA’s transfer stations in 
Brentford and South Ruislip, to landfill sites in Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire.  

1.8.5 From 2009/10 increasing quantities of waste not recycled or composted will be 
diverted from landfill.  The WLWA has a contract to send waste to the Lakeside 
Energy from Waste plant near Slough, for the next 25 years.  This contract started in 
2009/10 with an annual tonnage of 25,000 tonnes.  It remains at this level until 
2014/15 when for one year the tonnage increases to 45,000 tonnes. The following 
year (2015/16) the tonnage increases to 90,000 tonnes and remains at that level 
until the final year of the contract in 2034/35. 

1.9 Cross boundary movement of waste 
1.9.1 Whilst waste is both generated and treated within west London boroughs, there is 

still the transfer of waste both into the WLWA area as well as exported out of it for 
treatment in other areas.  It is important to assess the level of this cross boundary 
movement of waste and to identify potential implications this may cause to the West 
London Waste Plan during the Plan period. 

1.9.2 The WLWA and its constituent boroughs exported 995,900 tonnes of waste out of 
west London for landfill disposal in 2008.  The majority of this waste was sent to 
Buckinghamshire (28%) and Bedfordshire (24%), followed by Oxfordshire (12%), 
with the remaining 36% divided between eight other authorities. 

                                                
9 WLWA Draft Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy, September 2005 -  
http://www.westlondonwaste.gov.uk/west-london-waste-authority/strategy/ 
 

91



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 10 
 
 

1.9.3 The relevant authorities to whom this waste was exported have adopted waste plans 
which have identified sufficient sites to accommodate the declining levels of waste 
that will be exported from London for the period of this Plan, which is until 2026.  

1.9.4 As such, it is considered with the implementation of the policies in this Plan which 
are designed to help achieve the London Plan (2011) aim of 100% of waste 
produced in London being managed in London by 2031, and the move towards 
providing energy production from waste sites, that there will be no overriding issues 
with regards to the impact of any cross boundary movement of waste.  

1.10 Waste Minimisation 
1.10.1 The west London boroughs are committed to waste reduction and minimisation 

initiatives and understand the importance of such issues to the residents of west 
London and to the success of sustainable waste management in the area.  Although 
the Plan cannot directly enforce waste reduction, it will encourage waste 
minimisation through appropriate policies. 

1.10.2 The West London Waste Plan supports the management of waste according to the 
waste hierarchy (Figure 1-2) as identified in the Waste Strategy for England10 and the 
London Plan (2011).  

 
Figure 1-2: The Waste Hierarchy 

 

                                                
10 Waste Strategy for England (2007), Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
(DEFRA) www.defra.gov.uk 

92



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 11 
 
 

Each of the six boroughs is already dealing with wider waste issues such as 
encouraging waste minimisation and increasing recycling in accordance with the 
waste hierarchy.  The waste hierarchy states that we should first try to reduce and 
re-use waste, then recycle waste into useful materials and, if this is not possible, 
recover energy from waste before considering the safe disposal of waste as a last 
resort.  All boroughs operate household waste recycling collections, reuse and 
recycling centres and offer information on waste minimisation activities such as 
home composting or using re-usable nappies. 

93



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 12 
 
 

2 Vision and Objectives of the Plan 
2.1 Vision 
2.1.1 The unique characteristics of west London, as well as the key challenges and 

opportunities that have been identified in developing the Plan, have fed into the 
vision of the Plan, which is supported by its aims and objectives.  

2.1.2 The vision of the Plan ensures that the long-term management of waste in west 
London will allow for the best possible outcomes for the west London boroughs.  It 
brings together national, regional and local guidance along with the views of key 
stakeholders and the evidence base that underlies the Plan. 

West London Waste Plan Vision 

By 2026, the West London Waste Plan area will have made provision for enough 
waste management facilities in the right locations to provide for the sustainable 
management of waste. It will seek to do so whilst protecting the environment, 
stimulating the economy and balancing the needs of west London’s communities. 

 

2.2 Strategic Objectives 
2.2.1 The West London Waste Plan strategic objectives were developed in response to 

the key issues for west London and responses received through community 
consultation. 

West London Waste Plan Strategic Objectives 

1. To identify sufficient land for the management of the six boroughs’ pooled 
waste apportionment as set out in the London Plan, including safeguarding 
existing waste sites and maximising their use as waste management sites. 

2. To ensure that waste is managed as far up the waste hierarchy as possible, by 
encouraging the minimisation of waste and the use of waste as a resource. 

3. To reduce the impact of waste management on climate change by encouraging 
the use of sustainable transport and new, clean technologies, whilst seeking to 
locate waste management facilities as close to waste sources as practicable. 

4. To ensure that, through appropriate policies, waste facilities meet the highest 
standards possible of design, construction and operation to minimise adverse 
effects on local communities and the environment. 

5. To support the key aims and objectives of Brent, Ealing, Harrow, Hillingdon, 
Hounslow and Richmond’s Sustainable Community Strategies. 

94



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 13 
 
 

3 Existing waste management and future waste 
management needs 

3.1 Existing waste management 
3.1.1 West London produces, and is expected to continue to produce, a significant 

quantity of waste.  This section looks at the different types of waste being generated 
in west London and how it is currently being managed, along with future trends 
allowing for the west London boroughs to determine what infrastructure is required to 
meet the London Plan (2011) waste apportionment figures. 

3.2 Municipal solid waste 
3.2.1 Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) in the west London boroughs is managed by the 

WLWA and includes household waste, kerbside collected recyclables, green waste 
and waste and recyclables collected at household waste and recycling centres. 

3.2.2 Overall in 2009/10 the WLWA and its constituent boroughs managed approximately 
693,000 tonnes of MSW.  Of this total, 41% was reused, recycled or composted, with 
the remaining 59% sent for disposal, nearly all to landfill outside west London.  This 
figure for landfill compares favourably with previous years (Table 3-1), both in terms 
of the total tonnage sent to landfill and the percentage of the total MSW stream this 
represents.  Figure 3 shows the means of waste management in the plan area in 
2009/10, the latest full year for which figures are available. 

Table 3-1: WLWA management of MSW (2006-2010) 
Waste (tonnes) 2006/07 % 2007/08 % 2008/09 % 2009/10 % 

Recycling & Reuse 116,000 14.6 131,000 16.9 139,000 19.0 155,000 22.4 

Composting 62,000 7.8 71,000 9.2 84,000 11.5 86,000 12.4 

Energy Recovery 3,000 0.4 3,000 0.4 1,000 0.1 12,000 1.7 

Landfill 603,000 75.8 555,000 71.8 485,000 66.2 395,000 57.0 

Materials Recovery 
Facility 13,000 1.6 13,000 1.7 25,000 3.4 45,000 6.5 

Total waste  796,000   773,000   733,000   693,000   

 

95



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 14 
 
 

  
 

Energy 
Recovery

2%

Materials 
Recovery 
Facility
6%

Recycling & 
Reuse
22%

Composting
12%

Landfill
58%

 
Figure 3-1 - West London Waste Authority MSW management (2009/10) 

 

3.2.3 As the statutory body responsible for managing MSW generated in the west London 
boroughs, the WLWA is in the process of procuring a new long term contract for the 
management of this waste.  The main objective of the procurement is to eliminate (or 
significantly reduce) the landfilling of municipal waste.  The WLWA has been working 
in partnership with its constituent boroughs and has produced a Procurement 
Strategy11.  The procurement is outcome-based, with targets for landfill diversion, 
affordability, recycling and carbon impact and has no preference on the technology 
to be used. 

3.2.4 The WLWA, following consultation with the GLA, issued an Official Journal of the 
European Union (OJEU) notice on 16th May 2011 to commence the procurement 
process of the treatment of up to 300,000 tonnes of municipal waste per year.   

3.3 Commercial and Industrial Waste 
3.3.1 Historically, Commercial and Industrial Waste (C&I waste) was categorised as a 

distinct type of waste in the UK.  However with the implementation of the European 
Waste Catalogue12 (EWC) as a method of coding waste, much of this waste is 
increasingly being categorised as ‘Municipal Wastes’. 

                                                
11 WLWA Procurement Strategy - http://www.westlondonwaste.gov.uk/west-london-waste-
authority/procuremen/ 
12 European Waste Catalogue - http://www.environment-
agency.gov.uk/static/documents/GEHO1105BJVS-e-e.pdf 

96



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 15 
 
 

3.3.2 The DEFRA Survey of C&I waste arisings for 2009 estimated west London produced 
845,000 tonnes of C&I waste during that year, which is a reduction of 621,000 
tonnes (42%) from the previous C&I Survey in 2002/03, which estimated that 
1,466,000 tonnes of C&I waste was produced. Conversely, the London Plan 2011 
has estimated that west London produced 1,299,000 tonnes.  For purposes of 
consistency, this Technical Report will use the more conservative London Plan 
(2011) C&I waste data estimate, as this was used as part of the basis for the 
apportionment figures determined for west London boroughs and offers flexibility 
over the DEFRA 2009 estimate. 

3.3.3 Figure 3-2 displays the generation of C&I waste by sector in west London, with the 
largest source of waste arising in the retail and wholesale sector (approximately one 
third).  The largest components of the C&I waste stream in west London are mixed 
waste (41%) followed by non-metallic waste (30%) and the remainder including 
mostly chemical or animal and vegetable wastes.  

11%
2%1%5%1%2%

33%

9% 5% 3% 12%

16%

Food, drink & tobacco

Textiles/wood/paper/publishing
Power & utilities

Chemicals/ non-metalic minerals
manufacture
Metal manufacturing

Machinery & equipment (other
manufacture)
Retail & wholesale

Hotels & catering

Public administration & social
work
Education

Transport & storage

Other services

 
Figure 3-2 - C&I waste generation in west London by sector 

 

3.4 Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste 
3.4.1 Construction, Demolition and Excavation waste (CD&E) waste makes up almost half 

of London’s total waste, and this is also reflected in west London, where 47% of the 
total waste arising in the boroughs is CD&E waste. 

Analysis of the most recent Environment Agency data (2009) for CD&E waste 
indicates that an estimated 754,000 tonnes was generated in west London, while 
837,000 tonnes was transported into the area, resulting in a net importation of about 
83,000 tonnes of CD&E waste.  The principal fate of CD&E waste exported from 
west London is reprocessing (66%), with a further 30% landfilled, and the remaining 

97



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 16 
 
 

amount either treated or with an unknown fate.  In comparison, 99% of CD&E waste 
imported into west London is transferred for treatment or disposal elsewhere, with 
the remainder managed through recycling, treatment or landfill within the area.  

3.5 Hazardous Wastes 
3.5.1 Hazardous wastes are categorised as those that are harmful to human health, or the 

environment, either immediately or over an extended period of time.  They range 
from asbestos, chemicals, and oil through to electrical goods and fluorescent tubes.  
In 2009, west London exported approximately 73,000 tonnes. Compared with other 
waste streams generated in west London, hazardous waste is not a large waste 
stream, but is a sensitive one which requires a range of specialist facilities for 
treatment and disposal. 

3.5.2 In 2009, west London boroughs exported hazardous waste to 48 different 
destinations across England, with the main destinations including Northamptonshire, 
the Western Riverside Waste Authority, Berkshire; and Surrey.  The fate of this 
hazardous waste generated in west London is presented in Figure 3-3.  

Landfill
17%

Recycling / reuse
13%

Incineration without 
energy recovery

4%
Treatment

36%

Transfer (Recovery)
16%

Rejected
0%Transfer (Disposal)

13%

Incineration with 
energy recovery

1%

 
Figure 3-3 - Fate of hazardous waste arisings from west London (2009) 

 

3.6 Wastewater and Sewage sludge 
3.6.1 Thames Water Limited is responsible for wastewater and sewage sludge treatment 

in London and, as part of this responsibility, it manages key pieces of sewerage 
infrastructure, including a number of sewage treatment works (STW). The majority of 
wastewater in west London is either drained to Mogden STW in Isleworth, Beckton 
STW in East London, or Hogsmill STW in Kingston upon Thames. During 2010, 
these facilities generated over 100,000 tonnes of sewage sludge (dry solids) with all 
of this sludge being beneficially reused through either incineration with energy 
recovery, recycled to agricultural land or used for land restoration. 

98



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 17 
 
 

3.7 Healthcare Waste  
3.7.1 Healthcare waste covers a wide range of hazardous and non-hazardous waste 

including from hospitals, nursing homes, health centres, GP, dental or veterinary 
surgeries etc. West London’s healthcare waste is either managed by the boroughs 
(Ealing, Hounslow and Richmond upon Thames) or their Primary Care Trusts (PCT) 
where the collection, transfer and disposal is taken care of by local waste contractors 
(Harrow).  Brent and Hillingdon have a combination of the two, in which they only 
undertake the management of household collections with contractors managing the 
remainder.  Healthcare waste accounts for approximately 822 tonnes per year of 
waste arising in west London. However, Hillingdon hospital also has an incinerator 
used for clinical waste disposal and it is estimated that this facility received 
approximately 7,600 tonnes of clinical waste for disposal in 2009.  

3.8 Agricultural Waste 
3.8.1 The total amount of agricultural waste arisings in west London in 2009 was 

approximately 6,900 tonnes.  The majority of this waste (94%) was sent to a Civil 
Amenity site located in Harrow, with a further 5% composted in Hillingdon and the 
remaining 41 tonnes sent to a  waste transfer facility in Brent. 

3.9 Radioactive Waste 
3.9.1 Limited information is available regarding the generation of radioactive waste in west 

London, with no records held by either the Environment Agency of the Department of 
Energy and Climate Change.  It is assumed that, as west London does not 
accommodate any nuclear power generation facilities, radioactive waste arisings in 
the area are low.  The only identified sources that may generate small amounts of 
low level radioactive waste (LLW) and very low level radioactive Waste (VLLW) are 
hospitals and universities in the boroughs.  Most radioactive waste produced by 
minor waste producers is not reported in the UK Inventory as it is either low volumes 
of LLW that can be disposed of by “controlled burial” at landfill sites, or low volume 
VLLW that can be disposed of with MSW and C&I wastes at landfill site. 

3.10 Role of Landfill in the Disposal of Waste 
3.10.1 Landfill disposal accounted for approximately 1,056,000 tonnes of west London’s 

waste in 2009, with over 94% of that exported to landfill facilities outside of west 
London.  The remaining 60,080 tonnes was sent to Harmondsworth Landfill located 
in southwest Hillingdon.  Figure 3-4 illustrates the majority of this was sent to both 
Buckinghamshire (28%) and Bedfordshire (24%), followed by Oxfordshire (12%) and 
the remaining 36% was divided between eight other authorities. 

 

99



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 18 
 
 

Berkshire
4%

London
8% Warwickshire

1% Surrey
7%

Oxfordshire
12%

Buckinghamshire
28%

Bedfordshire
24%

Unknown
13%

Kent
0%

Wiltshire
0%

Essex
3%

Hertfordshire
0%

 
Figure 3-4 - Destinations where west London sends residual waste for landfill disposal (2009) 

3.10.2 There are several different types of landfill, all of which play a different role in helping 
to manage west London’s waste.  Generally these are categorised by the types of 
waste they can accept for disposal. 

3.10.3 Non-hazardous landfill usually accounts for residual MSW and C&I waste, whereas 
Inert Landfill usually accounts for CD&E waste.  Hazardous waste landfills are highly 
specialised and only accept certain hazardous waste, while stable, non-reactive 
hazardous waste (SNRHW) landfill can be a placed in a cell (specifically designed in 
a landfill to accept SNRHW (e.g. asbestos)) isolated from biodegradable waste. 

In order to ensure that for the life of the WLWP there continues to remain capacity in 
areas surrounding London for the landfill of residual waste, further information was 
sourced.  Published waste planning documents for the counties and regions 
concerned were consulted and followed up with discussions with local waste officers 
to cross-reference and confirm the information where possible. 

Regional Spatial Strategies for London, the South East and East of England all refer 
to the requirement for the on-going (but declining) landfilling of residual waste from 
London in surrounding areas and provide directions on the apportionment for each of 
the waste planning authorities in their region.  Subsequently, the counties that 
currently landfill residual waste from west London in significant quantities (as per 
Figure 3-4) will continue to be able provide capacity to receive waste for disposal at 
landfill from west London during the life of the WLWP, albeit in declining amounts.  

 

100



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 19 
 
 

4 Future waste management 
4.1 How much waste will need to be managed in west London? 
4.1.1 The London Plan (2011) sets a target for London to become the equivalent of 100% 

self-sufficient in the management of waste by 2031.  To achieve this target each 
borough has been given a share of London’s total MSW and C&I waste to manage 
(called the borough’s “apportionment” figure) for which it must identify sufficient and 
suitable potential sites for the development of waste management facilities. The west 
London boroughs have pooled their apportionments and will meet the collective 
apportionment figures.  

4.1.2 Waste arisings projections are also included in the London Plan (2011), with these 
figures considered the most up-to-date for west London and were also used by the 
Mayor to determine the apportionment figures.  The waste arisings and 
apportionment figures for west London are displayed in Table 4-1. 

Table 4-1: Quantity of waste forecast to be produced in west London and the apportionment figures 
from the London Plan (2011) for target years 
 2011 2016 2021 2026 

MSW arisings (tonnes per annum) 798,000 826,000 852,000 879,000 

C&I waste arisings (tonnes per 
annum) 

1,287,000 1,258,000 1,240,000 1,233,000 

Total (MSW and C&I waste) arisings 
(tonnes per annum) 

2,085,000 2,084,000 2,092,000 2,112,000 

London Plan (2011) Apportionment 
(tonnes per annum) 1,399,000  1,595,000  1,798,000  2,019,000  

 

4.2 How much land is needed? 
4.2.1 The London Plan (2011) is the statutory regional strategy of London.  In order to 

comply with central Government requirements and be considered a “sound” planning 
document, the West London Waste Plan is being prepared in accordance with the 
waste projections and apportionment figures contained in the London Plan (2011).  
The west London boroughs are not required to meet the individual MSW and C&I 
waste apportionment figures in the London Plan (2011) as long as the total 
apportionment figure is addressed. 

4.2.2 Currently, west London has few waste management sites but it has many waste 
transfer sites which bulk waste for disposal elsewhere. The intention of the Plan is to 
maximise the use of the existing waste sites in the area, including re-orientation of 
some waste transfer sites to new waste management facilities, as well as the 

101



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 20 
 
 

identification of new sites in west London for waste management uses. 

4.2.3 The current existing waste management capacity in west London is 811,541 tonnes 
per annum including both waste treatment sites and the recycling undertaken at 
household waste and recycling centres and civic amenity sites.  Subsequently, west 
London will need to develop extra waste management facilities during the period to 
2026 to address ‘gap’ between the apportionment figures and the waste 
management capacity that currently exists. 

4.2.4 For the six west London boroughs to meet the apportionment for MSW & C&I waste, 
an additional 2,100,645 treatment capacity will need to be planned and licensed by 
2021 and circa 3,222,380 tonnes by 2026.  In order to determine how much area will 
be required to provide this waste management capacity, an average processing 
capacity of 54,012 tonnes per annum per hectare was used based on the range of 
possible processes and their processing intensity. 

4.2.5 The London Plan (2011) does not prescribe the specific waste management 
technologies, their scale, nor the number that will need to be implemented across 
London.  Accordingly, the West London Waste Plan also does not take a prescriptive 
approach to what types of waste management facilities/technologies are required.  
This approach will allow for innovation in the management of waste to be 
incorporated into development in west London. 

4.2.6 The identification of the land required to meet the apportionment is displayed in 
Table 4-2 and shows that by 2026, west London boroughs need to have an 
additional 22.4 hectares of waste management capacity. 

Table 4-2: West London Capacity Requirements for Target Years based on the 2011 London Plan 
 2011 2016 2021 2026 

Apportionment (tonnes per annum) 1,399,000  1,595,000  1,798,000  2,019,000  

Total existing waste management 
capacity (tonnes per annum) 811,541 811,541 811,541 811,541 

Additional capacity required to 
meet the apportionment (tonnes per 
annum) 

   587,459   783,459      986,459  1,207,459  

Land to address the capacity gap 
(hectares) 10.9 14.5 18.3 22.4 

 

4.2.7 The West London Waste Plan has identified land area slightly above its 
requirements (using existing safeguarded and new sites) to give the Plan flexibility 

102



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 21 
 
 

should some sites not come forward for development during the lifetime of the Plan. 
Annual monitoring of the plan will prevent overprovision of sites occurring. 

4.2.8 The Plan identifies 22.4 hectares of land is required to develop waste management 
capacity by 2026. 

4.2.9 In order to meet this land allocation, eight existing waste transfer sites (accounting 
for 19.4 hectares) have been identified as suitable and available for reorientation into 
waste treatment facilities.  An additional 9.2 hectares was identified as potentially 
deliverable from new sites in west London.  Overall, it is thus estimated that within 
west London there is 28.6 hectares of land potentially available for waste treatment, 
which exceeds the land allocation required to meet the London Plan (2011) and 
creates flexibility in the Plan.  

4.3 What kind of facilities will be needed?  
4.3.1 Ensuring that more waste is managed within west London will mean that a range of 

different waste management facilities will be considered including recycling, 
composting and energy recovery.  Modern waste management facilities utilise clean 
technologies and are subject to stringent regulation and monitoring of their 
operations and impacts.  Innovative design and architecture can also be applied 
making facilities sensitive to their settings, although many technologies can be 
housed in industrial building similar in appearance to a warehouse. Table 3-4 in 
Appendix 4 to this report gives a brief description of the principal waste management 
technologies.  

4.3.2 It is important that modern methods of dealing with waste are found which also seek 
to produce valuable, usable products such as fuel, heat and power.  Waste facilities 
should be seen positively, as an opportunity rather than a ‘bad neighbour’, as they 
can be co- located with developments and industry to provide heat, power and other 
beneficial products attractive to industrial, commercial and potentially residential 
developments. 

4.3.3 The West London Waste Plan identifies sites for general waste use and to use the 
policies within the Plan to manage such developments to ensure they are suitable for 
the site and its surrounding land uses.  The Plan is designed to be flexible to allow 
for developments and improvements in waste management technologies and the 
changing habits of consumers and waste producers.  A planning application will have 
to be submitted for each proposed development, which will be assessed in line with 
the West London Waste Plan and other borough plans and strategies and through 
public consultation. 

4.4 Construction, demolition and excavation wastes 
4.4.1 Construction, Demolition and Excavation (CDE) waste is a large waste stream within 

London, although it is not included within the apportionment target assigned to 
boroughs.  Accordingly, no allocations are made in this plan for facilities dealing 
specifically with such wastes.  The preference in west London is to ensure more on-
site recycling and re-use takes place in accordance with Policy 5.18 of the London 

103



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 22 
 
 

Plan (2011) by using Policy WLWP 4 whilst ensuring that boroughs monitor the types 
and capacities of waste management facilities developed against any new waste 
arising data that is produced.  

4.5 Hazardous wastes 
4.5.1 Hazardous waste can cause concern amongst residents and communities; however 

it is also not included within the apportionment targets assigned to boroughs.  Policy 
5.19 of the London Plan (2011) states that the Mayor will prepare a Hazardous 
Waste Strategy for London and will work in partnership with the boroughs, the 
Environment Agency, industry and neighbouring authorities to identify the capacity 
gap for dealing with hazardous waste and to provide and maintain direction on the 
need for hazardous waste management capacity.  This policy also directs that 
existing hazardous waste site should be safeguarded unless compensatory provision 
is made.  

4.5.2 The West London Waste Plan therefore makes no specific provision for hazardous 
wastes.  However, planning applications for hazardous waste facilities will be 
determined in the same way as applications for all waste management facilities and 
the capacity of hazardous waste facilities will be monitored closely to establish 
whether additional provision is required at a later date. 

104



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 23 
 
 

5 The Proposed Sites 
5.1.1 The West London Waste Plan, in accordance with the criteria outlined in PPS10, has 

identified a number of existing and new sites which it considers will ensure adequate 
waste management provision for the lifetime of the Plan.  The sites have been 
subject to a detailed evaluation and assessment which is documented in the 
accompanying Technical Report13.  Further details of these sites including details of 
their locations, are contained in Appendices 4 and 5 of this Plan. 

5.1.2 The Plan identifies (see paragraph 4.2.9) that 28.6 hectares are considered available 
on existing and new waste sites.  Maps showing the location and the site boundary 
of all sites are provided in Appendices 4 and 5 of the Plan.  Table 5-1 sets out those 
existing sites capable of redevelopment, while Table 5-2 refers to potential new 
waste sites. 

Table 5-1: Existing waste sites considered to have potential for redevelopment 
Site 

Number 
Site Area 

(ha) 
Borough Description Site Type 

352 1.46 Brent Twyford Waste Transfer Station Transfer Station 

1261 2.71 Brent Veolia Transfer Station, Marsh Road Transfer Station 

309 1.15 Ealing Greenford Reuse & Recycling Site,  Transfer Station 

310 0.94 Ealing Greenford Depot, Greenford Road,  Depot Facility 

328 2.10 Ealing Quattro, Victoria Road, Park Royal Transfer Station 

303 4.25 Hillingdon Victoria Road Transfer Station Transfer Station 

353 3.11 Hounslow Transport Avenue Waste Transfer Station Transfer Station 

342 3.67 Richmond Twickenham Depot Depot Facility 

 

                                                
13 WLWP Technical Report November 2011 - http://www.wlwp.net/documents.html 

105



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 24 
 
 

Table 5-2: Proposed new sites with opportunity for developing waste management facilities 
Site 

Number 
Site Area 

(ha) 
Borough Description 

222 2.83 Harrow Council depot, Forward Drive 

244 3.12 Hillingdon Yeading Brook, Bulls Bridge 

2861 3.20 Hounslow Western International Market 

106



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 25 
 
 

6 West London Waste Plan Policies 
6.1 Policy WLWP 1 – Safeguarding and protection of Existing sites 

 

WLWP Policy 1 – Safeguarding and Protection of Existing and Allocated sites 

Land accommodating existing waste management and waste transfer uses in west 
London will be safeguarded for continued use for waste facilities (Annexe 4 Table 
4.1 and 4.2).  Sites in Annexe 5 Table 5.1 are also allocated for waste use.  
Development for non-waste uses will not be considered on the land identified in 
these three tables unless compensatory and equal provision of sites for waste, in 
scale and quality, is made elsewhere within the west London Boroughs. 

 

6.1.1 Table 4.1 and 4.2 in Appendix 4 list the sites that are in existing waste management 
use in the west London boroughs.  All these sites are safeguarded in the Plan as 
required by the London Plan (2011).  The safeguarded sites form an essential 
resource for dealing with waste within the Plan area and protection of these sites 
reduces the requirement for any additional sites. 

6.1.2 The sites in Table 4.2 are those existing sites the Plan considers have the potential 
for redevelopment to waste management sites including alternative forms of waste 
management that could result in waste moving up the hierarchy.  Table 5.1 of 
Appendix 5 contains the list of new sites that are allocated in the Plan for waste 
treatment facilities.  The protection of these sites is required to ensure that the west 
London boroughs can comply with the apportionment requirement of the London 
Plan (2011).  

6.2 Policy WLWP 2 – Location of Waste Development 
6.2.1 As explained above in Section 3, in order to conform with central Government 

planning requirements and be considered a ”sound” planning document, the Plan 
has been prepared on the basis of the waste planning apportionment figures in the 
current adopted London Plan (2011).  Consequently, the Plan has identified over 
28.6 ha of land for the development of waste management facilities to meet the 
pooled apportionment for the six west London boroughs up to 2026.  

6.2.2 All existing waste management sites in the six boroughs, with potential for re-
orientation, along with the allocated sites are safeguarded for waste management 
uses under this Plan, unless an equal and compensatory site can be found, or there 
is an appropriate level of movement up the waste hierarchy.  

107



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 26 
 
 

6.2.3 The West London Waste Plan lists the safeguarded existing sites and proposed new 
sites considered appropriate and suitable for waste management use in (Table 4-1, 
4-2 of Appendix 4 and Table 5.1 of Appendix 5). Policy WLWP 2 sets out the key 
criteria against which planning applications for waste facilities will be determined for 
the proposed sites. 

WLWP Policy 2 – Location of Waste Development 

Waste development proposals on sites listed in Tables 4-1, 4-2  and 5.1 will 
generally be supported, provided that the proposals comply with the other WLWP 
policies and the boroughs’ adopted development plans. 

Waste development on other sites, not listed in Tables 4-1, 4-2  and 5.1, may be 
permitted if the proposals comply with the other WLWP policies and the boroughs’ 
adopted development plans, and:  

• It can be demonstrated that the development is not suitable for, or cannot be 
delivered at, any sites listed in Tables 4.1 and 5.1; and 

• For some reason, identified sites have not come forward and it can be 
demonstrated that there is an emerging shortfall in capacity. 

To ensure no loss in existing capacity, re-development of any existing or allocated 
waste sites must ensure that the quantity of waste to be managed is equal to or 
greater than the quantity of waste which the site is currently permitted to manage, or 
that the management of the waste is being moved up the waste hierarchy.  

 

6.3 Policy WLWP 3 – Ensuring High Quality Development 
6.3.1 Modern waste management facilities should bring a benefit to the local community 

and environment.  Policy WLWP 3 provides a range of criteria to ensure developers 
consider and mitigate the impacts of their development on the environment, the 
community and the appearance of the local area.  Developments should also comply 
with any adopted borough Development Plans, including Core Strategies, 
Development Management DPDs, Site Allocations and Area Action Plans 

6.3.2 As a general principle, all waste developments will be expected to complement the 
surrounding area and act as a good neighbour to all existing developments.  

6.3.3 Noise, litter and all other emissions are expected to be adequately controlled so as 
not to cause any adverse impact on the surrounding area.  Developers will be 
expected to submit details of proposed control measures with any planning 
application.  

108



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 27 
 
 

6.3.4 Developers will be expected to have actively considered innovative and sustainable 
design approaches to ensure that the development is in accordance with best 
practice and complements the local area in terms of topography, landscape and 
colour.  A Design and Access statement should be submitted to set out how the 
facility complements the local area and ensure that there is no adverse effect on 
existing transport facilities, Public Rights of Way, or public safety. 

6.3.5 The road network within west London is regularly congested and therefore proposals 
must demonstrate active consideration of alternative transport uses.  There must not 
be any significant or unacceptable adverse impacts on the local road network or 
other road users, in terms of congestion or parking, associated with the 
development.  Proposals should demonstrate that adequate parking for all vehicles 
is available on site and that any necessary changes to the local road network are 
made.  

6.3.6 Developers of waste facilities will need to fully identify the health implications of the 
development and plan the most appropriate development to protect the surrounding 
uses and community. If the proposed waste development is required to have an 
Environmental Impact Assessment, then a Health Impact Assessment is also 
required. 

WLWP Policy 3 – Ensuring High Quality Development 

All waste development proposals will be required to demonstrate, for the 
construction and operational phases of the development, that: 

• Development will be permitted only where it can be shown that unacceptable 
impact to local amenity will not arise from the construction and/or operation of 
a facility. 

• Adequate means of controlling noise, vibration, dust, litter, vermin, odours, air 
and water-borne contaminants and other emissions are incorporated into the 
scheme; 

• The development is of a scale, form and character appropriate to its location 
and incorporates a high quality of design; to be demonstrated through the 
submission of a design and access statement.  

• Active consideration has been given to the transportation of waste by modes 
other than road, principally by water and rail;  

• Transport directly and indirectly associated with the development will not 
exceed the capacity of the local road network or result in any significant 
adverse impact on the amenities of the area. Where necessary, this is to be 
demonstrated by a Transport Impact Assessment;  

• The development makes a positive contribution to climate change adaptation 

109



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 28 
 
 

and mitigation to be demonstrated through the submission of a sustainable 
design and construction statement;  

• An appropriate BREEAM or CEEQUAL rating will be required to comply with 
any adopted borough Development Plans; 

• The development has no significant adverse effects on local biodiversity and 
that it can be demonstrated that there will be no significant adverse impacts 
or effects on the integrity of an area designated under the “Habitats 
Directive”;  

• There will be no significant impact on the quality of surface and groundwater. 
The development should incorporate the principles of Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems (SUDS) unless evidence is provided to justify alternative 
drainage methods. 

• There will be no increased flood risk, either to the immediate area or indirectly 
elsewhere, in line with PPS25. Where necessary, this is to be demonstrated 
by a Flood Risk Assessment; 

• Green Travel Plans have been considered, where appropriate. 

• The site does not contain features, or will have a significant adverse effect on 
any heritage assets such as conservation areas, archaeological sites listed 
building etc. 

• There is no foreseeable adverse impact on health and where necessary this 
is to be demonstrated by a Health Impact Assessment  

  
In addition:  

 
• Adjacent development proposals which would prevent or prejudice the use of 

safeguarded sites for waste purposes will be resisted unless suitable 
alternative provision is made. 

 
• Applications shall provide details of the management arrangements for 

residues arising from any waste management facility. 
 

 
 

110



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 29 
 
 

6.4 Policy WLWP 4 – Decentralised Energy  
6.4.1 New waste management and recycling methods can offer more efficient use of 

resources than existing waste management methods.  Waste facilities can also 
contribute to the provision of decentralised energy by providing heat and power for 
use in domestic and industrial processes. 

6.4.2 The London Plan (2011) encourages boroughs to take opportunities for the 
development of combined heat and power technologies. 

Policy WLWP 4 – Decentralised Energy 

All waste facilities that are capable of directly producing energy or a fuel must 
secure, where reasonably practicable: 

• The local use of any excess heat in either an existing heat network or through 
the creation of a new network; 

• The utilisation of biogas/syngas in Combined Heat and Power facilities, either 
directly through piped supply or indirectly through pressurisation and 
transport; 

• The utilisation of any solid recovered fuel in Combined Heat and Power 
facilities or as a direct replacement for fossil fuels in London; or 

• Any other contribution to decentralised energy in London. 

Where it is demonstrated that the provision of decentralised energy is not 
economically feasible or technically practicable, the development shall not preclude 
the future implementation of such systems. 

Energy from waste facilities will only be considered where it can be demonstrated 
that they are a recovery facility as defined in the Waste Framework Directive. 

 

6.5 Policy WLWP 5 – Sustainable Site Waste Management  
6.5.1 The management of waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy is a key element 

of European, National and regional policy. West London supports the increased 
management of wastes as far up the hierarchy as possible and each of the six 
boroughs has a commitment to waste minimisation and recycling. Waste 
minimisation is also an important issue to the residents and community within West 
London. 

111



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 30 
 
 

6.5.2 West London supports the use of local, reclaimed, renewable, recycled and low 
environmental impact materials in construction and estate management. Their 
details should be considered and included within the sustainable design and 
construction statement and the Site Waste Management Plans. Materials should be 
sourced from within 100km from the site, where available and appropriate. 

WLWP Policy 5 - Sustainable Site Waste Management 

To encourage sustainable waste management, waste management developments 
will be permitted where it can be demonstrated that: 

• At least 10% of the materials or products used in the construction and/or 
operation of the development are re-used or recycled and sourced from 
within 100km from the site;   

• Construction, demolition and excavation wastes are reused or recycled on 
site, where practicable and environmentally acceptable; and 

• Construction phase Site Waste Management Plans are comprehensive and 
capable of being delivered. 

 

112



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 31 
 
 

7 Monitoring of the West London Waste Plan 
7.1.1 Once the West London Waste Plan is adopted, key performance indicators are 

proposed to be reported each year in the boroughs’ Annual Monitoring Report to 
asses the effectiveness of the Plan’s policies. This mechanism will enable the west 
London boroughs to compare quantities of waste actually produced with those 
forecast in the London Plan (2011) and to monitor development on the sites 
identified in the Plan. The boroughs will then consider whether the allocation of sites 
is sufficient and whether the Plan needs reviewing.  The proposed indicators that will 
be reported both for each borough and the six combined west London boroughs 
include: 

• Quantity of each type of waste produced; 

• Total capacity (in tonnes) of new waste management facilities given planning 
permission in the previous year, by process (e.g. recycling, composting, 
anaerobic digestion etc) and against annual forecast of quantity of waste 
produced and how the new, additional, capacity, affects the total capacity 
within the plan area; 

• Capacity (in tonnes) of new waste management facilities on existing sites 
(including re-developed transfer sites), on new sites allocated within the West 
London Waste Plan, and on non-allocated sites; 

• The quantity of municipal waste generated per household; 

• Re-use, recycling and composting figures for municipal waste; 

• The quantity of municipal waste landfilled; 

• Comparison of municipal and commercial & industrial waste that is managed 
compared with the apportionment targets set out in the London Plan (2011); 

• Tonnage of construction, demolition and excavation waste produced and 
disposed of in the boroughs; 

• Tonnage of hazardous waste produced and disposed of in the boroughs; and 

• Other indicators that may be decided to measure performance against 
policies. 

7.1.2 Where monitoring identifies that there is a major failure to meet the targets for waste 
management within the Plan area ,the six west London boroughs will seek to identify 
the reasons why this is occurring and take effective management measures to 
correct any problems.  

113



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 32 
 
 

7.1.3 Table 7-1 indicates how the policies of the Plan will be monitored: 

Table 7-1 - Monitoring programme for the West London Waste Plan 
WLWP Policy Indicator Reason Delivery  Delivery 

Agency 

Policy WLWP 1 
& 2 

Number of 
safeguarded 
sites list and 
amount of 
compensatory 
measures 
achieved 

To ensure no 
loss of waste 
capacity in the 
west London 
area  

The planning 
process 

Local 
Authorities 

Policy WLWP 3 Number, type 
and capacity of 
waste facilities 
approved and 
completed at: 
safeguarded 
sites and new 
identified sites 

 

Impact of new 
sites 

Compliance with 
sequential policy 
approach  

 

To ensure 
adequate waste 
capacity is being 
provided  

 

Number of sites 
failing to comply 
with any relevant 
environmental 
permit  

 

Number of 
enforcement 
complaints 
breaches of 
conditions 

The planning 
process and 
combined private 
and public initiative 
to provide waste 
management 
developments 

Wes London 
Waste 
Authority 
and private 
sector 

Policy WLWP 4 Amount of 
energy produced 
and delivered 

To ensure 
compliance with 
the aims of the 
London Plan 
2011 and 

Through the 
planning process 

 

114



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 33 
 
 

WLWP Policy Indicator Reason Delivery  Delivery 
Agency 

required carbon 
savings  

Policy WLWP 5   Amount of 
construction 
waste sent to 
landfill  

Reduce amount 
of waste sent to 
landfill  

Use of site waste 
management plans 
monitoring and 
enforcement of 
these and planning 
conditions 

Developers 
West 
London 
Boroughs  

 

115



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 34 
 
 

8 Glossary 
Term/Acronym Definition 
Anaerobic 
Digestion (AD) 

A process whereby biodegradable material is broken down in the 
absence of air (oxygen). Material is placed into a closed vessel 
and in controlled conditions it breaks down into digested material 
and biogas. 

Apportionment Please see ‘London Plan Apportionment’. 
Area Action 
Plan 

Type of Development Plan Document focused on a specific 
location or area which guides development and improvements. It 
forms one component of a Local Development Framework. 

Autoclave A method of sterilisation. Waste is loaded into a rotating sealed 
cylinder and the biodegradable fraction of this waste is then 
broken down by steam treatment into a homogeneous organic 
‘fibre’. 

Biodegradable Biodegradable materials are generally organic, such as plant and 
animal matter and other substances originating from living 
organisms. They can be chemically broken down by naturally 
occurring micro-organisms into simpler compounds. Waste which 
contains organic material can decompose producing bio-gas, 
leachate and other by-products. 

Biodegradable 
Municipal 
Waste (BMW) 

The proportion of waste from households that is capable of 
undergoing natural decomposition such as paper and cardboard, 
garden and food waste. Typically BMW makes up around 68% of 
residual municipal solid waste (MSW). 

Civic Amenity 
Site (CAS) 

Facilities where members of the public can bring a variety of 
household waste for recycling or disposal. Materials accepted 
include, for example: paper, plastic, metal, glass and bulky waste 
such as tyres, refrigerators, electronic products, waste from DIY 
activities and garden waste. These sites are also known as 
‘HWRCs’ (Household Waste Recycling Centres), or ‘RRCs’ 
(Reuse and Recycling Centres). 

Climate 
Change 

Regional or global-scale changes in historical climate patterns 
arising from natural and/or man-made causes that produce an 
increasing mean global surface temperature. 

Clinical Waste Waste arising from medical, nursing, veterinary, pharmaceutical, 
dental or related practices, where risk of infection may be present. 

Combined Heat 
and Power 
(CHP) 

The combined production of heat (usually in the form of steam) 
and power (usually in the form of electricity). The heat can be 
used as hot water to serve a district-heating scheme. 

Commercial 
Waste 

Waste produced from premises used solely or mainly, for the 
purpose of a trade or business or for sport, recreation or 
entertainment. 

116



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 35 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Commercial 
and Industrial 
Waste (C&I) 

Waste arising from business and industry. Industrial waste is 
waste generated by factories and industrial plants. Commercial 
waste is waste produced from premises used solely or mainly, for 
the purpose of a trade or business or for sport, recreation or 
entertainment and arising from the activities of traders, catering 
establishments, shops, offices and other businesses. Commercial 
and Industrial waste may, for example, include food waste, 
packaging and old computer equipment. 

Composting A biological process which takes place in the presence of oxygen 
(i.e. it is aerobic) in which organic wastes, such as garden and 
kitchen waste are converted into a stable granular material. This 
can be applied to land to improve soil structure and enrich the 
nutrient content of the soil. 

Construction, 
Demolition and 
Excavation 
Waste (CD&E) 

Waste arising from the construction, maintenance, repair and 
demolition of roads, buildings and structures. It is mostly 
comprised of concrete, brick, stone and soil, but can also include 
metals, plastics, timber and glass. 

Core Strategy A Local Development Document (which is also a Development 
Plan Document) which provides a written statement of the core 
policies for delivering the spatial strategy and vision for a borough, 
supported by a reasoned justification. 

Department for 
Communities 
and Local 
Government 
(DCLG) 

The government department with overall responsibility for, 
amongst other things, the planning system. 

Department for 
the 
Environment 
Food and Rural 
Affairs (DEFRA) 

Government department with national responsibility for 
sustainable waste management amongst other things. 

Development 
Management 
Document 

A set of criteria-based policies in accordance with the Core 
Strategy, against which planning applications for the development 
and use of land and buildings will be considered. Also known as 
Site Development Policies. 

Development 
Plan Document 
(DPD) 

These are statutory local development documents prepared under 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which set out 
the spatial planning strategy and policies for an area. They have 
the weight of development plan status and are subject to 
community involvement, public consultation and independent 
examination. 

Energy from 
Waste (EfW) 

Energy that is recovered through thermally treating waste. EfW is 
also used to describe some thermal waste treatment plants. 

Energy 
Recovery 

The combustion of waste under controlled conditions in which the 
heat released is recovered to provide hot water and steam 
(usually) for electricity generation (see also Recovery). 

117



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 36 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Environment 
Agency (EA) 

Environmental regulatory authority formed in 1996, combining the 
functions of the former National Rivers Authority, Waste 
Regulation Authorities and Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Pollution. 

European 
Waste 
Catalogue14 
(EWC) 

All wastes are categorised using a 6 digit code which identifies the 
source of the waste. For example, EWC code 20.01.01 is paper 
and cardboard, separately collected from municipal waste, 
whereas 20.03.01 is mixed municipal waste. 

Environmental 
Permit (EP) 

A permit issued by the Environment Agency to regulate the 
operation of a waste management activity. Formerly known as a 
Waste Management Licence. 

Examination Presided over by an Inspector or a Panel of Inspectors appointed 
by the Secretary of State; this can consist of hearing sessions, or 
consideration of written representations to consider whether the 
policies and proposals of the local planning authority's 
Development Plan Documents are sound. Only persons who have 
made representations seeking change to a Development Plan 
Document at the submission stage are entitled to an oral hearing 
at the examination. 

Gasification The thermal breakdown of organic material by heating waste in a 
low oxygen atmosphere to produce a gas. This gas is then used to 
produce heat/electricity.  

Greater London 
Authority (GLA) 

The GLA is a unique form of strategic citywide government for 
London. It is made up of a directly elected Mayor – the Mayor of 
London - and a separately elected Assembly – the London 
Assembly. 

Green Belt A planning designation to check the unrestricted sprawl of large 
built-up areas; to prevent neighbouring towns from merging into 
one another; to assist in safeguarding the countryside from 
encroachment; to preserve the setting and special character of 
historic towns; and to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging 
the recycling of derelict and other urban land. 

Green Waste Organic waste from households, parks, gardens, wooded and 
landscaped areas such as tree prunings, grass clippings, leaves 
etc. 

Greenhouse 
Gas 

A gas in the Earth's atmosphere that traps heat and can contribute 
to global warming. Examples include carbon dioxide and methane. 

ha Hectare (10,000m² of area, which is equivalent to 2.47 acres). 
Habitat 
Directive 
Assessment 

This is a requirement of the European Habitats Directive. Its 
purpose is to assess the impacts of plans and projects on 
internationally designated sites and nature conservation sites. 

                                                
14 The full catalogue can be downloaded from http://www.environment-
agency.gov.uk/static/documents/Leisure/EWC_31-03-09_CH.pdf 

118



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 37 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Hazardous 
Waste 

Waste that contains potentially damaging properties which may 
make it harmful to human health or the environment. It includes 
materials such as asbestos, fluorescent light tubes and lead-acid 
batteries. The European Commission has issued a Directive on 
the controlled management of hazardous waste; wastes are 
defined as hazardous on the basis of a list created under that 
Directive. 

Household 
Waste 

Waste from a private dwelling or residential house or other such 
specified premises, and includes waste taken to household waste 
recycling centres. 

Household 
Waste 
Recycling 
Centre (HWRC) 

Facilities to which the public can bring household waste, such as 
bottles, textiles, cans, paper, green waste and bulky household 
items/waste for free disposal. 

Incineration The burning of waste at high temperatures in the presence of 
sufficient air to achieve complete combustion, either to reduce its 
volume (in the case of municipal solid waste) or its toxicity (such 
as for organic solvents). Municipal solid waste incinerators can 
recover power and/or heat. Incinerators are often referred to as 
EfW (energy from waste) plants. 

Industrial 
Business Park 
(IBP) 

Strategic employment location designed to accommodate general 
industrial, light industrial and research and development uses that 
require a higher quality environment and less heavy goods access 
than a Preferred Industrial Location.  

Industrial 
Waste 

Waste from a factory or industrial process. 

Inert Waste Waste that is not active – it does not decompose or otherwise 
change. 

In-vessel 
Composting 
(IVC) 

Shredded waste is placed inside a chamber or container through 
which air is forced. This speeds up the composting process. It is a 
controlled process and is capable of treating both food and green 
waste by achieving the required composting temperatures. It is 
also known as enclosed composting. 

Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy 
(JMWMS) 

The development of a Municipal Waste Management Strategy is a 
dynamic process and results in a clear framework for the 
management of municipal waste, and waste from other sectors as 
appropriate. This sets out how authorities intend to optimise 
current service provision as well as providing a basis for any new 
systems or infrastructure that may be needed. The Strategy 
should act as an up to date, regularly reviewed, route-map for 
further investment required. 

Kerbside 
Collection 

Any regular collection of recyclables from premises, including 
collections from commercial or industrial premises as well as from 
households. Excludes collection services delivered on demand. 

ktpa kilo-tonnes per annum (a kilo-tonne is 1,000 tonnes). 

119



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 38 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Landfill The deposit of waste onto and into land, in such a way that 

pollution or harm to the environment is prevented and, through 
restoration, to provide land which may be used for another 
purpose. 

Local 
Development 
Framework 
(LDF) 

A portfolio of local development documents that will provide the 
framework for delivering the spatial planning strategy and policies 
for an area. 

Local 
Development 
Scheme (LDS) 

A document setting out the local planning authority's intentions for 
its Local Development Framework; in particular, the Local 
Development Documents it intends to produce and the timetable 
for their production and review. 

London Plan This is the Spatial Development Strategy for London. This 
document was produced by the Mayor of London to provide a 
strategic framework for the boroughs' Unitary Development Plans. 
It will perform this function in respect of Local Development 
Frameworks. It was first published in February 2004 and 
alterations have since been published in September 2006, 
September 2007, February 2008 and July 2011. It has the status 
of a development plan under the Planning & Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

London Plan 
Apportionment 

Allocates to each individual borough a given proportion of 
London’s total waste (expressed in tonnes) for which sufficient 
sites for managing and processing waste must be identified within 
their Local Development Frameworks. 

Materials 
Recycling 
Facility or 
Materials 
Recovery 
Facility (MRF) 

A special sorting ‘factory’ where mixed recyclables are separated 
into individual materials prior to despatch to reprocessors who 
prepare the materials for manufacturing into new recycled 
products. 

Mechanical 
Biological 
Treatment 
(MBT) 

A combination of mechanical separation techniques and biological 
treatment – either aerobic or anaerobic, or a combination of the 
two, which are designed to recover value from and/or treat 
fractions of waste. 

Mechanical 
Heat Treatment 
(MHT) 

A combination of mechanical and heating techniques which are 
designed to sterilise, stabilise and treat waste and recover value 
from it. 

Municipal Solid 
Waste (MSW) 

Any waste collected by or on behalf of a local authority. For most 
local authorities the vast majority of this waste is from the 
households of their residents. Some is from local businesses and 
other organisations such as schools and the local authority’s own 
waste. 

120



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 39 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Planning Policy 
Statement 10 
(PPS10) 

Guidance documents produced by central government relating to 
‘Planning for Sustainable Waste Management’ which set out a 
number of key concepts which should be considered and statutory 
requirements of local and regional planning policy documents. 

Planning Policy 
Statement 12 
(PPS12) 

Guidance documents produced by central government relating to 
‘Local Spatial Planning’. 

Planning Policy 
Statement 25 
(PPS25) 

Guidance documents produced by central government relating to 
‘Development and Flood Risk’ which aims to ensure that flood risk 
is taken into account at all stages in the planning process to avoid 
inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding, and to 
direct development away from areas of highest risk 

Preferred 
Industrial 
Location (PIL) 

Strategic employment site normally suitable for general industrial, 
light industrial and warehousing uses.  

Proposals Map A map showing the location of the sites identified in the Plan 
Pyrolysis The heating of waste in a closed environment, in the absence of 

oxygen, to produce a secondary fuel product. 
Railhead This is a terminus of a railway line that interfaces with another 

transport mode e.g. road network. 
RAMSAR Sites which are wetlands of international importance designated 

under the Ramsar Convention. 
Recovery The process of extracting value from waste materials, including 

recycling, composting and energy recovery. 
Recycling Recovering re-usable materials from waste or using a waste 

material for a positive purpose. 
Refuse Derived 
Fuel (RDF) 

Material produced from waste that has undergone processing. 
Processing can include separation of recyclables and non-
combustible materials, shredding, size reduction, and pelletising. 

Re-use The re-use of materials in their original form, without any 
processing other than cleaning.  

Re-use and 
Recycling 
Centre (RRC) 

Facilities to which the public can bring household waste, such as 
bottles, textiles, cans, paper, green waste and bulky household 
items/waste for free disposal. 

Scoping The process of deciding the scope and level of detail of the 
strategic environmental assessment (SEA) or environmental 
impact assessment (EIA) which might be required to support a 
planning application. 

Section 106 
Agreement 

A legal agreement between the planning authority (borough) and 
the developer, linked to a planning permission, which requires the 
developer to carry out works to offset the potential impacts of their 
development or to benefit the local community. 

121



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 40 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Self-sufficiency Dealing with wastes within the administrative region where they 

are produced. 
Site 
Development 
Policies 

A set of criteria-based policies in accordance with the Core 
Strategy, against which planning applications for the development 
and use of land and buildings will be considered. To set out all 
qualifying site allocations other than those contained in Area 
Action Plans.  

Site of Special 
Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) 

A specifically defined area which protects ecological or geological 
features. 

Site Waste 
Management 
Plan (SWMP) 

A detailed plan setting out how waste will be managed during a 
construction project. This is a legal requirement for most 
construction projects. 

Solid 
Recovered Fuel 
(SRF) 

These are solid fuels (also known as ‘Refuse Derived Fuels’ – 
RDF) prepared from non-hazardous waste to be utilised for energy 
recovery. 

Sound 
(Soundness) 

According to PPS 12 (¶4.52) for a plan to be “sound” it should be 
justified, effective and consistent with national policy. “Justified” 
means that the document must be: founded on a robust and 
credible evidence base and must be the most appropriate strategy 
when considered against the reasonable alternatives. “Effective” 
means that the document must be: deliverable, flexible, and able 
to be monitored 

Spatial 
Planning 

Spatial Planning goes beyond traditional land use planning to 
bring together and integrate policies for the development and use 
of land with other policies and programmes which influence the 
nature of places and how they function. 

Special 
Protection 
Areas (SPA) 

A SSSI is considered to be of international importance designated 
under the EC Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds. 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement 
(SCI) 

A statement of a local authority’s policy for involving the 
community in preparing and revising local development 
documents and for consulting on planning applications. 

Strategic 
Employment 
Locations 
(SELs) 

These comprise Preferred Industrial Locations, Industrial Business 
Parks and Science Parks and exist to ensure that London 
provides sufficient quality sites, in appropriate locations, to meet 
the needs of the general business, industrial and warehousing 
sectors.  

Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment 
(SEA) 

A system of incorporating environmental considerations into 
policies, plans and programmes. It is sometimes referred to as 
Strategic Environmental Impact Assessment and is a legally 
enforced assessment procedure required by Directive 
2001/42/EC. 

122



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 41 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Sub-Regions Sub-regions are the primary geographical features for 

implementing strategic policy at the sub-regional level. 
Sustainable 
Waste 
Management 

Using material resources efficiently to cut down on the amount of 
waste we produce and, where waste is generated, dealing with it 
in a way that actively contributes to economic, social and 
environmental goals of sustainable development. 

Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) 

A formal process which analyses and evaluates the 
environmental, social and economic impacts of a plan or 
programme. 

Sustainability 
Appraisal 
Commentary 

A commentary report that raises sustainability issues relating to 
the Issues and Options report. 

Transport for 
London (TfL) 

An integrated body responsible for the Capital's transport system. 
The primary role of TfL, which is a functional body of the Greater 
London Authority, is to implement the Mayor of London’s 
Transport Strategy and manage transport services across London. 

Thermal 
Treatment 

Treatment of waste using heat e.g. incineration, pyrolysis, 
gasification, etc. 

tpa Tonnes per annum. 
Unitary 
Development 
Plan (UDP) 

A type of development plan introduced in 1986, that is to be 
replaced by Local Development Frameworks. 

Waste Arising The amount of waste generated in a given locality over a given 
period of time. 

Waste 
Collection 
Authority 
(WCA) 

Organisation responsible for collection of household waste e.g. 
your local council. 

Waste 
Development 
Plan Document 
(WDPD) 

Planning document which will provide a basis for the provision of 
waste management infrastructure in the sub-region e.g. the West 
London Waste Plan (see ‘West London Waste Plan’). 

Waste Disposal 
Authority 
(WDA) 

Organisation responsible for disposing of municipal waste. For 
west London this is the West London Waste Authority (WLWA). 

Waste 
Hierarchy 

An order of waste management methods, enshrined in European 
and UK legislation, based on their predicted sustainability. The 
hierarchy is summarised as “reduce (prevent), re-use, 
recycle/compost, recover, dispose”. 

Waste 
Management 
Capacity 

The amounts of waste currently able to be managed (recycled, 
composted or recovered) by waste management facilities within 
west London. 

123



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 42 
 
 

Term/Acronym Definition 
Waste 
Management 
Licence (WML) 

The licence required by anyone who proposes to deposit, recover 
or dispose of controlled waste. These are now known as 
Environmental Permits. 

Waste 
Minimisation 

Reducing the volume of waste that is produced. This is at the top 
of the Waste Hierarchy. 

Waste Planning 
Authority (WPA) 

Local authority responsible for waste planning. In west London the 
six boroughs are the Waste Planning Authority for their area. 

Waste Transfer 
Station 

A facility where waste is delivered for sorting prior to transfer to 
another place e.g. landfill. 

West London 
Waste Authority 
(WLWA) 

West London’s statutory waste disposal authority. The WLWA’s 
main function is to arrange the disposal of waste collected by its 
six constituent boroughs. 

West London 
Waste Plan 
(WLWP) 

The Waste Development Plan Document being produced for west 
London (see ‘Waste Development Plan Document’). 

 

 

124



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 43 
 
 

9 Appendices 
Appendix 1: Sustainability Appraisal  

Appendix 2: General waste treatment facility descriptions 

Appendix 3: Borough waste projection and apportionment figures - London 
Plan (2011) 

Appendix 4: Map of existing waste management sites considered to have 
potential for re-development as waste management facilities  

Appendix 5: Map of proposed new sites with opportunity for developing waste 
management facilities  

125



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 44 
 
 

Appendix 1 - Sustainability Appraisal 
The purpose of Sustainability Appraisal is to promote sustainable development 
through the integration of social, environmental and economic considerations into the 
preparation of revisions of Regional Spatial Strategies and for new or revised 
Development Plan Documents and Supplementary Planning Documents.  

This process will ensure that planning decisions are made that accord with the 
principles defined in the Government’s UK Sustainable Development agenda15. The 
timing of the Sustainability Appraisal aims to ensure that sustainability considerations 
are taken into account early in the process of policy development. 

Sustainability Appraisals must also, where appropriate, incorporate the requirements 
of the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive (2001/EC/42) (SEA Directive)16. 
The SEA Directive requires that a formal assessment is undertaken of plans and 
programmes which are likely to have significant effects on the environment. This has 
been transposed into UK law through the SEA Regulations (July 2004)17.The 
purpose of the SEA Directive is “to provide for a high level of protection of the 
environment and to contribute to the integration of environmental considerations into 
the preparation and adoption of plans and programmes with a view to promoting 
sustainable development”. 

Sustainability Appraisal Approach 

The approach adopted for the Sustainability Appraisal was iterative and involved a 
high degree of interaction between those individuals responsible for the 
Sustainability Appraisal and those individuals responsible for development of the 
Plan.  

Scoping 

The first stage in the Sustainability Appraisal process (Stage A of DCLG guidance) 
involves assembling information on the existing environmental, social and economic 
baseline to provide a starting point for appraising the effects of implementing the 
Plan. To provide a sound basis for analysis, the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping 
Report also identified relevant plans and programmes, key sustainability issues and 
problems and detailed a Sustainability Framework through which the appraisal could 
                                                
15 Defra Sustainable Development Unit - http://www.sustainable-
development.gov.uk/publications/uk-strategy/framework-for-sd.htm. 
16 European Directive 2001/42/EC “on the assessment of the effects of certain plans and 
programmes on the environment” (the Strategic Environmental Assessment or ‘SEA 
Directive’ 
17 The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations. Statutory 
Instrument 2004 No. 1633. 

126



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 45 
 
 

take place; this information was reported in the form of the Sustainability Appraisal 
Scoping Report18. 

Issues and Options 

The Issues and Options vision and objectives were tested for compatibility with the 
Sustainability Appraisal objectives through a compatibility matrix. During 
development of the draft issues and options for the Plan, the draft Sustainability 
Framework set out in the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report was applied to 
each potential option (Stage B of DCLG guidance).  

A Sustainability Commentary19 was produced in which the key findings were 
provided in association with each of the identified issues and options. The 
Sustainability Commentary was prepared to meet the requirements of DCLG 
guidance (para 3.39) “As each option is refined, a commentary on the key 
sustainability issues and problems arising must be prepared, with recommendations 
on how each of the options could be improved, e.g. through mitigation measures.” 

Proposed Sites and Policies/Draft Plan 

The Proposed Sites and Policies for the Plan were developed taking into account 
findings presented in the Sustainability Commentary as well as the results of 
consultation on the Issues and Options and relevant evidence base material. 

The Proposed Sites and Policies were tested for compatibility with the Sustainability 
Appraisal Objectives and the results were taken into account, as necessary, during 
further drafting and refinement of the options. 

The Site Assessment Criteria used to evaluate the long list of sites were assessed 
using the Sustainability Appraisal objectives, and the results were incorporated into 
the Plan.  

The majority of the Sustainability Appraisal objectives are addressed by the site 
selection criteria. When it was considered that the objectives were not being met, 
mitigation was recommended and incorporated into the Plan. 

The policies contained within the Plan were assessed against sustainability 
objectives. Where mitigation was recommended this has been addressed where 
appropriate in the Plan.  

                                                
18 Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report for the WLWP July 2008. 
19 West London Waste Plan Issues and Options, Sustainability Appraisal, Sustainability 
Commentary, February 2009. 

127



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 46 
 
 

The SEA Directive requires the significant environmental effects of implementing the 
plan or programmes to be monitored “in order to identify unforeseen adverse effects 
and to be able to undertake remedial action” (Article 10(1)). Responsible Authorities 
must ensure when designing their monitoring arrangements that they comply with 
this provision. This guidance uses the term ‘SEA monitoring’ to cover the overall 
monitoring of environmental effects. The Sustainability Appraisal Report includes 
draft monitoring recommendations and these will be updated following the 
consultation period. 

Reporting 

Outputs from the Sustainability Appraisal are presented in this Sustainability 
Appraisal Report which is designed to fulfil the requirements of the SEA Directive in 
respect of the Strategic Environmental Assessment Environmental Report. This 
report is published alongside the Proposed Sites and Policies Report. 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 

The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) was undertaken to ensure that flood 
risk is considered as part of the spatial planning process. As required in Planning 
Policy Statement 2520, we have used the findings of the Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment on regional and local flood risk issues in the assessment of sites 
suitable for waste management. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

The Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) was undertaken to ensure that the West 
London Waste Plan does not discriminate against specific target groups. The 
Equalities Impact Assessment of the Issues and Options identified the options that 
may have a negative impact on certain target groups. Since the development of the 
Plan’s policies, a further assessment has been undertaken and suggested mitigation 
has been incorporated into the Plan and Sustainability Appraisal Report. We have 
taken this into account when developing the Proposed Sites and Policies to ensure 
that no target group experiences a high level negative impact from the West London 
Waste Plan. The EqIA will be published alongside the Proposed Sites and Policies/ 
Draft Plan. 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

                                                
20 Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk – DCLG, 2006. 

128



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 47 
 
 

The Habitats Regulations Assessment relates to Natura 2000 sites designated under 
the European Habitats and Birds Directives21. 

In October 2009 a screening exercise was carried out to determine the need for a 
Habitat Directive Assessment of the potential impacts of the West London Waste 
Plan’s Issues and Options upon any European designated site located within 10 km 
of the six west London boroughs. The report concluded that some of the Issues and 
Options had the potential to impact the Natura 2000 sites identified, and that an 
Appropriate Assessment and ascertainment of the effect on site integrity was 
required. A further screening exercise to determine whether any of the recently 
developed policies are likely to trigger the need for a full Habitats Directive 
Assessment of the Plan, in compliance with the EC Habitats Directive, was 
undertaken. 

The Plan policies have now been updated to incorporate the recommendations from 
the Habitats Regulations Assessment Screening. The Screening Report therefore 
concludes that the Plan is unlikely to have an adverse effect on the qualifying 
features of any Natura 2000 sites and therefore no further work is required. This 
Screening Report is published alongside the Proposed Sites and Policies and will be 
available to individuals and organisations involved in consultation on the Proposed 
Sites and Policies. 

The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, Equalities Impact Assessment and Habitats 
Directive Screening Assessment can be found at http://www.wlwp.net/. 

                                                
21 European Directive 992/43/EC on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna 
and flora and European Directive 79/409/EEC on the conservation of wild birds. 

129



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 48 
 
 

Appendix 2: General Waste Treatment Facility 
Description 
Facility type General Description General Appearance 

Materials Recovery 
Facility (MRF) 

A facility that sorts recyclable material 
collected from households or businesses 
into separate materials. The materials are 
then sent for reprocessing into useful 
materials or products. 

Consists of mechanical 
sorting equipment and 
conveyor belts. Normally 
housed inside a 
warehouse type building. 

Composting Composting facilities are generally 
enclosed in special units to minimise 
odours. Enclosed composting units can 
compost food and garden waste collected 
from homes and businesses. 

Generally housed inside 
warehouse type buildings. 

Recycling and 
Reuse Centre 
(RRC) 

Site for the public to take recyclable and 
general waste to. The sites normally 
consist of skips and containers for a wide 
range of different materials, encouraging 
recycling. 

Open facilities with 
accessible waste 
containers. 

Mechanical 
Biological 
Treatment (MBT) 

MBT is generally used to treat general 
(residual) waste (that is waste that is not 
in the recycling bin) from homes and 
businesses. The waste is treated 
biologically and mechanically which 
essentially separates the materials 
suitable for recycling from an organic 
fraction which is generally used as a fuel 
or can be composted. 

Generally housed inside 
warehouse type buildings. 

Anaerobic 
Digestion  

Anaerobic Digestion is only suitable for 
organic wastes such as food and garden 
waste. The waste is enclosed in tanks 
without oxygen and digested to produce 
a biogas which can be used as a fuel. A 
sludge is also produced which can be 
composted and used on land. 

Large industrial tanks and 
warehouse-type buildings. 

Gasification/ 
Pyrolysis/Autoclave 

Advanced thermal treatment technologies 
are methods of breaking down waste 
using heat, to produce heat and power. 
Gasification uses a little oxygen to break 
the waste down whereas pyrolysis does 
not use any oxygen. Such methods give 
more control over the process and 
reduce emissions. Autoclaving involves 
‘cooking’ the waste with steam to 
separate materials to produce 
recyclables and fuel. 

Industrial type buildings, 
normally with a chimney. 

 

130



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 49 
 
 

Appendix 3: Borough waste arisings and 
apportionments 
 

Waste arising figures –London Plan 2011 

Borough 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 
 MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I 
Brent 136 202 143 200 149 199 156 196 161 194 
Ealing 158 232 164 219 170 211 176 209 181 207 
Harrow 120 143 123 139 126 136 129 134 131 133 
Hillingdon 152 336 157 335 162 338 167 341 171 348 
Hounslow 132 231 136 223 140 215 144 212 147 211 
Richmond 100 143 103 142 105 141 107 141 109 143 
Totals 798 1,287 826 1,258 852 1240 879 1,233 900 1,236 
All figures are in a 1000 tonnes. MSW = Municipal Solid Waste C&I = Commercial and Industrial Waste 
 

Waste apportionment figures –London Plan 2011 

Borough 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 
 MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I MSW C&I 
Brent 90 160 109 174 130 190 152 207 175 225 
Ealing 114 202 138 221 165 241 193 262 221 286 
Harrow 57 101 69 110 82 120 96 131 111 143 
Hillingdon 96 170 116 186 139 202 162 220 186 240 
Hounslow 92 165 112 179 134 195 157 213 180 232 
Richmond 56 100 68 109 81 119 95 129 109 141 
Totals 505 898 612 979 731 1067 855 1162 982 1267 
All figures are in a 1000 tonnes. MSW = Municipal Solid Waste C&I = Commercial and Industrial Waste 
 

131



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 50 
 
 

Appendix 4: Details of Existing Waste 
Management Sites considered to have potential 
for re-development as waste management 
facilities 
Table 4-1 Existing Waste Management and Waste Transfer Sites  

 

 

 

Table 4-2: Existing waste sites considered to have potential for redevelopment 
Site 

Number 
Site Area 

(ha) 
Borough Description Site Type 

352 1.46 Brent Twyford Waste Transfer Station Transfer Station 

1261 2.71 Brent Veolia Transfer Station, Marsh Road Transfer Station 

309 1.15 Ealing Greenford Reuse & Recycling Site Transfer Station 

310 0.94 Ealing Greenford Depot, Greenford Road Depot Facility 

328 2.10 Ealing Quattro, Victoria Road, Park Royal Transfer Station 

303 4.25 Hillingdon Victoria Road Transfer Station Transfer Station 

353 3.11 Hounslow Transport Avenue Waste Transfer Station Transfer Station 

342 3.67 Richmond Twickenham Depot Depot Facility 

 

132



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 51 
 
 

 
Site 352 Twyford Waste Transfer Station, Abbey Road, Brent 

 
 

 
Site 1261 Veolia Transfer Station, Marsh Road, Alperton, Brent 

 
 

133



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 52 
 
 

Site 309 Greenford Reuse & Recycling Site, Greenford Road, Greenford, Ealing 

 
 

 
Site 310 Greenford Depot, Greenford Road, Greenford, Ealing  

 
 

 

134



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 53 
 
 

Site 328 Quattro, Victoria Road, Park Royal, Ealing 

 
 

 
Site 303 Victoria Road Waste Transfer Station, Civic Way, Hillingdon  

 
 

 

135



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 54 
 
 

Site 353 Transfer Avenue Waste Transfer Station, Brentford, Hounslow 

 
 
Site 342 Twickenham Depot, Langhorn Drive, Twickenham, Richmond 

 

136



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 55 
 
 

Appendix 5: Details of Proposed New Sites with 
opportunity for developing waste management 
facilities 
 

Table 0-2: Proposed new sites with opportunity for developing waste management facilities 
Site 

Number 
Site Area 

(ha) 
Borough Description 

222 2.83 Harrow Council depot, Forward Drive 

244 3.12 Hillingdon Yeading Brook, Bulls Bridge 

2861 3.20 Hounslow Western International Market 

 
Site 222 Council Depot, Forward Drive, Harrow 

 
 

 

 

 

137



Draft West London Waste Plan 
Proposed Submission Version 

© Mouchel 2011 56 
 
 

Site 244 Yeading Brook, Former Powergen Site, Bulls Bridge, Hayes, Hillingdon 

 
 

 
Site 2861 Vacant Site Western International Market, Hayes Road, Southall, Hounslow 

 
 

138



 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

13th December 2011 
Subject: 
 

Strategic overview of Voluntary Sector 
support and update on implementation 
of Third Sector Strategy 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Marianne Locke, Divisional Director 
Community and Culture  
 

Scrutiny Lead Member 
area: 
 

Councillor Chris Mote, Policy Lead – 
Safer and Stronger Communities 
 
Councillor Nana Asante, Performance 
Lead – Safer and Stronger 
Communities 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

 
Appendix 1: Third Sector Strategy 
Appendix 2: Third Sector Investment 
Plan 
Appendix 3: Third Sector Strategy 
action plan progress update 
Appendix 4: Draft Third Sector 
Strategy action plan: future priorities 

 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report provides an overview of Council support to the Voluntary Sector 
and an update on the implementation of the Third Sector Strategy.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny committee is requested:  

1. To note progress against the action plan for the Third Sector Strategy 
and current developments regarding Council support to the Voluntary 
Sector. 

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 139 to 198 

139



2. To consider proposed updated actions (Appendix 4) in the light of 
these developments which will be the subject of consultation with the 
Third Sector in January 2012. 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 

2.1 Introductory paragraph 
 
2.1.1 This report provides an overview of Council support to the Voluntary 

Sector and an update on the implementation of the Third Sector 
Strategy. The terms ‘Voluntary Sector’ and ‘Third Sector’ are often 
used interchangeably and generally refer to not-for-profit organisations 
set up to achieve social benefit. To ensure consistency, this report will 
use the term Third Sector as defined in the Third Sector Strategy: 

 
Not for profit independent, voluntary and community groups or 
organisations formed by local people, or those with a local interest, 
to improve the quality of lives for themselves and/or fellow citizens 
in Harrow. These include registered charities; voluntary 
organisations; community groups; faith groups involved in social 
action; community interest companies and; social enterprises. 
 

2.1.2 The Council is committed to supporting the Third Sector and 
recognises the valuable contribution it makes in providing services to 
local residents. In recent years the Council has sought to ensure that it 
aligns the provision of that support to the delivery of its Corporate 
Priorities. This report sets out developments that have taken place in 
achieving this and the future direction of Council support to the Third 
Sector. 

 
2.2 Background  
 
2.2.1 In 2008, the Overview and Scrutiny committee published its report 

‘Delivering a strengthened voluntary sector’. Twenty-one of the 
recommendations were accepted by Cabinet in March 2009. In 
response to these recommendations, the Council conducted a 
consultation with the Third Sector in 2009 on revisions to the grant 
application process that resulted in changes to the 2010-11 grant 
application process. These changes included the introduction of a 
scoring mechanism and revisions to the grant eligibility criteria.    

 
2.2.2 In 2010, consultation was undertaken to inform the development of the 

Third Sector Strategy (Appendix 1) which was adopted by Cabinet in 
April 2010. The Strategy sets out the Council’s strategic view of its 
future relationship with the Third Sector. The Strategy’s action plan 
now requires revision for the next phase of implementation. 

 
2.2.3 In 2011, further consultation was undertaken with the Third Sector on 

reviewing the way that Council support was provided. As a result of this 
consultation the Council approved the Third Sector Investment Plan 
2012-15 in October 2011 (Appendix 2). 

 

140



 
 
 
2.3 Current situation 
 
2.3.1 A cross-corporate internal stakeholders’ working group was reinstated 

in November 2010 to monitor the delivery of actions against the Third 
Sector Strategy and as a consultation group for the development of 
strategic support for the sector (such as the Funding and Procurement 
Compact Code and the Third Sector Investment Plan). It is proposed to 
hold a workshop in January 2012 with the Third Sector to as part of the 
next stage of reviewing progress against the strategy and revising the 
action plan and to seek nominations from the sector to become part of 
the working group. 
 

2.3 2 The objectives of the Third Sector Strategy have been delivered to date 
in the following ways (see action plan update Appendix 3): 

 
(i) Objective 1: To deepen partnership working by strengthening 

the role of the Third Sector as a strategic partner;  
 
-  The Funding and Procurement code of the Compact is currently 
being updated in consultation with internal and external 
stakeholders so that it reflects proposed changes to funding and 
commissioning arrangements. The new revision will be circulated to 
the HSP VCS reps in December 2011 for final comments before 
formal adoption early in the new year. 
- The new HSP structure reflects the current strategic role of the 

partnership in particular with strategic direction. Three sector 
representatives are on the HSP Board and all five reps are part 
of the HSP Assembly. The VCS are holding elections for these 
positions in May 2012 through the Voluntary Sector Forum and 
will be supported by the Council. 

- The Grants Advisory Panel has a VCS representative to advise 
on matters and the sector has been consulted on the proposals 
for the Third Sector Investment Plan and changes to grant 
application processes. 

- The VCS representatives were members of the HAVS ‘Way 
Forward’ Group which supported HAVS trustees in a potential 
turnaround project and are key members of the Interim CVS 
Board with the Council, from developing a specification for 
interim services to monitoring and developing services for the 
future. 

 
(ii) Objective 2: To build the capacity of the Third Sector to help it 

change itself to address the future;   
 

The move towards commissioning will be a challenge for many 
Third Sector organisations, however, the Third Sector itself 
recognises the need to change itself to address the future. The 
Council has put in place training workshops to support the Third 
Sector and further support to help organisations prepare for 
commissioning is also planned. Following the difficulties at Harrow 

141



Association of Voluntary Service (HAVS) the Council commissioned 
a new Interim CVS service from a consortium of Ealing, Hillingdon, 
Hammersmith and Fulham CVS. The new service started in 
September 2011 and will be in place until 31st March 2012. The 
interim service is working closely with the Council and Third Sector 
representatives to provide capacity building and fundraising 
support, volunteer brokerage, ICT support and training workshops. 
The consortium is also supporting the Voluntary Sector Forum and 
Interim CVS board in undertaking a consultation to inform the 
service specification for a potential new infrastructure support 
service. 
 

(iii) Objective 3: Enabling participation by increasing opportunities 
for Third Sector involvement in the design and delivery of 
public services through a more transparent commissioning 
process and improving the management and administration of 
grant funding. 
 
The Third Sector Investment Plan will deliver a transparent 
commissioning process for securing services that align with the 
Council’s corporate priorities. With longer term funding 
arrangements in place organisations will be able to plan their 
services more effectively and work with the Council in designing 
and delivering services that meet the needs of local residents. 
 
Since 2008 there have been a number of developments that have 
improved the management and administration of grant funding. 
Most recently an internal audit report commissioned by the HAVS 
Scrutiny Challenge Panel made a number of recommendations for 
improvement. Action has been taken to address these 
recommendations that led to an improved process for the 2011-12 
grant-funding round. Further improvements have been put in place 
for the 2012-13 funding round including the inclusion of VCS 
representatives as observers on the grant assessment panels. 

 
2.3.3 Since the adoption of the Third Sector Strategy there have been a 

number of significant developments that have affected local Third 
Sector organisations. As well as major changes to the funding 
landscape, the lack of a CVS service has had an impact on the 
Sector’s access to good quality capacity building support and 
representation. Despite this, the Council has continued to work with the 
Voluntary Sector Forum and HSP representatives to achieve good 
progress against the action plan. In light of the recent approval of the 
Third Sector Investment Plan, the action plan now requires updating. 
Appendix 4 provides an updated action plan which the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider and comment upon. 

 
2.3.4 The Council is now implementing the Third Sector Investment Plan 

which sets out a strategic framework for the delivery of Council support 
to the Third Sector to replace the current Main Grants programme and 
accommodation offer as follows:  

 

142



I. The delivery of commissioning and small projects funding 
through the Main Grants programme.  

II. A strategic approach to the development of Third Sector 
accommodation hubs and a review of premises for venue hire. 

III. Alignment of the provision of other support such as discretionary 
rate relief to the principles of the Third Sector Investment Plan. 
 

2.3.3 Following feedback from the Third Sector and other stakeholders the 
Council agreed to a phased implementation of these proposals during 
2012-13. These are as follows: 

 
I. The Main Grants Programme is being offered using the current 

processes for the funding period 2012-13. Decisions will be brought to 
Grants Advisory Panel in February and Cabinet in March 2012 for 
approval. The process will be conducted as in 2011/12 incorporating the 
recommendations of the Internal Audit. Assessments will be made by 
grants panels drawn from officers across the Council. Representatives 
from the Third Sector will be invited as observers to the panels to further 
ensure transparency. 

 
II. Pilots for commissioned services for the Main Grants funding will be 

identified in consultation with the Third Sector at the January workshop 
and with internal stakeholders early in 2012 and service specifications 
will be developed in consultation with the Portfolio Holder and other 
stakeholders. Procurement will be carried out in line with the Council’s 
procurement procedures. 

 
III.   A number of projects are underway to support the development of 
the accommodation offer for the Third Sector in Harrow. These include: 
 
a) A review of the Discretionary Rate Relief policy. Consultation is 

currently being conducted with the sector. 
b) The development of community hub bookable space in libraries, 

children’s centres and community halls. This cross-Directorate 
project will consider where Third Sector organisations can be 
supported/encouraged to make better use of existing facilities 
through appropriate hire or licence agreements to be agreed with 
Corporate Estate and Legal Services.  A pilot project has been 
submitted for consideration for the Transformation Priority Fund. 

c) Potential funding of £60,000 from the Harrow Strategic Partnership 
(HSP) that has been set aside from the Local Area Agreement 
reward grant to support accommodation options. Applications were 
initially received from CARRAMEA (a cooperative of organisations 
based at the existing Community Premises base in South Harrow) 
and RAFT which is a cooperative including Mencap, African SANG 
and others. Both consortia have been invited to resubmit 
applications which will be considered by the HSP in December 
2011. 

d) Harrow Third Sector organisations are part of a West London 
funding application to the Big Lottery  ‘Transforming Local 
Infrastructure Fund’ which if successful would also provide funding 
for the development of a resource centre in the Borough.  

 

143



Whilst proposals are being developed, organisations based at 
Community Premises in South Harrow have had their Facilities Use 
Agreements extended. Projects under consideration include: 

 
2.3.5 The community lettings scheme, whereby organisations receive a 50% 

discount on school bookings made through the Council, has been 
reviewed several times over the years. Community organisations have 
been concerned to preserve the Council subsidy for these bookings. 
Seven schools which transferred to Academy status during the year 
made a commitment to take direct bookings at the rates currently 
charged for the first year of bookings. This leaves nine primary schools 
in the Community Lettings scheme.  

 
2.3.6 If the Council retains bookings for certain schools, processes will be 

revised in order to reduce a potential negative financial impact for the 
Council. A number of alternative arrangements are under discussion, 
which could include a consortium approach for schools, and/or placing 
bookings through an automated booking system to reduce costs. This 
transition will need to be worked through over the next months with the 
alternative in place by 2012/13. 

 
 

2.4 Why a change is needed 
 
2.4.1 The Council supports the Third Sector in a number of ways including;  

� Directly with funding either in the form of grants or commissioning;  
� Support with accommodation either directly or through the provision 

of discretionary rate relief;  
� Other support such as fund-raising advice and employee 

volunteering.  
 
This support is delivered across a number of Council Directorates and 
the Third Sector Strategy and Investment Plan aim to ensure that there 
is co-ordination and a strategic overview of how this support is 
delivered in the future. In the current financial climate however, all 
Directorates are reviewing the way support is provided to ensure that 
resources are used in the most cost effective way for the benefit of 
Harrow residents. 

 
2.4.2 The Council commissions a range of services from the Third Sector 

where the Council recognises that these organisations are better 
placed to deliver than statutory agencies. Both the Adults and Housing 
and Children’s Services Departments are reviewing their 
commissioning strategies to ensure they align with future service 
delivery requirements. 

 
2.4.3 There is a high level of demand for grant funding. During the 2011/12 

grant funding round the Council received a record number of 
applications with a total funding request of approximately £2.3 million 
against a budget of £670,000. The Third Sector will need to change 
and adapt to meet the challenges of potentially fewer resources and/or 
commissioning. The Third Sector Strategy and Investment Plan aim to 

144



address these challenges against a continued commitment to build a 
sustainable and independent Third Sector.  

 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 
2.5 Staffing/workforce  
 
2.5.1 The delivery of the Third Sector Strategy and Investment Plan may 

have implications for changes to staff roles and responsibilities.  These 
changes will be managed within the Council’s policies and procedures 
including the Protocol for Managing Change. 

2.6 Legal comments 
 
2.6.1 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality 

duty.  The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties to 
secure a particular outcome. The equalities impact will be revisited on 
each of the proposals as they are developed. Consideration of the 
duties should precede the decision.  It is important that decision 
makers have regard to the statutory grounds in the light of all available 
material such as consultation responses.  The statutory grounds of the 
public sector equality duty are found at section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010 and are as follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share 
it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
It is important that when making decisions involving voluntary groups 
who serve persons with the relevant protected characteristics that a full 
equalities Impact is completed. 
 
The relevant protected characteristics are: 
 

• Age 
• Disability 
• Gender reassignment 
• Pregnancy and maternity 
• Race, 
• Religion or belief 
• Sex 
• Sexual orientation 
• Marriage and Civil partnership 

 
 
 

145



2.7 Financial Implications 
 
2.7.1 The budget for the delivery of the Main Grants Programme in 2011/12 

was £669,360. The proposals contained within this report are based on 
the assumption that the budget in 2012/13 will remain at the same level 
however, this level of funding is by no means guaranteed and whether 
it stays the same, is increased, or decreased, depends on the outcome 
of the budget and medium term financial planning process. 
 

2.7.2 The proposed changes to the delivery of the Main Grants Programme 
will impact on the way that the budget is distributed between grants 
and commissioning in future years. Proposed changes will be 
contained within the overall Main Grants budget or as part of an overall 
corporate commissioning model.  

 
2.7.3 The commissioning of services from the Third Sector will be managed 

in accordance with EU procurement rules and regulations where 
applicable. 

 
2.7.4 The re-provision of Council support with Third Sector accommodation 

will be managed within existing budgets or supported through 
applications for external funding as described above in paragraph 
2.3.6. 

 
2.8 Performance Issues 
 
2.8.1 The implementation of the Third Sector Strategy and Investment Plan 

will contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
Outcomes for grant funded or commissioned services will be aligned to 
these priorities and monitored through the annual monitoring process. 
The results of this monitoring will be used to assess overall 
performance of funded services and help inform future service 
specifications.  

 
2.9 Environmental Impact 
 

2.9.1 The commissioning of services from the Third Sector will be 
undertaken using the Council’s standard procurement processes. 
These include a requirement for applicants to demonstrate that they 
have Environmental Policies in place.  

 
2.9.2 The Third Sector Investment Plan supports the Council’s commitment 

to ensure that procurement and supply chain management should be 
inclusive of the local Third Sector. 

 
2.10 Risk Management Implications 
 
2.10.1 The following risks have been identified for the implementation of the 

Third Sector Strategy and Investment Plan; 
• Capacity of the Third Sector to respond to commissioning: This risk 

will be mitigated by putting in place training and capacity building 
support to the Third Sector. 

146



• The need to ensure adequate contract management and monitoring 
systems are in place: This risk will be mitigated by (1) working with 
the Council’s Procurement team to ensure that contract management 
issues are addressed and (2) continued improvement of monitoring 
processes across Council directorates. 

• Continued heavy demand on the Council’s Main Grants Programme: 
This risk will be mitigated by improving the provision of advice and 
guidance on other funding opportunities. 

• Risk to Council funds where a Third Sector organisation is at risk of 
financial instability: This risk will be mitigated by undertaking financial 
checks on organisations prior to the payment of funds and during the 
mid-year monitoring process.     

 
2.11 Equalities implications 
 
2.11.1 Changes to the way that Council support is delivered to the Third 

Sector has been based on the results of consultations that have been 
ongoing since 2009. These consultations include; 

 
I. Consultation with the Third Sector undertaken during May 2009 to 

inform changes to the grant application process. 
II. Consultation with the Third Sector to inform the Third Sector Strategy. 
III. Consultation with the Third Sector undertaken during December 2010 

- January 2011 to inform the Third Sector Investment Plan. 
IV. Focus group meetings with the VCS, Community Premises user 

groups, community lettings user groups and schools representatives, 
during January 2011. 

V. Consultation feedback meetings with VCS representatives, schools 
representatives, Community Premises user groups, community 
lettings user groups, during March – May 2011. 

VI. Consultation Workshop with internal stakeholders, in May 2011. 
VII. Consultation Workshop with Third Sector stakeholders, in June 2011. 
VIII. Consultation with members of the Grants Advisory Panel, during 

June, July and September 2011. 
IX. Internal consultation with senior management group in August 2011. 

 
2.11.2 An equalities impact assessment was undertaken on the Third Sector 

Investment Plan. This assessment identified that the changes could 
have both a potential positive and potential negative impact on 
protected equality groups. The commissioning and grant funding 
principles contained in the Plan are designed to support the delivery of 
discretionary services for the Council in accordance with its statutory 
functions including its equalities duties. The commissioning principles 
aim to support the delivery of services that;  

• tackle disadvantage based on evidence of need;  
• prevention services that promote health and well-being;  
• advocacy, information / advice and sign-posting service;  
• culturally specific services that address the needs of 

communities  
• and infrastructure support services for the Third Sector to 

support all Third Sector organisations delivering services in 
Harrow.  

147



The adoption of these principles should enable the Council to secure 
services that meet the needs of the protected equality groups. 
 

2.11.3 It is recognised however, that the proposals will have an impact on the 
availability of grant funding for the annual process that has traditionally 
supported a range of services delivered by Third Sector organisations. 
With increasing competition for grant funding there is a potential impact 
on some organisations and services that serve the needs of protected 
groups.  

 
2.11.4 The decision to introduce the changes to commissioning and small 

grants using a phased approach aims to mitigate the potential negative 
impact on groups. A phased implementation will allow Third Sector 
organisations likely to be affected by the changes more time to prepare 
for commissioning and more time to put in place alternative fund-
raising strategies. The Council will also put in place training and 
capacity building support to assist organisations during this transition 
period. The piloting of commissioning in one or two service areas will 
also allow the Council to test the approach and learn any lessons 
before full implementation. The Council will continue to review its 
equalities duties during the development and implementation phases. 

 
2.12 Corporate Priorities 
 
2.12.1 This report incorporates the following corporate priorities: 

• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe. 
• United and involved communities:  A Council that listens and 
leads. 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
Council support to the Third Sector will be aligned to the delivery of 
these priorities thereby facilitating closer partnership working between 
the sectors. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Kanta Hirani �  Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: 1 December 2011 
 
 
 

   

148



    
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessica Farmer �  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 30th November 2011 

   
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 

Contact:  Kashmir Takhar, Head of Service Community Development, 020 
8420 9331 
Background Papers:   
None 

149



150

This page is intentionally left blank



1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 

W
o

rk
in

g
 B

et
te

r 
T

o
g

et
h

er
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

151



2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

P
ag

e 
3 

 
F

or
ew

or
d 

P
ag

e 
3 

 
D

ef
in

iti
on

 

P
ag

e 
4 

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

S
um

m
ar

y 

P
ag

e 
5 

-7
 

 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

 
 

 
W

hy
 h

as
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y?
 

P
ag

e 
8 

 
S

ec
tio

n 
2 

 
 

 
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 H
ar

ro
w

’s
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

or
k?

 

P
ag

e 
9 

-1
6 

 
S

ec
tio

n 
3 

 
 

 
O

ur
 A

m
bi

tio
ns

 a
nd

 E
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

P
ag

e 
17

 -
 2

0 
 

S
ec

tio
n 

4 
 

 
 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 

P
ag

e 
21

 
 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
 

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

152



3

H
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
l T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

W
or

ki
ng

 B
et

te
r 

T
og

et
he

r 
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

H
ar

ro
w

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

O
ur

 a
im

 is
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
s 

a 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
; w

or
k 

or
 s

tu
dy

 b
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 p
ur

su
in

g 
se

pa
ra

te
 o

ut
co

m
es

.  
O

ur
 w

or
k 

is
 il

lu
m

in
at

ed
 b

y 
ou

r 
T

ot
al

 P
la

ce
 

In
iti

at
iv

e,
 w

hi
ch

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
s 

us
 to

 c
ut

 b
ur

ea
uc

ra
cy

 a
nd

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 p

ut
 r

es
id

en
ts

 fi
rs

t i
n 

jo
in

ed
-u

p 
se

rv
ic

es
, w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

 w
ha

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
es

 
ne

ed
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

its
el

f, 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 ‘B
et

te
r 

D
ea

l F
or

 R
es

id
en

ts
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e’
 to

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

th
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ow
s 

ho
w

 it
 w

ill
 r

e-
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
as

 a
 s

tr
on

g,
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 im

po
rt

an
t p

ar
tn

er
. 

W
e 

ar
e 

ve
ry

 g
ra

te
fu

l f
or

 th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
.

V
is

io
n

:
H

ar
ro

w
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

st
ro

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 w

he
re

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

re
si

de
nt

s’
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 
an

d 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

.  
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
w

ill
 s

ha
pe

, i
nf

lu
en

ce
 a

nd
 p

la
y 

its
 p

ar
t i

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
ho

w
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

.  
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 a
 s

ha
re

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

P
ro

je
ct

 S
p

o
n

so
rs

: 

B
re

nd
on

 H
ill

s 
  

– 
 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ju
lia

 S
m

ith
  

 
– 

 
H

ar
ro

w
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

B
y 

th
e 

‘T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r’ 
w

e 
m

ea
n 

N
ot

 fo
r 

pr
of

it 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t, 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
or

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e,

 o
r 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 a

 lo
ca

l i
nt

er
es

t, 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 

of
 li

ve
s 

fo
r 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

nd
/o

r 
fe

llo
w

 c
iti

ze
ns

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
. T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 c

ha
rit

ie
s;

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

; c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s;
 fa

ith
 g

ro
up

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 s
oc

ia
l a

ct
io

n;
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
te

re
st

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 a

nd
; s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
es

. 

153



4

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 le

ad
 th

e 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r’s
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r.
  W

e 
w

ill
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 th

at
 w

e,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 N

H
S

 H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 H
ar

ro
w

 P
ol

ic
e,

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

so
 th

at
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ge

t t
he

 b
es

t 
po

ss
ib

le
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
at

 w
e 

m
ak

e 
a 

re
al

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 to

 th
ei

r 
liv

es
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
s 

a 
th

riv
in

g 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

an
d 

ou
r 

jo
in

t t
as

k 
is

 to
 m

ak
e 

it 
st

ro
ng

er
. 

T
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
w

e 
al

l s
ee

k 
is

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
liv

es
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

O
u

r 
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

re
 t

o
: 

In
 th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
e 

se
t o

ut
 w

ha
t t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 d

o 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
so

 th
at

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
ca

n 
bu

ild
 it

s 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

r,
 p

os
iti

on
 

its
el

f a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 fu

tu
re

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
co

-lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 m
ak

e 
be

tte
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

w
ay

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, a

nd
 in

flu
en

ce
 h

ow
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
es

po
nd

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e 

in
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

be
ha

vi
ou

r.
 

H
ow

 w
e 

sh
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 h

av
e 

di
al

og
ue

s,
 le

ar
n 

an
d 

tr
an

sa
ct

 w
ith

 t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 t
he

 k
ey

 t
o 

ou
r 

fu
tu

re
 a

s 
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

. 
O

ur
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

th
e 

lin
ks

 t
ha

t 
al

re
ad

y 
ex

is
t 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

di
al

og
ue

 b
et

w
ee

n 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 w

ith
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

its
 a

m
bi

tio
ns

. 

D
ee

p
en

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
S

tr
en

g
th

en
 t

h
e 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

as
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
 in

 s
ha

pi
ng

 H
ar

ro
w

’s
 

fu
tu

re
;

B
u

ild
 C

ap
ac

it
y

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
o

f 
vo

lu
n

ta
ry

 
an

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

s 
in

 t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 s
o 

th
ey

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
di

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

H
el

p 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
its

el
f t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

E
n

ab
le

 P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 
In

cr
ea

se
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 d
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

m
or

e 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s;
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g;
 

154



5

S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

 
W

h
y 

h
as

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
l d

ev
el

o
p

ed
 a

 T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y?

L
o

ca
l C

o
n

te
xt

 

In
 2

00
8 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 u

nd
er

to
ok

 a
 R

ev
ie

w
, 

‘D
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
S

tr
en

gt
he

ne
d 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ec

to
r 

fo
r 

H
ar

ro
w

’. 
T

hi
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 in
vo

lv
ed

 r
es

ea
rc

h,
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
 t

o 
un

co
ve

r 
th

e 
ob

st
ac

le
s 

to
 t

he
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

an
d 

vi
br

an
t 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

. 
T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 ta
ke

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

.  

T
he

 s
po

ns
or

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

re
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
H

ar
ro

w
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(H
A

V
S

) 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
w

id
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

re
se

ar
ch

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 1
1 

ye
ar

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
, 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
lif

e 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
  

 T
he

re
 a

re
 

si
x 

th
em

es
, e

ac
h 

w
ith

 a
 v

is
io

n,
 s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ng
er

-t
er

m
 a

m
bi

tio
ns

 th
at

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

20
20

.  
T

he
y 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
in

 D
ia

gr
am

 1
. 

T
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
ha

s 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ol
e 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, t

he
m

e 
si

x 
w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

se
s 

on
 ‘t

he
 fu

tu
re

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
. 

‘C
om

m
un

ity
 v

ie
w

s 
w

ill
 s

ha
pe

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ev
er

yo
ne

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

pl
ay

 t
he

ir 
pa

rt
 o

n 
ho

w
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

. 
H

ar
ro

w
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

st
ro

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 a
nd

 w
el

l-b
ei

ng
. P

ar
tn

er
s’

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 m
ut

ua
l v

is
io

n 
of

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 fi

na
nc

es
 a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

.’

T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 h

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

 7
 -

 A
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

a 
th

riv
in

g 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

- 
in

 it
s 

su
ite

 o
f 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 t

o 
m

ea
su

re
 

ho
w

 w
el

l i
t i

s 
do

in
g 

to
 m

ee
t l

oc
al

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

. N
I 7

 w
ill

 m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r,

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 im
po

rt
an

t 
da

ta
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 u
s 

to
 f

oc
us

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 l
oc

al
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

re
m

ai
ns

 v
ib

ra
nt

 a
nd

 a
bl

e 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
 O

th
er

 
ou

tc
om

es
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

s.
 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 tr
an

sf
or

m
 th

e 
w

ay
 it

 d
el

iv
er

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. I

t i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 it
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
es

e 
ca

n 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
, e

ith
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l, 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

 to
 h

el
p 

se
le

ct
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 d

iff
er

en
tly

 a
nd

 
pi

lo
t 

ne
w

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
m

od
el

s 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y.
  

T
he

 r
ea

lit
y 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 c
lie

nt
s 

of
 A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
no

w
 e

ac
h 

ho
ld

in
g 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
bu

dg
et

 w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 t

o 
bu

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 is

 a
lre

ad
y 

im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r.
  

T
he

se
 n

ew
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

m
od

el
s 

co
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e:
 c

o-
lo

ca
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
H

S
 H

ar
ro

w
, 

w
ith

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

; c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l b
y 

an
ot

he
r 

ag
en

cy
 (

w
he

th
er

 p
ub

lic
, p

riv
at

e 
or

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r)
 o

r 
by

 o
th

er
 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
an

d 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
w

ay
s.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
an

ts
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 in
 s

ha
pi

ng
 th

is
 a

ge
nd

a.
 

155



6

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 h
av

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
ca

lle
d 

B
et

te
r 

T
og

et
he

r.
  T

hi
s 

w
or

ks
tr

ea
m

 in
vo

lv
es

 
w

or
ki

ng
 b

et
te

r 
w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
 c

le
an

er
, s

af
er

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
ie

r 
H

ar
ro

w
.  

T
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 c
rit

ic
al

 to
 th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 th
is

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ch
am

pi
on

in
g 

or
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

ro
un

d 
ci

vi
c,

 e
ng

ag
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
re

si
de

nt
. 

T
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

, 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
se

ct
or

 in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

to
 t

ak
e 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
 in

 s
ha

pi
ng

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 t
he

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

ge
nd

a,
 a

nd
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

its
 v

is
io

n 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 

N
at

io
n

al
 C

o
n

te
xt

 

T
he

 N
at

io
na

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
le

d 
by

 th
e 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
ve

st
 m

or
e 

th
an

 £
51

5 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

.  
T

he
 m

ai
n 

ai
m

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 D

ia
gr

am
 1

. 

P
ro

ve
n

an
ce

 

T
he

 a
ct

io
ns

 p
ut

 fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fr
om

 a
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

st
ud

y 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 fr
om

 C
ar

ol
e 

S
te

w
ar

t (
S

K
A

8 
C

on
su

lta
nc

y)
 a

nd
 in

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
P

ro
je

ct
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

. 

156



7

D
ia

g
ra

m
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ar

ro
w

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
T

h
em

es
  

D
ee

pe
ni

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

E
na

bl
in

g 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

ap
ac

ity

A
nn

ua
l R

ev
ie

w
 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

>E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
H

ar
ro

w
  

>E
ve

ry
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

hi
ld

  
>H

ea
lth

, W
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

>I
m

pr
ov

in
g 

H
ar

ro
w

’s
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t  
>H

ar
ro

w
’s

 C
ul

tu
re

, C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 
Id

en
tit

y
>T

he
 F

ut
ur

e 
of

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

D
em

oc
ra

c y
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

H
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
l  

>T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

>D
el

iv
er

 c
le

an
er

 a
nd

 s
af

er
 s

tr
ee

ts
 

>I
m

pr
ov

e 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
>B

ui
ld

st
ro

ng
er

co
m

m
un

iti
es

S
tr

at
eg

ic
as

se
ss

m
en

t
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

M
on

ito
rin

g
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
th

ro
ug

h
H

S
P

,

O
ve

rv
ie

w
an

d 
S

cr
ut

in
y,

C
ab

in
et

, a
nd

 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

S
ec

to
r

F
or

um
,

N
17

 W
or

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

T
h

e 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r
>C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
>E

qu
al

iti
es

>P
re

pa
rin

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
>P

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
  

> 
P

ro
vi

di
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 
be

co
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
>S

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t  

>P
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
gr

as
s 

ro
ot

s 
le

ve
l 

>B
ui

ld
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 th
ro

ug
h 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
fu

nd
in

g

O
ff

ic
e 

o
f 

th
e 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

 
 

N
at

io
n

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

>H
el

pi
ng

 to
 g

iv
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
 v

oi
ce

   
>S

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

  
>T

ra
ns

fo
rm

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
>E

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

 
>S

up
po

rt
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

a 
th

riv
in

g 
th

ir d
se

ct
or

157



8

D
ia

g
ra

m
 2

 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 2
: 

H
o

w
 w

ill
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

o
rk

?

S
ec

ti
o

n
 3

: 
O

u
r 

A
m

b
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 E

xp
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s 

A
m

b
it

io
n

 1
 -

 D
ee

p
en

in
g

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

T
h

e 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

1.
1.

 W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

s

B
y 

20
20

, H
ar

ro
w

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 fo

r:
  

  
In

te
gr

at
ed

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 m

an
y 

of
 w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

s 
on

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
fr

om
 a

ris
in

g,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s,
 a

nd
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 p

ut
 u

se
rs

 in
 c

on
tr

ol
, o

ffe
rin

g 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 c
ho

ic
e;

  
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

, b
ec

au
se

 w
e 

ac
tiv

el
y 

m
an

ag
e 

ou
r 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 
ha

ve
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

jo
bs

, h
om

es
, e

du
ca

tio
n,

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
, t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

al
l c

iti
ze

ns
 n

ee
d.

  
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

, b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s,

 e
m

po
w

er
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 v
oi

ce
, p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
re

sp
ec

t a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
sa

fe
st

 b
or

ou
gh

 in
 L

on
do

n.

D
ee

p
en

in
g

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

W
id

er
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f t

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 

B
ui

ld
 n

et
w

or
ks

 fo
r 

un
af

fil
ia

te
d 

gr
ou

ps
 

D
ev

el
op

 r
ob

us
t g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

C
om

pa
ct

 C
ha

m
pi

on
 

Jo
in

t C
om

pa
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

3r
d 

tie
r 

of
fic

er
 le

ve
l C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

s 

C
om

pa
ct

 P
ee

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 p
la

n 
an

d 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

w
eb

 
po

rt
al

E
n

ab
lin

g
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
N

et
w

or
k 

A
do

pt
 a

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
C

he
ck

 L
is

t 

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t u
pc

om
in

g 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 

S
co

pe
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
oc

ia
l e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

F
ac

ili
ta

te
 jo

in
t b

id
di

ng
 a

nd
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
ns

 

A
gr

ee
 m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 fo

r 
F

ul
l C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y 

M
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 N

I 7
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 r
ef

re
sh

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nn

ua
lly

.

B
u

ild
in

g
 c

ap
ac

it
y 

 

M
ap

pi
ng

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 s

tu
dy

 

Id
en

tif
y 

pi
lo

tin
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 

H
A

V
S

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 le
ad

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
Le

ad
er

s 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 H
S

P
 

C
on

du
ct

 a
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 o

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
a 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
gr

an
t-

gi
vi

ng
 b

od
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 g

ra
nt

s 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
H

S
P

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
in

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
vi

ew
 o

f i
ts

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 

S
up

po
rt

 e
xt

er
na

l f
un

di
ng

 p
os

t 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ne
w

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

qu
al

iti
es

 b
od

y 

E
st

ab
lis

h
a

co
m

m
un

ity
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g
de

liv
er

y
gr

ou
p

158



9

S
ec

ti
o

n
 3

: 
 O

u
r 

A
m

b
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 E

xp
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s 

A
m

b
it

io
n

 1
 –

 D
ee

p
en

in
g

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 –
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
ru

st
 a

n
d

 r
en

ew
ed

 c
o

n
fi

d
en

ce
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

T
h

e 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

1.
1 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
a 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
  

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 7

00
 to

 1
30

0 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
. T

he
se

 r
an

ge
 fr

om
 s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
to

 la
rg

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
’s

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  
S

ec
on

d 
tie

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

a 
ke

y 
ro

le
 in

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
w

ith
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 a

ct
in

g 
as

 a
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

l b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 th
ey

 r
ep

re
se

nt
. 

H
ar

ro
w

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

fo
r 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(H
A

V
S

) 
is

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

e.
 It

 is
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 ti
er

 (
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

) 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
th

at
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t n
um

be
r 

of
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
.I

t i
s 

a 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
w

ith
 2

30
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 s
ig

ne
d 

up
 a

s 
m

em
be

rs
. H

A
V

S
 is

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

by
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 o

th
er

 
se

co
nd

 ti
er

, i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

fo
r 

sm
al

le
r 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 R

ef
ug

ee
 F

or
um

 a
nd

 th
e 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
is

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

liv
er

y 
gr

ou
ps

 th
at

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

eg
. d

is
ab

ili
ty

, o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
et

c.
   

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 H

A
V

S
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
ec

on
d 

tie
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
vo

ic
es

 o
f t

he
 s

m
al

le
r 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ar

e 
he

ar
d,

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 th

os
e 

of
 th

e 
la

rg
er

 o
r 

m
or

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
.  

T
he

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

pl
at

fo
rm

 fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 s

ec
to

r 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. T

he
 fo

ru
m

 is
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t, 
th

ou
gh

 
af

fil
ia

te
d 

to
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. I
t h

as
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
pl

ay
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t r

ol
e 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

th
at

 e
na

bl
es

 a
 w

id
er

 
cr

os
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

rt
s 

an
d 

sp
or

ts
 g

ro
up

s,
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
.  

T
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 is
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

ai
m

s 
of

 
th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
  

A
ct

io
n

1.
 

H
A

V
S

, t
he

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 (
V

S
F

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 jo

in
tly

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 w

ay
 o

f e
ns

ur
in

g 
al

l g
ro

up
s 

ca
n 

ha
ve

 a
 v

oi
ce

 in
 th

e 
H

S
P

.  
2.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 H
A

V
S

 a
nd

 th
e 

V
S

F
 to

 b
ui

ld
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 n

et
w

or
ks

 fo
r 

un
af

fil
ia

te
d 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
G

ro
up

s 
to

 u
se

.  
T

he
se

 m
ay

 b
e 

on
-li

ne
 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 m

ee
tin

gs
-b

as
ed

.

1.
2.

 B
ri

n
g

in
g

 t
h

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

o
m

p
ac

t 
to

 li
fe

 

159



10

T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
om

pa
ct

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
rs

 a
nd

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 th
at

 g
ov

er
n 

ho
w

 w
e 

do
 b

us
in

es
s 

to
ge

th
er

. T
he

 C
om

pa
ct

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
un

de
rt

ak
in

gs
 fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r.

  T
he

 C
om

pa
ct

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 b
y 

a 
ro

bu
st

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k,

 w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t m

at
te

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
of

 it
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

.  
W

ith
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t l

ea
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

H
S

P
 w

ith
 th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
 o

f 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

co
m

pa
ct

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

  T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
om

pa
ct

 is
 u

nd
er

pi
nn

ed
 b

y 
C

om
pa

ct
 C

od
es

. T
he

se
 c

od
es

 
gi

ve
 s

pe
ci

fic
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
; h

ow
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

en
ga

ge
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n;

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
ne

ed
s 

– 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

B
la

ck
 a

nd
 M

in
or

ity
 

E
th

ni
c 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

, e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g;
 a

nd
 a

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

.  
W

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

, N
H

S
 H

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
to

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ct
 a

m
on

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

.  

A
ct

io
n

3.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 c
on

ta
in

s 
a 

ro
bu

st
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k.
 

4.
 

A
pp

oi
nt

 a
 C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

H
S

P
 

5.
 

S
et

 u
p 

a 
jo

in
t C

om
pa

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 to

 le
ad

 o
n 

em
be

dd
in

g 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ct
 a

cr
os

s 
H

S
P

 
6.

 
D

es
ig

na
te

 3
rd

 ti
er

 o
ffi

ce
r 

le
ve

l C
om

pa
ct

 C
ha

m
pi

on
s 

to
 le

ad
 o

n 
C

om
pa

ct
 is

su
es

 in
 e

ac
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e;

 a
nd

 in
iti

at
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 N
H

S
 

H
ar

ro
w

 to
 e

m
be

d 
C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

s 
w

ith
in

 it
s 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

 
7.

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

C
om

pa
ct

 P
ee

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

A
lli

an
ce

. 

1.
3 

A
 b

et
te

r 
fl

o
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

n
d

 t
h

e 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

H
A

V
S

 w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y;

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
an

d 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 it
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ec
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

 a
s 

a 
po

rt
al

 to
 it

s 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r,
 w

ith
 li

nk
s 

to
 th

e 
H

A
V

S
 w

eb
si

te
, w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 c

ar
ry

 id
en

tic
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

al
so

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
po

rt
al

.  
M

an
y 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l a
nd

 la
ng

ua
ge

 b
ar

rie
rs

 a
nd

 n
ee

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
an

d 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

. 

A
ct

io
n

8.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
P

la
n 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
po

rt
al

 o
n 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 H
A

V
S

 w
eb

si
te

s,
w

w
w

.h
ar

ro
w

cv
s.

or
g.

uk
.

160



11

A
m

b
it

io
n

 2
 –

 B
u

ild
 C

ap
ac

it
y

B
u

ild
in

g
 t

h
e 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r –
 to

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 s

ec
to

r 

2.
1 

U
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r

T
he

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

is
 s

tr
on

g,
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

nd
 d

iv
er

se
, m

ad
e 

up
 o

f l
ar

ge
 a

nd
 s

m
al

l o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

co
ns

en
su

s 
on

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 o
r 

w
ha

t t
he

y 
do

. T
he

 s
ec

to
r’s

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 is
 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 q

ua
nt

ify
 b

ey
on

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
is

at
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
se

ct
or

.  
M

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 n

ee
de

d 
ab

ou
t i

ts
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

, 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n,
 s

pr
ea

d 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

. 

P
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

re
 g

at
he

rin
g 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

on
 w

ha
t t

he
 fu

tu
re

 m
ig

ht
 lo

ok
 li

ke
, t

he
 k

in
d 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
, a

nd
 w

an
t t

o 
fin

d 
ne

w
 a

nd
 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

ay
s 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. I
f w

e 
ar

e 
to

 w
or

k 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
as

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

e 
ne

ed
 a

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 e
ac

h 
pa

rt
ne

r’s
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n,

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ne
ed

 b
et

te
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t w
ha

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

ca
n 

of
fe

r 
an

d 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 
st

re
ng

th
s.

  F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
w

ho
le

 la
rg

er
 g

ro
up

s 
ca

n 
be

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
vi

a 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

, a
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 s

m
al

le
r 

un
af

fil
ia

te
d 

gr
ou

ps
 c

ou
ld

 h
el

p 
th

e 
‘B

et
te

r 
T

og
et

he
r’ 

w
or

k 
of

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
 b

eh
av

io
ur

, a
nd

 th
is

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

as
 a

 jo
in

t a
im

.  
R

at
he

r 
th

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

bu
ild

in
g 

it 
m

ay
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

to
 s

el
ec

t a
nd

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
 fe

w
 a

re
as

 a
s 

a 
pi

lo
t. 

  

A
ct

io
n

9.
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

 m
ap

pi
ng

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 s

tu
dy

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
da

ta
 o

n 
th

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 

w
id

er
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 
10

.I
de

nt
ify

 p
ilo

tin
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 n
ew

 a
nd

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

ay
s.

 

2.
2 

A
 s

tr
o

n
g

 H
ar

ro
w

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 o

f 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

T
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t i

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

is
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
s.

 P
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

at
 a

re
 m

or
e 

fle
xi

bl
e 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

ve
 to

 th
e 

w
ay

 th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
e 

th
ei

r 
liv

es
. M

or
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

nd
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 d
iff

er
en

t w
ay

s.
 T

he
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 to
 a

da
pt

 to
 th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

re
po

si
tio

n 
its

el
f, 

w
ith

ou
t c

om
pr

om
is

in
g 

its
 

un
iq

ue
ne

ss
 a

s 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t, 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

cu
se

d.
 

H
A

V
S

 h
as

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t r
ol

e 
as

 th
e 

le
ad

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r.

 T
he

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
n 

is
 th

at
 H

A
V

S
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
an

y 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 a
he

ad
 a

nd
 w

ith
, H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il,
 c

ha
m

pi
on

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
  H

A
V

S
 is

 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
se

co
nd

 ti
er

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

w
ith

 m
an

y 
st

re
ng

th
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 it
 in

 fu
lfi

lli
ng

 th
at

 r
ol

e.
  T

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r’s

 a
im

 is
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

rt
ic

ul
at

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
 it

s 
am

bi
tio

ns
. 

A
ct

io
n

11
. H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 H
A

V
S

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 le
ad

in
g 

a 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

161



12

2.
3 

A
 s

tr
o

n
g

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 T

h
ir

d
 S

ec
to

r 
n

o
m

in
at

ed
 r

ep
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
s 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

H
A

V
S

 w
ill

 jo
in

tly
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
Le

ad
er

s 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 r
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

; t
he

 w
or

ki
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
ag

en
ci

es
; t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 is
su

es
 s

ha
pi

ng
 o

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 r

el
ev

an
t s

ki
lls

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 m

or
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g.
  T

he
 H

S
P

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 m
ay

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 r
el

ea
se

 s
ta

ff 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

da
ily

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

to
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 b
od

ie
s:

 la
ck

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
ac

t a
s 

a 
de

te
rr

en
t t

o 
th

em
 ta

ki
ng

 a
 m

or
e 

ac
tiv

e 
ro

le
.

A
ct

io
n

12
. H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

Le
ad

er
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, a
nd

 w
id

en
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s
13

. R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s 
  

2.
4 

H
ar

ro
w

 G
ra

n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
G

ra
nt

s 
ar

e 
im

po
rt

an
t f

or
 th

e 
su

rv
iv

al
 o

f s
m

al
l v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 w
ho

se
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
dd

 to
 th

e 
ric

h 
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 li

fe
 in

 
H

ar
ro

w
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

gr
an

ts
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 g

en
er

al
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 H

ar
ro

w
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

gr
an

ts
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 m
ix

 o
f g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 
(S

LA
s)

 to
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 (

20
09

-1
0)

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 g
ra

nt
 a

id
 m

or
e 

w
id

el
y 

kn
ow

n,
 im

pr
ov

ed
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
gr

an
ts

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

ad
op

te
d 

a 
cl

ea
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

o 
m

or
e 

to
 a

lig
n 

gr
an

t a
id

 to
 th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
st

ar
te

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 w

he
th

er
 it

 s
ho

ul
d 

de
liv

er
 g

ra
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t b
od

y.
  P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
w

or
k 

an
d 

re
se

ar
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
ut

 th
e 

is
su

e 
is

 v
er

y 
co

m
pl

ex
 s

o 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 r
ep

or
t i

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

ef
ra

m
e 

as
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
.  

A
 M

em
be

r-
le

d 
ta

sk
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

fin
al

 o
pt

io
ns

 o
n 

th
is

 is
su

e.
 

A
ct

io
n

14
. C

on
du

ct
 a

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 o
f c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 g
ra

nt
 g

iv
in

g 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

(T
ru

st
) 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 G

ra
nt

s 
S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

w
ith

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 C

ab
in

et
. 

2.
5

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 a
n

d
 e

xt
er

n
al

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 p
re

m
is

es
T

he
re

 a
re

 t
hr

ee
 t

yp
es

 o
f 

pr
op

er
ty

 u
se

d/
oc

cu
pi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

– 
on

e 
is

 in
 p

ub
lic

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

le
as

ed
 t

o 
or

 r
en

te
d 

by
 t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

; 
th

e 
se

co
nd

 is
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 t
hi

rd
 s

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
th

ird
 is

 le
as

ed
 o

r 
re

nt
ed

 fr
om

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s.
  

T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

an
d 

th
ird

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

ar
e 

be
yo

nd
 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

as
 t

he
y 

‘b
el

on
g’

 in
 o

ne
 s

en
se

 o
r 

an
ot

he
r 

to
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ei

th
er

 p
er

m
an

en
tly

 o
r 

fo
r 

a 
pe

rio
d.

  
T

he
 f

irs
t 

ca
te

go
ry

 
co

ul
d 

be
 m

an
ag

ed
 in

 a
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

w
ay

 b
ut

 th
e 

dr
iv

e 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 e
le

m
en

t o
f t

he
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 to
 d

is
po

se
 o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

or
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 b

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
to

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
, 

at
 t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

se
ek

 t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f 

co
-lo

ca
tio

n.
  

T
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
je

ct
ed

 
in

to
 th

e 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 s
oc

ia
l b

en
ef

its
 o

f t
hi

rd
 s

ec
to

r 
ac

tiv
ity

 b
e 

ba
la

nc
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
riv

at
e 

m
ar

ke
t d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
A

n 
H

S
P

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ne

tw
or

k 
co

ul
d 

en
su

re
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

nd
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
is

su
es

 fo
r 

in
st

an
ce

 it
 c

ou
ld

 
C

on
si

de
r 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

nd
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
H

S
P

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 

 
P

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
on

lin
e 

re
gi

st
er

 o
f (

H
S

P
) 

pr
em

is
es

 a
nd

 s
pa

ce
s 

fo
r 

hi
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 

162



13

 
P

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
au

di
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
M

ap
pi

ng
 a

nd
 Im

pa
ct

 S
tu

dy
 a

nd
 u

se
 th

is
 d

at
a 

to
 in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
H

S
P

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

A
ct

io
n

15
. E

st
ab

lis
h 

H
S

P
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ne
tw

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

is
su

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

H
S

P
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 
16

. C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

vi
ew

 o
f i

ts
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

 

2.
6

E
xt

er
n

al
 F

u
n

d
in

g
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
su

pp
or

ts
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

in
 s

ee
ki

ng
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ca

nn
ot

 e
nd

or
se

 a
ny

 a
nd

 e
ve

ry
 b

id
 o

n 
re

qu
es

t b
ut

 w
ill

 e
nd

or
se

 b
id

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
vi

si
on

, p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f L
B

 H
ar

ro
w

. 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
an

d 
is

 h
el

pi
ng

 to
 fi

na
nc

e 
a 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
fic

er
, l

oc
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 H
A

V
S

, t
o 

he
lp

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
G

ro
up

s 
w

ith
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 b
id

s,
 b

ui
ld

 b
id

s,
 

w
in

ni
ng

 te
ch

ni
qu

e 
ac

ro
ss

 b
ot

h 
se

ct
or

s 
an

d 
to

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

se
ct

or
’s

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 w

ha
t i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

  I
t p

la
ns

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 th

is
 s

up
po

rt
 in

 2
01

0-
11

. 

A
ct

io
n

17
.  

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
po

st
 o

f e
xt

er
na

l f
un

di
ng

 o
ffi

ce
r,

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 H

A
V

S
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 b

id
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

 b
id

-w
in

ni
ng

 te
ch

ni
qu

e.

2.
7 

E
q

u
al

it
ie

s 
T

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

ha
s 

m
an

y 
st

re
ng

th
s 

an
d 

on
e 

of
 it

s 
m

aj
or

 s
tr

en
gt

hs
 is

 in
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
in

eq
ua

lit
y.

  H
ar

ro
w

 is
 th

e 
ni

nt
h 

m
os

t e
th

ni
ca

lly
 d

iv
er

se
 B

or
ou

gh
 in

 
th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
an

d 
th

e 
m

os
t r

el
ig

io
us

ly
 d

iv
er

se
 in

 th
e 

co
un

tr
y.

  E
qu

al
iti

es
 a

re
 a

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l p

rin
ci

pl
e 

th
at

 u
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 a

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

.  
T

he
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

ha
s 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ol

e 
to

 p
la

y 
in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
ag

en
da

.  
T

he
re

 a
re

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 a
he

ad
 w

ith
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
in

gl
e 

E
qu

al
iti

es
 B

ill
 th

at
 e

xp
an

ds
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 lo

ca
l c

on
ce

rn
s 

ar
ou

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 
le

ad
in

g 
on

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 n

ew
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 b
od

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 th

at
 w

ill
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y 
co

nt
ex

t a
nd

 m
ee

t t
he

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
.  

It 
w

ill
 b

e 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
cu

t t
hr

ou
gh

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 la
ng

ua
ge

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 b

rin
g 

ab
ou

t r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

. 

A
ct

io
n

18
.  

 S
et

 u
p 

a 
ne

w
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t e
qu

al
iti

es
 b

od
y 

fo
r 

H
ar

ro
w

. 

2.
8 

V
o

lu
n

te
er

in
g

 
H

ar
ro

w
 is

 fo
rt

un
at

e 
in

 h
av

in
g 

a 
he

al
th

y 
su

pp
ly

 o
f v

ol
un

te
er

s.
  T

he
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 r
ep

or
t c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
 o

ve
r-

su
pp

ly
 

of
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
an

d 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

un
de

r-
su

pp
ly

 o
f v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 m

at
ch

 th
em

 to
.  

T
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

in
 h

el
pi

ng
 to

 b
ui

ld
 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 is
 im

m
en

se
.  

T
he

 C
ha

m
pi

on
in

g 
H

ar
ro

w
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

le
ga

cy
 is

 in
sp

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 2
01

2 
ga

m
es

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

or
e 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
w

ith
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.  
 

A
ct

io
n

19
. E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
C

om
m

un
ity

 V
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
gr

ou
p 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
ha

m
pi

on
in

g 
H

ar
ro

w
 T

as
k 

F
or

ce
.  

163



14

A
m

b
it

io
n

 3
 –

 E
n

ab
le

 P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 –
 t

o
 in

cr
ea

se
 t

h
e 

se
ct

o
r’

s 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 

3.
1 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 it

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

sp
ire

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ou

gh
 W

or
ld

 C
la

ss
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
fr

om
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f p
ro

vi
de

rs
, w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r.

  T
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

of
 w

or
ld

 c
la

ss
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
in

cl
ud

e;
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s;
 p

rio
rit

is
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

t; 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 in

no
va

tio
n;

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, s
tim

ul
at

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

l m
ar

ke
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ne

ed
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

im
in

g 
to

 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 r
ea

ch
 th

is
 m

od
el

 w
ay

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
, a

nd
 a

 c
he

ck
lis

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l. 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 u

se
 th

ei
r 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 h
el

p 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

et
te

r 
ou

tc
om

es
. F

un
ds

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 b
es

t v
al

ue
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fr
om

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f p

ro
vi

de
rs

, l
oc

al
ly

, r
eg

io
na

lly
 a

nd
 

na
tio

na
lly

. C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
ei

r 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 c

os
t e

ffi
ci

en
t, 

qu
al

ity
, v

al
ue

 a
dd

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
op

le
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 it

s 
w

eb
si

te
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

to
 te

nd
er

 fo
r 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
a 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t T

ea
m

 a
nd

 a
n 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

un
ct

io
n,

 w
hi

ch
 o

ffe
r 

he
lp

 to
 s

m
al

l b
us

in
es

se
s.

  W
e 

w
ill

 b
rin

g 
th

es
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 to
ge

th
er

 in
 a

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 H
A

V
S

 o
n 

ho
w

 th
is

 h
el

p 
co

ul
d 

be
 e

xt
en

de
d 

to
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r.

  W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 s

ha
re

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 le

ar
n 

fr
om

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

fie
ld

 o
f T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g.

 T
he

 N
at

io
na

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

on
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

is
 r

es
ea

rc
hi

ng
 h

ow
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

ca
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 it
s 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
by

 d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
be

ne
fit

. W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
jo

in
tly

 w
ith

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

ne
w

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gi
es

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

ev
id

en
ci

ng
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

to
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

de
liv

er
y.

  W
e 

co
ul

d 
us

ef
ul

ly
 g

iv
e 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t u

pc
om

in
g 

te
nd

er
s.

T
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t i

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
is

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

s.
 P

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

th
at

 a
re

 m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 th

e 
w

ay
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

e 
th

ei
r 

liv
es

. M
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 a
nd

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 s

ou
gh

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 d

iff
er

en
t w

ay
s.

 T
he

 ta
sk

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

is
 to

 a
da

pt
 to

 th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
re

po
si

tio
n 

its
el

f, 
w

ith
ou

t c
om

pr
om

is
in

g 
its

 
un

iq
ue

ne
ss

 a
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t, 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
cu

se
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
fe

rs
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 s
m

al
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

ex
te

nd
 th

is
 w

or
k 

to
 s

oc
ia

l 
en

te
rp

ris
es

.  
 

A
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
A

du
lts

 J
oi

nt
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
B

oa
rd

.  
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 

ar
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
T

ru
st

. B
ot

h 
th

e 
A

du
lts

 J
oi

nt
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 w

ill
 fo

rm
al

is
e 

th
e 

po
ol

in
g 

an
d 

al
ig

ni
ng

 o
f b

ud
ge

ts
, w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, a
cr

os
s 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
H

S
 H

ar
ro

w
.  

T
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
ne

ed
s 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 
to

 b
id

 fo
r 

w
or

k 
w

hi
le

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

th
at

 s
oc

ia
l e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

go
od

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

ey
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

ey
 n

ee
d.

 

T
he

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
at

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 is
 ‘p

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n’
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 c
ho

ic
e 

so
 th

ey
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ne

ed
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
l c

lie
nt

s 
no

w
 h

ol
d 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
bu

dg
et

s 
or

 r
ec

ei
ve

 d
ire

ct
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 d
o 

th
is

.  
T

he
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

 H
ar

ro
w

 e
xp

ec
ts

 th
at

 a
t l

ea
st

 3
5%

 o
f c

lie
nt

s 
(o

r 
th

ei
r 

ca
re

rs
) 

w
ill

 h
ol

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

ts
 o

r 
re

ce
iv

e 
di

re
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
  T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 T
ru

st
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
. 

164



15

A
ct

io
n

20
. 

 W
e 

w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
N

et
w

or
k 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r.

  C
ro

ss
 s

ec
to

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
te

ch
ni

ca
l s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
tis

e;
 g

ro
w

 r
es

pe
ct

 a
nd

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 s

ec
to

rs
 a

nd
; s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 c
om

pe
te

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
21

. W
e 

w
ill

 a
do

pt
 a

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
ch

ec
kl

is
t t

o 
pr

om
pt

 a
nd

 a
id

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
l t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

w
he

n 
de

si
gn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

22
. P

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t u

pc
om

in
g 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 c

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

ac
ro

ss
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
of

 
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

. 
23

. C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t, 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 in
 B

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

H
A

V
S

 to
 s

co
pe

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
es

.
24

. P
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

ill
, i

n 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 H
A

V
S

, e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

an
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

, a
s 

fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 a
 c

on
si

st
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

.

D
ev

el
o

p
in

g
 t

h
e 

lo
ca

l m
ar

ke
t 

  

T
he

 lo
ca

l t
hi

rd
 s

ec
to

r 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 it

 m
ig

ht
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 ta
ke

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

se
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

be
 m

or
e 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

in
 

th
is

 n
ew

 c
lim

at
e.

 T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

m
ea

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
, i

n 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rin

g 
bo

ro
ug

hs
 o

r 
na

tio
na

lly
 b

y:
 

  
sh

ar
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

(s
ta

ff,
 a

ss
et

s,
 p

re
m

is
es

 e
tc

) 
un

de
r 

fo
rm

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
; 

  
w

or
ki

ng
 a

s 
a 

fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 s
im

ila
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 w
hi

ls
t r

em
ai

ni
ng

 le
ga

lly
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t; 
 

  
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 c
on

so
rt

ia
 fo

r 
bi

ds
 a

nd
 te

nd
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s:
  

  
m

er
gi

ng
 w

ith
 a

no
th

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 ‘o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l’ 
an

d/
or

 ‘c
ha

rit
ab

le
’ f

it.
  

A
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
co

ul
d 

be
 h

el
pf

ul
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

sk
ill

s 
in

 b
id

di
ng

 fo
r 

w
or

k 
te

nd
er

ed
 a

nd
 te

ch
ni

ca
l s

ki
lls

 in
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
co

st
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

F
ul

l C
os

t R
ec

ov
er

y.
 

T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
on

so
rt

iu
m

 o
f v

ol
un

ta
ry

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 w

as
 fo

rm
ed

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
m

al
l g

ro
up

s 
to

 b
id

 fo
r 

m
ed

iu
m

 to
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 C
on

so
rt

iu
m

 is
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

H
A

V
S

. T
ho

ug
h 

un
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
 it

s 
fir

st
 jo

in
t b

id
, i

t h
as

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

in
 to

 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fo

r 
sm

al
le

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

  

A
ct

io
n

25
. W

or
k 

w
ith

 H
A

V
S

 to
 s

co
pe

 a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. 
26

. S
tr

en
gt

he
n 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
on

so
rt

iu
m

 o
f v

ol
un

ta
ry

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
jo

in
t b

id
di

ng
 a

nd
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r.

165



16

F
u

ll 
C

o
st

 R
ec

o
ve

ry
 

T
he

 H
S

P
 a

cc
ep

ts
 th

at
 n

o 
ac

tiv
ity

 o
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
n 

be
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
ou

t i
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
in

cu
rr

in
g 

so
m

e 
co

st
 in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

at
 s

er
vi

ce
. F

ul
l C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 it

 is
 le

gi
tim

at
e 

fo
r 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
ei

r 
ov

er
he

ad
s 

(c
or

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
co

st
s)

 w
he

n 
bi

dd
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 n
or

m
al

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

A
pp

ly
in

g 
fu

ll 
co

st
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

is
 c

om
pl

ex
 a

nd
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 c
os

t t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

si
ng

 m
et

ho
ds

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

sc
ru

tin
is

ed
 a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
ed

 w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

A
ct

io
n

27
. H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
N

H
S

 H
ar

ro
w

 w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
 c

om
m

on
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 lo
ca

lly
 o

n 
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 fo
r 

ca
lc

ul
at

in
g 

F
ul

l C
os

t R
ec

ov
er

y.
 

166



17

S
ec

ti
o

n
 4

 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
A

re
a 

 
L

ea
d

T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

fr
o

m
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
o

u
rc

es

A
m

b
it

io
n

 1
 –

 D
ee

p
en

in
g

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

1.
   

 H
A

V
S

, t
he

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 (
V

S
F

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 

jo
in

tly
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 w
ay

 o
f e

ns
ur

in
g 

al
l g

ro
up

s 
ca

n 
ha

ve
 a

 v
oi

ce
 in

 
th

e 
H

S
P

.

D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 &
 

C
ul

tu
re

T
o 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

sc
op

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

2.
   

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 H

A
V

S
 a

nd
 th

e 
V

S
F

 to
 b

ui
ld

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 n
et

w
or

ks
 fo

r 
un

af
fil

ia
te

d 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

G
ro

up
s 

to
 

us
e.

  T
he

se
 m

ay
 b

e 
on

-li
ne

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 m
ee

tin
gs

-b
as

ed
. 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

) 

T
o 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

sc
op

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

E
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

3,
   

  E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 c
on

ta
in

s 
a 

ro
bu

st
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k
P

ol
ic

y 
&

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

) 

3 
m

on
th

s 
E

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
 

4.
   

 A
pp

oi
nt

 a
 C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

H
S

P
  

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
) 

3 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

5.
   

 S
et

 u
p 

a 
jo

in
t C

om
pa

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 to

 le
ad

 o
n 

em
be

dd
in

g 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ct
 a

cr
os

s 
H

S
P

 
P

ol
ic

y 
&

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

) 

3 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

6.
   

 D
es

ig
na

te
 3

rd
 ti

er
 o

ffi
ce

r 
le

ve
l C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

s 
to

 le
ad

 o
n 

C
om

pa
ct

 is
su

es
 in

 e
ac

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e;
 a

nd
 in

iti
at

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 N

H
S

 H
ar

ro
w

 to
 e

m
be

d 
C

om
pa

ct
 C

ha
m

pi
on

s 
w

ith
in

 it
s 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
) 

3 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

7.
   

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
C

om
pa

ct
 P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
W

es
t L

on
do

n 
A

lli
an

ce
 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
) 

 W
ith

in
 3

 m
on

th
s 

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

8.
P

ro
du

ce
 a

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 P
la

n 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
H

ar
ro

w
 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
po

rt
al

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 
H

A
V

S
 w

eb
si

te
. 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

) 

3 
m

on
th

s 
T

o 
be

 c
os

te
d 

 

A
m

b
it

io
n

 2
B

u
ild

in
g

 t
h

e 
ca

p
ac

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

T
h

ir
d

 S
ec

to
r 

 
 

 

167



18

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
A

re
a 

 
L

ea
d

T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

fr
o

m
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
o

u
rc

es

9.
   

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
 m

ap
pi

ng
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 s
tu

dy
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

da
ta

 o
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 w
id

er
 o

ut
co

m
es

.  

H
A

V
S

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
/ H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

U
pd

at
e 

H
S

P
 B

oa
rd

 w
ith

in
 3

 m
on

th
s 

 
T

o 
be

 c
os

te
d 

10
.  

Id
en

tif
y 

pi
lo

tin
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 
de

liv
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 n
ew

 a
nd

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

ay
s.

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t /

 
H

A
V

S
 / 

V
S

F
 

W
ith

in
 6

 m
on

th
s 

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

11
.  

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 H

A
V

S
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 le

ad
in

g 
a 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 
H

A
V

S
 C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

/ H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

U
pd

at
e 

bo
ar

d 
by

 3
1.

01
.1

0 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

12
.  

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
Le

ad
er

s 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
, a

nd
 

w
id

en
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s.
  

H
A

V
S

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
/ H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

U
pd

at
e 

bo
ar

d 
by

 3
1.

01
.1

0 
T

o 
be

 c
os

te
d 

13
.  

 R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
H

S
P

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s.
   

H
A

V
S

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
/ H

S
P

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

T
o 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

sc
op

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

14
.  

 C
on

du
ct

 a
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 o

f c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 

gr
an

t g
iv

in
g 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
(T

ru
st

) 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 G
ra

nt
s 

S
ch

em
e 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
w

ith
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 C

ab
in

et
. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

P
ar

al
le

l e
xe

rc
is

e 
T

o 
be

 c
os

te
d 

15
.  

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
H

S
P

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ne

tw
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

is
su

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

H
S

P
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 

P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
 

U
pd

at
e 

bo
ar

d 
by

 3
1.

01
.1

0 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

16
.  

C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
in

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
vi

ew
 o

f i
ts

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 

P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

17
. C

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

po
st

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 o

ffi
ce

r 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 H
A

V
S

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 b
id

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
 b

id
 –

 w
in

ni
ng

 
te

ch
ni

qu
e.

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
B

ud
ge

t M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

E
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

18
.  

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ne
w

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

qu
al

iti
es

 b
od

y.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

pr
il 

20
10

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

19
.  

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

C
om

m
un

ity
 V

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

gr
ou

p 
as

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

C
ha

m
pi

on
in

g 
H

ar
ro

w
 T

as
k 

F
or

ce
.

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

pr
il 

20
10

 
R

ea
lig

nm
en

t o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

168



19

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
A

re
a 

 
L

ea
d

T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

fr
o

m
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
o

u
rc

es

A
m

b
it

io
n

 3
 –

 E
n

ab
lin

g
 P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 

20
.  

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
N

et
w

or
k 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

ct
or

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
qu

ar
te

rly
.  

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t /
 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

3 
m

on
th

s 
T

o 
be

 c
os

te
d 

21
.  

 A
do

pt
 a

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
C

he
ck

 L
is

t t
o 

pr
om

pt
 a

nd
 a

id
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
l t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

w
he

n 
de

si
gn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

6 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

22
.  

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t u
pc

om
in

g 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
ac

ro
ss

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

6 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

23
.  

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t, 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 in
 

B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
H

A
V

S
 to

 s
co

pe
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
oc

ia
l 

en
te

rp
ris

es
.

H
ea

d 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t /
 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t /

 
H

ar
ro

w
 in

 B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
H

A
V

S
 C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e

3 
m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

24
.  

P
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

ill
, i

n 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 H
A

V
S

, e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

an
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

, a
s 

fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 a
 c

on
si

st
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

. 

H
S

P
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

 
W

ith
in

 3
 m

on
th

s 
R

ea
lig

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s

25
.  

W
or

k 
w

ith
 H

A
V

S
 to

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

eg
 in

 b
id

di
ng

 fo
r 

te
nd

er
ed

 w
or

k.
 

H
A

V
S

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
/ H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

U
pd

at
e 

H
S

P
 B

oa
rd

 w
ith

in
 3

 m
on

th
s 

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

26
.  

S
tr

en
gt

he
n 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
on

so
rt

iu
m

 o
f v

ol
un

ta
ry

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

jo
in

t b
id

di
ng

 a
nd

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l T

hi
rd

 
S

ec
to

r.

H
A

V
S

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
/ H

ea
d 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

W
ith

in
 6

 m
on

th
s 

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

169



20

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
A

re
a 

 
L

ea
d

T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

fr
o

m
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
o

u
rc

es

27
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
H

S
 H

ar
ro

w
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l t
hi

rd
 

se
ct

or
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 c
om

m
on

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 lo

ca
lly

 o
n 

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 fo

r 
ca

lc
ul

at
in

g 
F

ul
l C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y.

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

W
ith

in
 6

 m
on

th
s 

E
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

28
.  

M
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 N

I 7
in

di
ca

to
rs

, r
ep

or
t t

o 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 

S
cr

ut
in

y,
 H

S
P

, C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 a
nd

 
re

fr
es

h 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nn
ua

lly
.

D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 &

 
C

ul
tu

re

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 p

lu
s 

in
te

rim
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

/ c
ab

in
et

 v
ia

 th
e 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

R
ea

lig
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s

170



21

S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

 –
 Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 is

 fo
r 

in
iti

at
io

n 
in

 2
01

0-
11

 a
nd

 o
nc

e 
th

is
 is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

sc
an

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
of

 a
ct

io
n 

in
to

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

A
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ef
re

sh
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 s
tr

et
ch

 ta
rg

et
s 

w
ill

 a
ss

is
t. 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
w

ill
 m

ai
nl

y 
ca

pt
ur

e 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

su
ite

 o
f i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
co

m
po

si
ng

 
N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

 7
 ‘A

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 a
 th

riv
in

g 
T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r’.

  T
he

 a
nn

ua
l m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
by

  
 

H
S

P
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ec

to
r 

F
or

um
 

A
nd

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
l r

ep
or

t i
nt

o 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ef

re
sh

 o
f t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 

If 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
s 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 a
s 

a 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
to

ol
, t

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

at
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

liv
es

 im
pr

ov
e,

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ea
rli

er
 a

nd
 

re
sp

on
se

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

om
pt

er
. 

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 im

pa
ct

 fa
vo

ur
ab

ly
 o

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

s,
 n

ot
 ju

st
 N

I 7
.  

F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
: 

N
I 6

 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 r

eg
ul

ar
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

N
I 1

41
 V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
pe

op
le

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
iv

in
g.

 
N

I 1
36

 P
eo

pl
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
to

 li
ve

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 -
 T

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

ac
tiv

ity
 fe

ed
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
to

 th
is

 In
di

ca
to

r 
w

hi
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
is

te
d 

to
 r

em
ai

n 
liv

in
g 

in
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ho
m

es
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 e
ith

er
 C

ou
nc

il-
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
or

 th
ro

ug
h 

gr
ou

ps
 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
vi

a 
gr

an
ts

. 

T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

se
ve

ra
l o

f t
he

 N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s 

ar
ou

nd
 H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

.  
F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e;

N
I 1

19
.S

el
f-

re
po

rt
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f p

eo
pl

e’
s 

ov
er

al
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 

N
I 1

20
.A

ll-
ag

e 
al

l c
au

se
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

  
N

I 1
21

.M
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ci

rc
ul

at
or

y 
di

se
as

es
 a

t a
ge

s 
un

de
r 

75
 

N
I 1

22
.M

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

 fr
om

 a
ll 

ca
nc

er
s 

at
 a

ge
s 

un
de

r 
75

 
N

I 1
24

.P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 c
on

di
tio

n 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 b

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 in
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f t
he

ir 
co

nd
iti

on
 

N
I 1

29
.E

nd
 o

f l
ife

 c
ar

e 
–a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
ar

e 
en

ab
lin

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
ie

 a
t h

om
e 

 
N

I 1
37

.H
ea

lth
y 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 a

t a
ge

 6
5 

N
I 1

38
.S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
ov

er
 6

5 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

N
I 1

39
.T

he
 e

xt
en

t t
o 

w
hi

ch
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t t

he
y 

ne
ed

 to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

t h
om

e 

A
ct

io
n

171



22

28
. M

on
ito

r 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 a
nd

 N
I 7

 in
di

ca
to

rs
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
N

17
 w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y,
 H

S
P

, C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
F

or
um

 a
nd

 r
ef

re
sh

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nn

ua
lly

. 

172



 1 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Harrow Council 
 

Third Sector Investment Plan 
 

2012 - 2015 

173



 2 

1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 This plan sets out a strategic approach to delivering Council support to the 

Third Sector. Using the definition adopted by the Third Sector Strategy1 
this sector is defined as: 
 
Not for profit, independent, voluntary and community groups or 
organisations formed by local people, or those with a local interest, to 
improve the quality of lives for themselves and/or fellow citizens in Harrow. 
These include registered charities; voluntary organisations; community 
groups; faith groups involved in social action; community interest 
companies and social enterprises. 

 
1.2 The aim of this plan is to ensure that the Council makes the best use of its 

resources by aligning these with the delivery of its corporate priorities and 
statutory duties. The Council wishes to support the development of an 
independent and sustainable Third Sector that delivers outcomes for local 
residents alongside statutory agencies. This plan therefore sets out a 
delivery framework for; 

 
I. Commissioning and Small Projects funding through the Main 

Grants programme.  
II. The development of Third Sector accommodation hubs. 
III. Aligning the provision of discretionary rate relief to commissioning. 

 
1.3 The proposals contained within this plan are based on the results of 

consultation undertaken with the Third Sector, Council departments and 
Members during 2009, 2010 and 2011. The proposals are also based on 
an analysis of current Council support of the Third Sector and 
consideration of relevant Council plans and strategies.  

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 Third Sector Strategy 
 

The Third Sector Strategy seeks to strengthen the relationship between 
the Third Sector and the Council. It has three objectives;  
 
(i) To deepen partnership working by strengthening the role of the Third 
Sector as a strategic partner;  
(ii) To build the capacity of the Third Sector to help it change itself to 
address the future;  
(iii) To enable participation by increasing opportunities for Third Sector 
involvement in the design and delivery of public services through a more 

                                                 
1 Third Sector Strategy, April 2010 

174



 3 

transparent commissioning process and improving the management and 
administration of grant funding.  
 

2.2 Voluntary Sector Compact 
 

The Harrow Compact sets out agreed shared principles and commitments 
between the statutory and Third Sectors.  The aims of the Compact are to 
build on existing partnerships and develop the relationship between the 
sectors through mutual respect and trust so that they can together provide 
more effective services to local people and communities within the 
borough. The shared principles set out in the Compact include working in 
partnership to enhance the ability of public sector bodies and Third Sector 
organisations to fulfil their own purposes whilst also imposing 
responsibility for each sector to contribute towards mutual aims and 
objectives. 

 
2.3 Overview and Scrutiny review: Delivering a strengthened voluntary 

and community sector 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny report ‘Delivering a strengthened voluntary 
and community sector’ made a number of recommendations to support 
the strengthening of the relationship between the Council, partners and 
the Third Sector. It also recognised the pressure on the Council and 
partners to deliver services that are responsive to local needs.  

 
3. Key Principles 
 
3.1 The Third Sector Investment plan proposes a set of key principles to 

under-pin decisions around resource allocation to the Third Sector.  These 
principles have been derived from the results of consultation which 
indicate strong support for ensuring that Council resources are allocated 
for the benefit of people living, working or schooling in Harrow. The 
consultation results also showed strong support for a focus on using 
resources to support preventative services and for ensuring that services 
provide value for money in the delivery of outcomes.  The key principles 
for this plan are; 

 
• Resources will be allocated to organisations that operate on a not-for-

profit basis only. 
 
• Resources will be allocated where they are used for the benefit of people 

living, working or schooling in Harrow. 
 

• Resources will be allocated where they help the Council deliver its 
priorities. 

 

175



 4 

• The allocation of resources will be matched to the delivery of specified 
outcomes. 

 
• Resources will be allocated where they achieve good value for money and 

deliver measurable added value. 
 

• Resources will be allocated where they provide benefit to the protected 
equality groups under the Equalities Act 2010 and further the Council’s 
public sector duty on equalities.  

 
These key principles will underpin the future delivery of Council support to 
the Third Sector through commissioning, grant funding and premises 
support. 

 
4. Commissioning 
 
4.1 The Council commissions a range of services from the Third Sector where 

the Council recognises that these organisations are better placed to 
deliver these than statutory agencies.  Both the Adults and Housing and 
Children’s Services directorates have been commissioning services for a 
number of years and both are currently updating their commissioning 
strategies (current commissioning priorities are attached at Appendix 2).   

 
4.2 Current commissioning priorities in Adults and Housing and Children’s 

Services are informed by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and are 
aligned to the delivery of the Council’s statutory duties. The Council is 
developing an overall commissioning model for services and Third Sector 
investment will be part of this development. 

 
4.3 In January 2011 the Council consulted with the Third Sector on the future 

provision of support through the Council’s Main Grants programme, 
community lettings and Community Premises.  The results of this 
consultation indicated that 86% of respondents felt that commissioning 
was an effective way of securing some services. 

 
4.4 The Main Grants Programme is currently structured as an annual, 

competitive grant funding scheme. This means that some services that 
could be commissioned are competing for funding alongside a range of 
smaller or one-off projects. In recent years the demand on this programme 
has been very high and this is expected to continue. Through 
commissioning these services could be removed from the annual process 
and instead be resourced more appropriately to deliver agreed outcomes. 
The commissioning of services will be undertaken through a formal 
tendering process and services will be commissioned against detailed 
service specifications funded on a three-year basis.  

 

176



 5 

 
 
 
5. Commissioning priorities for the Main Grants Programme    
  
5.1 The commissioning priorities for the Main Grants Programme have been 

developed in consultation with the Third Sector and Council Directorates. 
The priorities aim to fill the gaps in services not currently commissioned by 
other Directorates.  The priorities are; 

 
• Services that support the delivery of the Council’s statutory 

functions 
• Services that tackle disadvantage based on evidence of need 
• Prevention services that promote health and well-being 
• Advocacy, information / advice and sign-posting services 
• Culturally specific services that address the needs of communities 
• Infrastructure support services for the Third Sector 

 
 
5.3 Training support to assist Third Sector organisations participate in 

commissioning 
 

A survey of Third Sector training needs has been undertaken to identify 
the support needed. This survey indicated a high demand for training 
support, particularly in the area of preparing and submitting a tender.  In 
response to this the Council is developing a package of training support 
that will include on-line information, training workshops and telephone 
support.    

  
6.  Small Projects grant funding  
 
6.1 In addition to the commissioning of services a proportion of the grants 

budget will be set aside to support a Small Projects grant funding 
programme. This will be delivered as an annual, competitive application 
process and will offer small grants of up to £5,000 per annum. The 
scheme will be aimed at supporting smaller Third Sector organisations 
with an annual income of up to £50,000.  

 
6.2 Application process 
 

Following feedback from Third Sector representatives and others the 
application form, guidance notes and assessment scoring process have 
been improved.  Information sessions on the new application process will 
be provided including guidance on use of the electronic application form.   

  
6.3 Assessment process 

177



 6 

 
Applications will be assessed against the following criteria: 

 
• Evidence of need for the proposed project. 
• Plans for addressing this need. 
• How the project tackles disadvantage, fosters good relations and 

promotes equality of opportunity. 
• How projects will deliver proposed outcomes 
• How people can get involved and access the project. 
• How the project will give added value such as through using volunteers 

and working collaboratively with others. 
• Clear and realistic costs for the project. 
• Exit strategy beyond the life of the funding. 

 
6.4 A scoring sheet will be used as in previous years. The assessment 

process will be undertaken by a panel of assessors that will include two 
Council officers and one Third Sector representative elected via the 
Voluntary and Community Sector Forum. 

 
6.5 A meeting of panel Chairs will take place both at the beginning and at 

intervals during the assessment process. A mediation meeting and 
random sample testing will take place at the end of the process.  Quality 
assurance checks will be carried out throughout the process. 

 
6.6 Appeals process 
 

The results of the consultation indicated mixed views on retaining the 
appeals process. Most other funding bodies do not have an appeals 
process.  It is the view of the Grants Advisory Panel however, that an 
appeals process should be retained for the short term until the new 
process has been established. 
 
The grounds for appeal will continue to be; information presented to the 
Grants Advisory Panel was incorrect or information was omitted and that 
this had a material effect on the decision 

 
As agreed in 2011 appeals will be considered before final grant awards 
are confirmed to successful applicants. Appeals will be considered by an 
independent panel consisting of the Divisional Director Community and 
Culture, Portfolio Holder Community and Culture and an Independent 
Adviser.  

 
7.  Accommodation support 
 
7.1 The future provision of accommodation support to the Third Sector will be 

developed in line with the key principles of this Plan.   

178



 7 

 
7.2 The current process for the allocation of support across the Council is ad 

hoc with some organisations benefitting as a result of historical patronage.  
The allocation process should be based on a strategic view of resources 
and aligned to the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities and 
statutory duties.  

 
7.3 Allocation policies should be considered alongside the provision of grants 

and other funding. The cost of providing premises support is significant 
and those receiving it should therefore be subject to the same level of 
expectation to deliver against agreed outcomes as those receiving direct 
financial support. 

 
7.4 The results of the consultation indicated strong support across the Third 

Sector that organisations should: 
 

• Contribute to the cost of provision  
• That ‘larger’ organisations should support smaller ones with access to 

premises   
• That there should be alternative provision possibly run by organisations 

themselves, such as a resource centre, or drop-in venue  
• That organisations should be able to book venues directly with schools 

rather than the Council operating as an intermediary 
 

There was also support for the provision of a directory of venues for hire 
and concessionary rates on certain Council venues.  

 
7.5 Based on the results of this consultation the Council will support the 

development of Third Sector hubs that offer opportunities for shared costs, 
community management and flexible use.  A number of hub locations will 
be identified that could offer a range of facilities for the community and 
Third Sector organisations that include; 

 
• Office space 
• Hot desking space 
• Shared meeting / training space 
• Shared activity space 
• Postage / internet / IT facilities 
 

7.6 Discretionary rate relief 
 
The Council provides support with business rates to non-profit making 
organisations by either topping up relief to charities, in addition to the 
amount of mandatory relief that may be given (up to 100% of the rate 
charge) or by  granting relief of up to 100% to non-profit making bodies 
where the property is “used by one or more institutions or organisations, 

179



 8 

none of which is established or conducted for profit and whose main 
objects are charitable, philanthropic or religious or concerned with 
education, social welfare, science, literature or the fine arts.”  
 
The Council currently provides different levels of discretionary and non-
discretionary rate relief to Third Sector organisations in Harrow.  The 
future provision of rate relief will be reviewed in line with the key principles 
set out in this plan. 

 
 
8. Monitoring 
 
8.1 In 2010 the Community and Environment and Adults and Housing 

directorates introduced a process of joint monitoring for organisations 
receiving above £10,000 of Council funding. This process will be further 
enhanced for 2011/12 and will involve all directorates. 

 
Improvements to this process will include; 
 

• A simplified monitoring form that is pre-populated with information 
provided by the applicant. 

• Standardisation of SLAs across the Council. 
• Identification of monitoring officers and training prior to monitoring visits 
• Development of a library of essential documents  

 
8.2 The development of a library of essential documents has been started and 

the aim is to ensure that the Council holds one set of documents for each 
organisation funded or supported by it (irrespective of which directorate is 
providing the support).  The expectation is that policy documents, except 
for Health and Safety, should be updated every three years (Health and 
Safety policies should be updated every year). Organisations will be 
responsible for ensuring that their policy documents are updated in line 
with any changes in legislation, Codes of Practice, regulations etc. and 
updated documents should be sent to the Council. Specialist officers from 
across the Council will provide support to monitoring officers to quality 
check documents received from Third Sector organisations. 

 
9. Other forms of support 
 
9.1 Other support 
  

The Council provides support to the Third Sector in a number of other 
ways including: 
 

• External funding advice: The External Funding Manager provides advice 
and guidance to Third Sector organisations on potential funding sources 

180



 9 

and general support with bid writing.  The External Funding Manager has 
facilitated strategic links with funding bodies such as the Heritage Lottery 
Fund that has resulted in Harrow being identified as a priority borough. 
This type of joint working will be further developed in the future. 

 
• Access to procurement contracts:  The Council’s procurement service has 

piloted a scheme to give Third Sector organisations access to Council 
procurement contracts such as stationery, enabling them to benefit from 
favourable terms for the purchase of stationery items. There is scope to 
develop this pilot in partnership with the Third Sector going forward. 
 

• One-4-One employee volunteering scheme and Harrow’s Heroes: The 
Council supports its employees to participate in volunteering by matching 
hour for hour, the time an employee gives to volunteer in the local 
community, up to a limit of 36 hours a year. The scheme has successfully 
registered 40 local organisations and placed 60 employees in to 
volunteering opportunities. The Council also promotes volunteering 
through it’s annual Harrow’s Heroes event, that celebrates and recognises 
the contribution of volunteers in the community. 

 

181



 10 

Appendix 1 
 
Adults and Housing commissioning priorities 
 
Principles for future funding 
 

1. Direct correlation to Adult’s commissioning priorities (set out below) 
 

2. Social care emphasis rather than health focused projects 
 

3. Offering value for money 
 

4. Move from core funding small number of organisations to full cost 
recovery – Service Delivery focus 
 

5. Service delivery rather than consultation focused services 
 

6. Reduce duplication of services 
 

 
 
 
Adults commissioning priorities 
 

• Prevention services including social and practical related tasks 
 

• Advocacy, information/advice and sign-posting services 
 

• Culturally specific services needed by new communities 
 

• Carers breaks 
 

• Employment for people with Learning disabilities and people with mental 
health issues 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



 11 

 
Children’s Services Priorities (replaces Strategic Commissioning Focus 11/12) 
 

1. Early Intervention - intervening early in the onset of difficulties to meet 
additional needs at the earliest point and preventing the escalation of need 
for more complex and costly interventions. 

2. Health Prevention - improving physical and mental well-being of children 
& young people and educating them to make healthy lifestyle choices. 

3. Safeguarding - making safeguarding every one’s business and ensuring 
those most vulnerable to abuse are identified and intervention provided to 
ensure their safety. 

4. Narrowing the Gap - between outcomes for the more vulnerable and 
disadvantaged groups of young people and the general child population.

183



 12 

 

184



Le
ad

 
Tim

es
ca
le

Up
da

te
Pr

ior
ity

1

HA
VS

, th
e V

olu
nta

ry 
Se

cto
r F

oru
m 
(V
SF

) a
nd
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il w

ill j
oin

tly
 de

ve
lop

 a 
wa

y o
f e
ns
uri
ng
 

all
 gr

ou
ps
 ca

n h
av
e a

 vo
ice

 in
 th
e H

SP
. 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r 
of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re 

+ 5
 VC

S 
rep

res
en
tat
ive

s
De

c-1
0

M

2

Th
e C

ou
nc
il w

ill w
ork

 w
ith
 H
AV

S a
nd
 th
e V

SF
 to
 

bu
ild
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 ne
tw
ork

s f
or 

un
aff
ilia

ted
 Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r G
rou

ps
 to
 us

e. 
 Th

es
e m

ay
 be

 on
-lin

e 
rat

he
r th

an
 m
ee
tin
gs
-ba

se
d.

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

(H
ea
d o

f S
erv

ice
) 

+ V
CS

 re
ps

Se
p-1

0
M

3

En
su
re 

the
 C
om

pa
ct 
co
nta

ins
 a 
rob

us
t 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e F

ram
ew

ork
Po

licy
 & 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ju
n-1

1
H

4

Ap
po
int
 a 
Co

mp
ac
t C

ha
mp

ion
 ac

ros
s t
he
 H
SP

 
Po

licy
 & 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Se
p-1

0
H

5

Se
t u
p a

 jo
int
 C
om

pa
ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Bo

ard
 to
 

lea
d o

n e
mb

ed
din

g t
he
 C
om

pa
ct 
ac
ros

s H
SP

Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ma
r-1

1
H

6

De
sig

na
te 
3rd

 tie
r o

ffic
er 

lev
el 
Co

mp
ac
t 

Ch
am

pio
ns
 to
 le
ad
 on

 C
om

pa
ct 
iss

ue
s i
n e

ac
h 

Co
un
cil 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
; a
nd
 in
itia

te 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 

NH
S H

arr
ow

 to
 em

be
d C

om
pa
ct 
Ch

am
pio

ns
 

wit
hin

 its
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 

Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ma
r-1

1
H

7

Es
tab

lish
 C
om

pa
ct 
Pe

er 
Re

vie
w 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e W

es
t L
on
do
n A

llia
nc
e o

r p
art

ne
r 

Bo
rou

gh

Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Fe
b-1

1
M

Am
bit

ion
 1 
– D

ee
pe

nin
g P

art
ne

rsh
ip

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

Th
e H

SP
 re

str
uc
tur

e w
as
 co

mp
let
ed
 in
 O
cto

be
r 2

01
1. 
Th

is 
inc

lud
ed
 a 
str
ea
ml
ini
ng
 of
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r r
ep
res

en
tat
ion

 ho
we

ve
r, 

the
 VC

S F
oru

m 
co
nti
nu
es
 to
 m
ee
t a
nd
 an

nu
all
y e

lec
ts 
5 

rep
res

en
tat
ive

s f
or 

the
 H
SP

. R
eg
ula

r q
ua
rte

rly
 m
ee
tin
gs
 ta
ke
 

pla
ce
 be

tw
ee
n t
he
se
 re

pre
se
nta

tiv
es
, th

e C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il L

ea
de
r. A

s p
art

 of
 th
e i
nte

rim
 C
VS

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

the
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed
 Ea

lin
g C

VS
 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 so

me
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
wo

rk 
wit

h t
he
 Fo

rum
 to
 in
cre

as
e i
ts 
me

mb
ers

hip
 

an
d a

tte
nd
an
ce
.

Th
e C

om
pa
ct 
wa

s u
pd
ate

d i
n 2

00
9. 
Th

e f
ina

l c
od
e t
o b

e 
up
da
ted

 is
 th
e F

un
din

g a
nd
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
Co

de
. C

on
su
lta
tio
n 

ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 w
ith
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

, in
ter

na
l 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs 
an
d t
he
 G
ran

ts 
Ad

vis
ory

 Pa
ne
l. T

his
 C
od
e w

ill b
e 

pre
se
nte

d t
o t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 
Str

ate
gy
 Bo

ard
 in
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
12
. 

Th
is 
wil
l in

clu
de
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
e a

pp
oin

tm
en
t o
f D

ire
cto

rat
e-

wid
e C

om
pa
ct 
Ch

am
pio

ns
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
 jo
int
 C
om

pa
ct 

Bo
ard

. T
he
 dr

aft
 co

de
 ha

s r
ec
eiv

ed
 po

sit
ive

 fe
ed
ba
ck
 fro

m 
the

 
na
tio
na
l o
rga

nis
ati
on
, C

om
pa
ct 
Vo

ice
. 

185



8

Pr
od
uc
e a

 C
om

mu
nic

ati
on
s P

lan
 an

d e
sta

bli
sh
 a 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r p

ort
al 
on
 th
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

we
bs
ite
 an

d H
AV

S w
eb
sit
e.

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

(H
ea
d o

f S
erv

ice
)

Ma
r-1

1A n
um

be
r o

f m
ea
su
res

 ha
ve
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n t
o i
mp

rov
e b

oth
 

int
ern

al 
off
ice

r c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
 on

 is
su
es
 af
fec

tin
g t
he
 Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r a
s w

ell
 as

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 ex

ter
na
l c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
s w

ith
 th
e 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r, t

he
se
 in
clu

de
; T

he
 re

ins
tat
em

en
t o
f th

e T
hir
d 

Se
cto

r S
tra

teg
y W

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p w

hic
h w

ill i
nc
lud

e T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 
rep

res
en
tat
ion

 fro
m 
Ja
nu
ary

 20
12
; T

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Co

un
cil 

we
b p

ag
es
 re

lat
ing

 to
 th
is 
ye
ar'
s g

ran
t a
pp
lica

tio
n p

roc
es
s a

nd
 

reg
ula

r m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r re

pre
se
nta

tiv
es
 on

 a 
ran

ge
 of
 

iss
ue
s.

M

9

Co
mm

iss
ion

 a 
ma

pp
ing

 an
d i
mp

ac
t s
tud

y t
o 

pro
vid

e b
en
ch
ma

rk 
da
ta 
on
 th
e l
oc
al 
Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r to
 id
en
tify

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
ne
ed
s a

nd
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 w
ide

r o
utc

om
es
. 

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 / H

ea
d 

of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Ju
n-1

1W
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 to
 up

da
te 
the

 da
tab

as
e o

f T
hir
d 

Se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s. 
A s

urv
ey
 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
ne
ed
s w

ill b
e 

un
de
rta

ke
n b

y E
ali
ng
 C
VS

 on
 be

ha
lf o

f th
e I
nte

rim
 C
VS

 Bo
ard

. 
Th

is 
su
rve

y w
ill i
nfo

rm
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
 se

rvi
ce
 

sp
ec
ific

ati
on
 fo
r a

 ne
w 
CV

S s
erv

ice
.

H

10

Ide
nti
fy 
pil
oti
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ith
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 to
 de

live
r s
erv

ice
s i
n n

ew
 an

d 
inn

ov
ati
ve
 w
ay
s.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

HA
VS

 / V
SF

Ju
n-1

1Th
e A

du
lts
 & 

Ho
us
ing

 D
ire
cto

rat
e h

av
e d

eli
ve
red

 M
ark

et 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
se
mi
na
rs 
to 
he
lp 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 de

ve
lop

 se
rvi
ce
s 

tha
t re

sp
on
d t
o t
he
 Pe

rso
na
lisa

tio
n A

ge
nd
a. 
Fu

nd
ing

 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 su

bm
itte

d a
nd
 ar

e a
wa

itin
g a

pp
rov

al,
 to
 

de
ve
lop

 pi
lot
 pr

oje
cts

 to
 de

live
r s
ha
red

 ba
ck
 of
fic
e a

nd
 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 su

pp
ort

. 

M

11

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

to 
su
pp
ort

 H
AV

S a
nd
 ot
he
r 

str
ate

gic
 pa

rtn
ers

 in
 le
ad
ing

 a 
thi
rd 

se
cto

r 
res

po
ns
e t
o t
he
 co

un
cil’
s s

tra
teg

y.

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 / H

ea
d 

of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

0As
 ab

ov
e (

no
. 1
) th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 co

nti
nu
ed
 to
 w
ork

 w
ith
 an

d 
rec

eiv
e f
ee
db
ac
k f
rom

 Th
ird
 Se

cto
r re

pre
se
nta

tiv
es
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

qu
art

erl
y m

ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

Le
ad
er.

 M
em

be
rsh

ip 
of 
the

 Th
ird
 Se

cto
r S

tra
teg

y w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p 

wil
l b
e e

xp
an
de
d t
o i
nc
lud

e T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 re
pre

se
nta

tio
n i
n 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
12
. A

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ork

sh
op
 is
 pl
an
ne
d f
or 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
12
 th
at 
wil
l la

un
ch
 th
e r

efr
es
h o

f th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 St
rat

eg
y. 

M

Am
bit

ion
 2:

 B
uil

din
g t

he
 ca

pa
cit

y o
f th

e T
hir

d S
ec
tor

186



12

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r L

ea
de
rs 
Pr
og
ram

me
 to
 su

pp
ort

 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s, 
an
d w

ide
n 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n i
n t
he
 H
SP

 an
d o

the
r b

od
ies

. 

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 / H

ea
d 

of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

0Th
e H

SP
 fu
nd
ed
 a 
six

-m
on
th 
Tru

ste
e D

ev
elo

pm
en
t P

roj
ec
t in

 
20
10
. T

his
 su

pp
ort

ed
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 w
ith
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e a

nd
 Tr

us
tee

 tra
ini
ng
. T

he
 Ex

ter
na
l F
un
din

g 
Ne

tw
ork

 ex
pa
nd
ed
 its

 re
mi
t to

 in
clu

de
 ca

pa
cit
y b

uil
din

g s
up
po
rt 

an
d h

as
 re

ce
ive

d a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
pre

se
nta

tio
ns
 fro

m 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 

tha
t o
ffe
r le

ad
ers

hip
 su

pp
ort

 eg
. P

ilo
tlig

ht,
 C
ran

fie
ld 
Tru

st.

M

13

Re
vie

w 
the

 ca
pa
cit
y f
or 

the
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r to

 
pa
rtic

ipa
te 
in 
the

 H
SP

 an
d o

the
r b

od
ies

.  
HS

P V
olu

nta
ry 

se
cto

r 
rep

res
en
tat
ive

s
De

c-1
0Th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 co

nti
nu
ed
 to
 op

en
 up

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r T

hir
d 

Se
cto

r p
art

icip
ati
on
 on

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
bo
die

s i
nc
lud

ing
 fo
r 

ex
am

ple
, A

du
lts
 an

d H
ou
sin

g c
on
su
lta
tio
n s

tee
rin
g g

rou
p; 

Me
mb

ers
hip

 of
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Eq

ua
litie

s T
as
k G

rou
p; 
Int
eri
m 

CV
S B

oa
rd 

etc
. It
 is
 al
so
 ex

plo
rin
g p

ote
nti
al 
inv

olv
em

en
t in

 th
is 

ye
ar'
s g

ran
t a
ss
es
sm

en
t p
an
els

.

M

14

Co
nd
uc
t a
 fe
as
ibi
lity

 st
ud
y o

f c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 an

 
ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 gr

an
t g
ivin

g T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 
org

an
isa

tio
n (

Tru
st)
 to
 de

live
r th

e H
arr

ow
 G
ran

ts 
Sc

he
me

 an
d r

ep
ort

 th
e f
ind

ing
s w

ith
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o C

ab
ine

t.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Ma
r-1

1A c
on
su
lta
tio
n w

as
 un

de
rta

ke
n w

ith
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 du
rin
g 

De
ce
mb

er 
21
0-J

an
ua
ry 
20
11
. T

he
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 so

ug
ht 
vie

ws
 on

 
wh

ich
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 sh

ou
ld 
ma

na
ge
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 gr
an
ts 

pro
gra

mm
e. 
62
% 

sta
ted

 su
pp
ort

 fo
r H

arr
ow

 C
ou
nc
il c

on
tin
uin

g 
to 
ma

na
ge
 th
e p

rog
ram

me
. T

he
re 

wa
s l
ittl
e s

up
po
rt f

or 
the

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
to 
be
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y a
ny
 ot
he
r b

od
y: 
11
% 

sa
id 

Vo
lun

tar
y o

r C
om

mu
nit
y S

ec
tor

 ag
en
cy
; 1
8%

 sa
id 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

Tru
st;
 10

% 
sa
id 
Ot
he
r.

M

15

Es
tab

lish
 H
SP

 pr
op
ert

y n
etw

ork
 to
 en

su
re 

co
-

ord
ina

ted
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 pr
op
ert

y 
an
d a

cc
om

mo
da
tio
n i
ss
ue
s a

cro
ss
 th
e C

ou
nc
il 

an
d o

the
r H

SP
 pa

rtn
ers

.

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

 Pl
ac
e 

Sh
ap
ing

De
c-1

0
H

16

Co
ns
ide

r th
e a

cti
vit
ies

 of
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 in
to 

the
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 re

vie
w 
of 
its
 pr

op
ert

y.
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Dir

ec
tor

 Pl
ac
e 

Sh
ap
ing

 
Se

p-1
0

H

Th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 St
rat

eg
y r
ev
iew

 gr
ou
p p

rov
ide

s c
o-o

rdi
na
tio
n 

of 
all
 is
su
es
 af
fec

tin
g t
he
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r in

clu
din

g 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
. W

ith
in 
thi
s r
em

it t
he
 gr

ou
p h

as
 co

ns
ide

red
 th
e 

Co
un
cil'
s f
utu

re 
po
licy

 on
 di
sc
ret

ion
ary

 ra
te 
rel
ief
 an

d p
ote

nti
al 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r u

se
 of
 C
ou
nc
il b

uil
din

gs
 su

ch
 as

 lib
rar

ies
, 

Ch
ild
ren

's 
Ce

ntr
es
 an

d c
om

mu
nit
y c

en
tre

s. 
Th

is 
gro

up
 w
ill 

pro
vid

e r
eg
ula

r re
po
rts
 to
 th
e H

SP
.

187



17

Co
nti
nu
e t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 po

st 
of 
ex
ter

na
l fu

nd
ing

 
off
ice

r lo
ca
ted

 in
 H
AV

S t
o s

up
po
rt s

tra
teg

ic 
bid

s 
an
d b

uil
d b

id 
– w

inn
ing

 te
ch
niq

ue
.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Re
vie

w 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10

As
 pa

rt o
f th

e n
ew

 in
ter

im
 C
VS

 su
pp
ort

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
, T

hir
d 

Se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s a

re 
ab
le 
to 
ac
ce
ss
 fu
nd
rai
sin

g s
up
po
rt a

nd
 

ad
vic

e f
rom

 H
am

me
rsm

ith
 & 

Fu
lha

m 
CV

S (
Ca

VS
A)
. E

ali
ng
 C
VS

 
are

 al
so
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 2 
wo

rks
ho
ps
 in
 th
e N

ew
 Ye

ar;
 D
ev
elo

pin
g a

 
Fu

nd
rai
sin

g s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 W

riti
ng
 H
igh

 Q
ua
lity

 Fu
nd
ing

 Bi
ds
. 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 Ex

ter
na
l F
un
din

g M
an
ag
er 

co
nti
nu
es
 to
 op

era
te 

an
 Ex

ter
na
l F
un
din

g N
etw

ork
 an

d c
irc
ula

tes
 a 
reg

ula
r fu

nd
ing

 
ne
ws

let
ter

.

M

18

Es
tab

lish
 a 
ne
w 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 
eq
ua
litie

s b
od
y.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Se
p-1

0Th
e n

ew
 Eq

ua
litie

s B
od
y (
Ha

rro
w 
Eq

ua
litie

s C
en
tre

 - H
EC

), h
as
 

be
en
 op

era
tio
na
l s
inc

e N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
0. 
Th

e C
en
tre

 ha
s 

pro
vid

ed
 tra

ini
ng
 on

 th
e n

ew
 Eq

ua
lity

 Ac
t 2
01
0 a

nd
 w
ork

s 
str
ate

gic
all
y w

ith
 th
e C

ou
nc
il t
hro

ug
h i
ts 
me

mb
ers

hip
 of
 th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e E

qu
ali
tie
s T

as
k G

rou
p.

M

19

Es
tab

lish
 a 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Vo

lun
tee

rin
g d

eli
ve
ry 

gro
up
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e C

ha
mp

ion
ing

 H
arr

ow
 Ta

sk
 

Fo
rce

. 

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Se
p-1

0Th
e r

efr
es
he
d C

ha
mp

ion
ing

 H
arr

ow
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
 in
clu

de
s 

ac
tio
ns
 to
 pr

om
ote

 vo
lun

tee
rin
g. 
Th

is 
inc

lud
es
 en

su
rin
g l
ink

s t
o 

na
tio
na
l p
rog

ram
me

s s
uc
h a

s S
po
rts
 M
ak
ers

 an
d c

rea
tin
g l
oc
al 

vo
lun

tee
rin
g o

pp
ort

un
itie

s.
M

Am
bit

ion
 3 
– E

na
bli

ng
 Pa

rti
cip

ati
on

20

Es
tab

lish
 a 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r C

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 

Ne
tw
ork

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d t
rai
nin

g o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ers
 an

d t
he
 lo
ca
l T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 
qu
art

erl
y. 

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt

De
c-1

0
M

21

Ad
op
t a
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r C

he
ck
 Li
st 
to 
pro

mp
t a
nd
 

aid
 co

mm
iss

ion
ers

 to
 in
clu

de
 th
e l
oc
al 
thi
rd 

se
cto

r w
he
n d

es
ign

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s, 
de
ve
lop

ing
 

sp
ec
ific

ati
on
s a

nd
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

pro
ce
ss
.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

0
H

22

Pr
ov
ide

 in
for

ma
tio
n a

bo
ut 
up
co
mi
ng
 

pro
cu
rem

en
t to

 im
pro

ve
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 co

-
ord

ina
tio
n a

cro
ss
 co

mm
iss

ion
ers

 an
d i
nfo

rm
 th
e 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r o

f o
pp
ort

un
itie

s.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Se
p-1

0
H

Th
e C

ou
nc
il a

do
pte

d i
ts 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
Str

ate
gy
 in
 

Oc
tob

er 
20
11
. T

his
 st
rat

eg
y a

im
s t
o a

ch
iev

e i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
in 

so
cia

l, e
co
no
mi
c a

nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l s
us
tai
na
bil
ity
 th
rou

gh
 its

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
rac

tic
es
.  T

he
 "p

roc
ure

me
nt"

 pa
ge
s o

f th
e H

arr
ow

 
Co

un
cil 

we
bs
ite
 ha

ve
 be

en
 up

da
ted

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 th
e m

os
t u
p-t

o-
da
te 
so
urc

es
 of
 in
for

ma
tio
n f
or 

the
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r a

nd
 SM

Es
 on

 
ho
w 
to 
im
pro

ve
 th
eir
 ca

pa
cit
y t
o s

ell
 to
 th
e p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r. A
 

"S
us
tai
na
ble

 Pr
oc
urm

en
t C

he
ck
list

" in
clu

de
s p

rom
pts

 fo
r 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 lo
ca
l T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 (a
nd
 SM

Es
) th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d p
roc

ure
me

nt 
cy
cle

.Th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 
Inv

es
tm
en
t P

lan
 es

tab
lish

es
 ke

y c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 pr

inc
ipl
es
 w
hic

h 
ha
ve
 be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 in
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 an
d 

int
ern

al 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 D
ire
cto

rat
es
. B

oth
 Ad

ult
s a

nd
 H
ou
sin

g 
an
d C

hil
dre

n's
 Se

rvi
ce
s a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y r
ev
iew

ing
 th
eir
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 st
rat

eg
ies

 an
d p

roc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
. A

 
sta

nd
ard

 Se
rvi
ce
 Le

ve
l A

gre
em

en
t is

 no
w 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d u
se
d b

y 

188



24

Pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill, 

in 
lia
iso

n w
ith
 H
AV

S, 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
pri
ori
tie
s f
or 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s a

re 
co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to
 

the
 lo
ca
l T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 an
d t
ha
t th

ere
 is
, a
s f
ar 

as
 

po
ss
ibl
e, 
a c

on
sis

ten
t a
pp
lica

tio
n p

roc
es
s f
or 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ac

ros
s p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r p
art

ne
rs.

HS
P P

art
ne
rs 

Se
p-1

0
M

23

Co
rpo

rat
e P

roc
ure

me
nt,
 Ec

on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,
 H
arr

ow
 in
 Bu

sin
es
s a

nd
 H
AV

S t
o 

sc
op
e a

cti
on
 to
 su

pp
ort

 so
cia

l e
nte

rpr
ise

s. 

He
ad
 of
 Ec

on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
/ 

Ha
rro

w 
in 

Bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 

De
c-1

0Th
e s

urv
ey
 be

ing
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he
 In
ter

im
 C
VS

 Bo
ard

 w
ill 

as
se
ss
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r s
up
po
rt n

ee
ds
 to
 de

ve
lop

 so
cia

l 
en
ter

pri
se
s. 
Ha

rro
w 
is 
als

o p
art

 of
 a 
W
es
t L
on
do
n f
un
din

g 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n, 
wh

ich
 if 
su
cc
es
sfu

l w
ill p

rov
ide

 fu
nd
ing

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
su
pp
ort

 fo
r s
oc
ial
 en

ter
pri
se
s.

H

25

W
ork

 w
ith
 H
AV

S t
o s

co
pe
 an

d c
om

mi
ss
ion

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 tra
ini
ng
 eg

 in
 bi
dd
ing

 fo
r te

nd
ere

d 
wo

rk.

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 / H

ea
d 

of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Se
p-1

0Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

un
de
rto

ok
 a 
su
rve

y o
f tr

ain
ing

 ne
ed
s i
n J

un
e 

20
11
. T

he
 ne

w 
int
eri
m 
CV

S s
erv

ice
 w
ill a

lso
 be

 un
de
rta

kin
g a

 
su
rve

y o
f d
ev
elo

pm
en
t n
ee
ds
 du

rin
g D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1-J

an
ua
ry 

20
12
. E

ali
ng
 C
VS

 w
ill b

e p
rov

idi
ng
 a 
tra

ini
ng
 w
ork

sh
op
 on

 H
ow

 
to 
Te

nd
er 

an
d M

an
ag
e C

on
tra

cts
 in
 M
arc

h 2
01
2.

M

26

Str
en
gth

en
 th
e H

arr
ow

 C
on
so
rtiu

m 
of 
vo
lun

tar
y 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 to
 fa
cili
tat
e j
oin

t b
idd

ing
 an

d 
co
lla
bo
rat

ion
s b

y t
he
 lo
ca
l T
hir
d S

ec
tor

.

HA
VS

 C
hie

f 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 / H

ea
d 

of 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Se
p-1

0Du
rin
g 2

01
1 t
he
re 

ha
s b

ee
n a

n i
nc
rea

se
 in
 jo
int
 bi
ds
 an

d 
co
lla
bo
rat

ion
s a

mo
ng
st 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s. 
Fo

r 
ex
am

ple
; T

wo
 fu
nd
ing

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 re

ce
ive

d b
y t
he
 H
SP

 fo
r th

e 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r a

cc
om

mo
da
tio
n w

ere
 re

ce
ive

d b
y 

tw
o c

on
so
rtiu

m 
gro

up
s, 
CA

RR
AM

EA
 an

d R
AF

T. 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 ha

ve
 al
so
 co

lla
bo
rat

ed
 on

 th
e j
oin

t W
es
t L
on
do
n 

fun
din

g a
pp
lica

tio
n t
o t
he
 Bi

g L
ott
ery

 Tr
an
sfo

rm
ing

 Lo
ca
l 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
fun

d. 
Th

e i
nte

rim
 C
VS

 se
rvi
ce
 is
 be

ing
 de

live
red

 
by
 a 
co
ns
ort

ium
 of
 th
ree

 C
VS

s.

H

27

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

an
d N

HS
 H
arr

ow
 w
ill w

ork
 w
ith
 

the
 lo
ca
l th

ird
 se

cto
r to

wa
rds

 a 
co
mm

on
 

un
de
rst
an
din

g l
oc
all
y o

n a
n a

gre
ed
 m
eth

od
olo

gy
 

for
 ca

lcu
lat
ing

 Fu
ll C

os
t R

ec
ov
ery

.

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

0Th
e F

un
din

g a
nd
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
Co

de
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y b

ein
g u

pd
ate

d 
to 
ref

lec
t c
ha
ng
es
 in
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 fu
nd
ing

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
. T

he
 

Co
un
cil 

wil
l c
on
tin
ue
 to
 w
ork

 to
wa

rds
 a 
co
mm

on
 un

de
rst
an
din

g 
of 
ful
l c
os
t re

co
ve
ry 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 m
od
el 
to 
be
 

de
ve
lop

ed
 du

rin
g 2

01
2.

M

sta
nd
ard

 Se
rvi
ce
 Le

ve
l A

gre
em

en
t is

 no
w 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d u
se
d b

y 
all
 fu
nd
ing

 D
ire
cto

rat
es
. J
oin

t M
on
ito
rin
g a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
ha
ve
 

als
o b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d a

cro
ss
 C
hil
dre

n's
, A

du
lts
 an

d H
ou
sin

g a
nd
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
to 
sta

nd
ard

ise
 an

d s
tre

am
lin
e p

roc
es
se
s. 

189



28

Mo
nit
or 

the
 ac

tio
n p

lan
, re

po
rt t

o O
ve
rvi
ew

 & 
Sc

rut
iny

, H
SP

 an
d V

olu
nta

ry 
Se

cto
r F

oru
m 
an
d 

ref
res

h t
he
 st
rat

eg
y a

nn
ua
lly.

 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re

Ma
r-1

1Th
e a

cti
on
 pl
an
 is
 m
on
ito
red

 by
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 St
rat

eg
y 

wo
rki
ng
 gr

ou
p. 
Th

ird
 Se

cto
r re

pre
se
nta

tiv
es
 w
ill b

e i
nv
ite
d t
o j
oin

 
thi
s g

rou
p i
n 2

01
2 t
o p

rov
ide

 re
po
rts
 ba

ck
 to
 th
e V

CS
 fo
rum

. A
n 

up
da
te 
rep

ort
 ha

s b
ee
n p

rov
ide

d t
o O

ve
rvi
ew

 an
d S

cru
tin
y i
n 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
11
. T

he
 an

nu
al 
rev

iew
 fo
r 2

01
2 w

ill c
om

me
nc
e 

du
rin
g a

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ork

sh
op
 to
 be

 he
ld 
in 
Ja
nu
ary

.

M

190



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity
Am

bit
ion

 1 
– D

ee
pe

nin
g P

art
ne

rsh
ip

1Un
de
rta

ke
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
wo

rk 
wit

h t
he
 Vo

lun
tar

y S
ec
tor

 
Fo

rum
 to
 en

ab
le 
it t
o b

ec
om

e a
 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e a

nd
 

rep
res

en
tat
ive

 bo
dy
.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ V

CS
 

rep
s /
 Ea

lin
g C

VS
Ma

r-1
2 

 
M

2F
ina

lise
 Fu

nd
ing

 an
d P

roc
ure

me
nt 
Co

de
 in
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 

wit
h t
he
 VC

S a
nd
 in
ter

na
l s
tak

eh
old

ers
.

Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ma
r-1

2
H

3S
tre

ng
the

n C
om

pa
ct 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
inc

lud
ing

 
se
ttin

g u
p a

 C
om

pa
ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Bo

ard
Po

licy
 & 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ju
n-1

2 
H

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

191



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity

4A
pp
oin

t C
om

pa
ct 
Ch

am
pio

ns
 in
 ea

ch
 C
ou
nc
il D

ire
cto

rat
e. 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re/

 Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s (
Se

rvi
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
r)

Ma
r-1

2 
H

5E
sta

bli
sh
 C
om

pa
ct 
Pe

er 
Re

vie
w 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 th
rou

gh
 

the
 W

es
t L
on
do
n A

llia
nc
e o

r p
art

ne
r B

oro
ug
h

Po
licy

 & 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

Ma
r-1

2 
M

6D
eli
ve
r C

om
pa
ct 
aw

are
ne
ss
 tra

ini
ng
 to
 O
ffic

ers
, M

em
be
rs 

an
d V

CS
Po

licy
 & 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
(S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er)

De
c-1

2
H

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

192



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity

7Fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

 th
e O

ne
-4-

On
e e

mp
loy

ee
 vo

lun
tee

rin
g 

sc
he
me

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
ran

ge
 of
 C
ou
nc
il v

olu
nte

ers
 to
 Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

2 
M

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

193



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity
Am

bit
ion

 2
Bu

ild
ing

 th
e c

ap
ac
ity
 of

 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

8Un
de
rta

ke
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 on
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
ne
ed
s t
o b

e a
dd
res

se
d b

y a
 ne

w 
CV

S 
se
rvi
ce
.

VC
S R

ep
res

en
tat
ive

s 
/ H

ea
d o

f C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

Ja
n-1

2 
H

9Se
cu
re 

a n
ew

 C
VS

 se
rvi
ce
 th
at 
pro

vid
es
 re

lev
an
t s
up
po
rt 

for
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s t
ha
t p
rep

are
s t
he
m 
to 

res
po
nd
 to
 fu
tur

e o
pp
ort

un
itie

s
Div

isio
na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re

Ju
l-1
2

H

9De
ve
lop

 an
d d

eli
ve
r w

ork
sh
op
s a

nd
 on

-lin
e t
rai
nin

g t
o 

su
pp
ort

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s d

uri
ng
 tra

ns
itio

n t
o c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 

an
d s

ma
ll g

ran
ts 
.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ E

ali
ng
 

CV
S /

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Le
ad

Ju
l-1
2

H

10
De

ve
lop

 a 
ran

ge
 of
 ac

co
mm

od
ati
on
 op

tio
ns
 in
clu

din
g 

atl
ea
st 
on
e T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 hu

b.
Div

isio
na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re

De
c-1

2 
H

11
Ex
plo

re 
the

 fe
as
ab
ility

 of
 co

mm
un
ity
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f 

pre
mi
se
s a

nd
 po

ten
tia
l a
ss
et 
tra

ns
fer

s.
He

ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ H

ea
d 

of 
Co

rpo
rat

e E
sta

tes
De

c-1
2 

M

12
Ide

nti
fy 
an
d r

es
po
nd
 to
 fu
nd
ing

 op
po
rtu

nti
es
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
su
pp
ort

 fo
r s
oc
ial
 en

ter
pri
se
s. 

He
ad
 of
 Ec

on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Le
ad

De
c-1

2 
H

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

194



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity

13
Fu

rth
er 

de
ve
lop

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 jo
int
 m
on
ito
rin
g p

roc
es
se
s 

so
 th
at 
the

y s
up
po
rt o

rga
nis

ati
on
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ A

& H
 / 

Ch
ild
ren

's 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 Le

ad
De

c-1
2 

M

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

195



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity
Am

bit
ion

 3 
– E

na
bli

ng
 Pa

rti
cip

ati
on

14
De

ve
lop

 an
d p

ilo
t a
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 m
od
el 
for

 se
cu
rin
g 

se
rvi
ce
s f
rom

 lo
ca
l T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Le
ad

Ju
l-1
2 

H

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

196



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity

15
De

ve
lop

 an
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e S

ma
ll G

ran
ts 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

20
13
/12

.
Div

isio
na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re

De
c-1

2 
M

16
Inc

rea
se
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r in

vo
lve

me
nt 
in 
de
cis

ion
-m

ak
ing

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 in
clu

din
g f
or 

ex
am

ple
, g
ran

t a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

pa
ne
ls.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

De
c-1

2
M

17
Im
pro

ve
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 co

-or
din

ati
on
 ac

ros
s c

om
mi
ss
ion

ers
 

so
 th
at 
the

 Th
ird
 Se

cto
r is

 no
tifi
ed
 of
 up

co
mi
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt/
 

Ch
ild
ren

's 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 Le

ad
 

/ S
erv

ice
 M
an
ag
er 

A 
& H

Se
p-1

2 

H

18
En

co
ura

ge
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f c
on
so
rtia

s a
cro

ss
 th
e 

Th
ird
 Se

cto
r.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ H

 & 
F 

CV
S /

 VS
F

De
c-1

2 
M

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

197



DR
AF

T 
AC

TI
O
N 
PL

AN
 P
RI
O
RI
TI
ES

Pr
og

ram
me

 A
rea

 
Le

ad
 

Tim
es
ca
le

Up
da

te
RA

G 
sta

tus
Pr
ior

ity

19

Ha
rro

w 
Co

un
cil 

an
d N

HS
 H
arr

ow
 w
ill w

ork
 w
ith
 th
e l
oc
al 

thi
rd 

se
cto

r to
wa

rds
 a 
co
mm

on
 un

de
rst
an
din

g o
f fu

ll c
os
t 

rec
ov
ery

 an
d i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 fo
r th

e C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 Vo

lun
tar

y 
se
cto

r o
f m

ov
ing

 in
 th
is 
dir
ec
tio
n. 

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ V

CS
 

rep
s /
 A 

& H
 / 

Ch
ild
ren

's 
sE

rvi
ce
s /
 

NH
S H

arr
ow

De
c-1

0 
M

20
Pr
od
uc
e a

 C
om

mu
nic

ati
on
s P

lan
 an

d d
ev
elo

p a
 Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r in
for

ma
tio
n p

ag
e o

n t
he
 H
arr

ow
 C
ou
nc
il w

eb
sit
e.

He
ad
 of
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
/ 

Co
mm

s
Ma

r-1
2 

H

21
Mo

nit
or 

the
 ac

tio
n p

lan
; p
rov

ide
 up

da
te 
rep

ort
s t
o 

Ov
erv

iew
 & 

Sc
rut

iny
, H

SP
 an

d t
he
 Vo

lun
tar

y S
ec
tor

 
Fo

rum
; a
nd
 re

fre
sh
 th
e s

tra
teg

y a
nn
ua
lly.

 
Div

isio
na
l D

ire
cto

r 
Co

mm
un
ity
 & 

Cu
ltu
re

De
c-1

2 
M

VS
F (

Vo
lun

tar
y S

ec
tor

 Fo
rum

); V
CS

 (V
olu

nta
ry 
an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Se

cto
r); 

CV
S (

Co
un
cil 

for
 Vo

lun
tar

y S
erv

ice
); 

HS
P (

Ha
rro

w 
Str

ate
gic

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

); H
 & 

F C
VS

 
(H
am

me
rsm

ith
 & 

Fu
lha

m 
CV

S)

Dr
af
t A

ct
io
n 
Pl
an
 P
rio
rit
ie
s

198


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 West London Waste Plan: Pre-Submission Consultation document
	WLWP - Summary
	WLWP- Appendix 2

	9 Strategic overview of Voluntary Sector support and update on implementation of Third Sector Strategy
	Third Sector Strategy
	Appendix 2 Third Sector Investment Plan 2012-2015 FINAL
	Appendix 3 Third Sector Strategy Action Plan progress update
	Appendix 4 Draft Third Sector Strategy Action Plan Future Priorities

	10 Senior Management Structure Restructure Proposals Challenge Panel Report
	11 Report from the Debt Recovery Challenge Panel
	12 Standing Scrutiny Review of the Better Deal for Residents - Quarterly  Report
	13 Report of the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee Chair
	14 Report from Scrutiny Lead Members

